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Corporate Profile

2 ) i A

Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997, which is the largest listed real estate
company under State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the People’s Government of Shenzhen Municipal core business includes
property development (mainly residential real estate, also including industrial real
estate and commercial complex), property investment and management. With a
clear focus on Shenzhen and the Big Bay Area, and plan for other core cities in
China, the Company is committed to be a first-class real estate developer and
real estate operator.

Now the Group has a land reserve with a planned total gross floor area close to
6.29 million square meters in various cities of China, of which the quality land
reserve with a planned total gross floor area of approximately 2.68 million square
meters is located in Shenzhen. The Company is committed to further optimize its
land reserves structure, and further concentrate its assets and business in the
Big Bay Area as well as key first- and second-tier cities.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategy objective to promote the long
term sustainable development of its business, with an aim to bring a stable return
and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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Results

e

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-HLFE

2016
S NS
HK$ million HK$ million
HEAR BEATL
Revenue Wz 10,254.50 21,354.00 (51.98%)
Cost of sales HERAK 6,703.09 13,083.23 (48.77%)
Gross profits EF 3,551.41 8,270.77 (57.06%)
Share of profits less losses of AR NI /NG|
joint ventures and associates SERREE 844.74 1,142.98 (26.09%)
Profit before taxation B F8 AT 7,664.68 8,292.79 (7.57%)
Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company AN )RR AR R A R 4,950.94 3,170.58 56.15%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZFR (AL) 63.64 42.36 50.24%
Interim and proposed final dividend FRPEREZRERE
per share (HK cents) (AL 18.00 17.00 5.88%
Special dividend per share (HK cents) BRSNS (L) - 5.00 (100.00%)

Financial Position

BAS AR
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2017 2016

—E—+t& —E—RE

HK$ million HK$ million

HEBT BEAETL
Net assets excluding non-controlling interests = &EZE (T EIFIEERER) 41,468.24 32,810.81 26.39%
Cash and deposits (including restricted cash) = Ré&RkED (BEZREES) 12,984.09 12,063.38 7.63%
Net loans FER 9,919.15 7,693.56 28.93%

Net assets per share excluding non-controlling =~ &R EEFE (T EIHEIFER
interests (HK$) ) (BT) 5.15 4.29 20.05%
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Highlights of 2017 Results
CE - LEREME

Key Ratios
FEIE

Gross profit margin EH= 34.63% 38.73%
Net loan to net assets excluding FEFEREETE

non-controlling interests (e REIERER) 2% 23.92% 23.45%
Dividend payout ratio KB L%

— include special dividend — BIERRIRE 28.28% 51.94%

— exclude special dividend — NEERERIRE 28.28% 40.13%

Results (by operating segment)

A (BB
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
HK$ million HK$ million
BHERR BEBT
Turnover 2]

Property development ke 6,381.48 17,807.88
Property investment YEE 929.85 764.80
Property management b EA=g 1,820.43 1,556.80
Manufacture BE 325.65 298.05
Others Hith 797.09 926.46
Total ] 10,254.50 21,353.99

Segment Results — Profits/(Loss) DREEE - BN (BB)
Property development ek 5,993.31 6,380.44
Property investment (Note1) MERE (K3E1) 2,028.82 2,573.72
Property management VTR 171.25 121.31
Manufacture BliE 14.09 38.11
Others Hith (118.09) (56.94)
Total ko] 8,089.38 9,056.64

Note: e -

1. Segment results included the increase in fair value of investment properties of 1. DEEXEREREMEIAEEINLD161.688
approximately HK$1,161.68 million (2016: HK$1,204.14 million) and the recognition of EBTL(ZT—RF 1204148 8%8L) REE
change in fair value upon transfer to investment properties of approximately HK$96.81 EREMEERZ AR BEZEDLGSIEEET
million (2016: HK$654.52 million). (ZZE—"F : 654528 EHBTL) ©

2. Details of segment results of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements. 2. AEBSBEEEFBFHRUBHEWERMES -
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2017 2016 2015 2014
“2-tF¥ T C—Z-1f _T-If¥
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHL AT THL ThEx
Results #i5
Revenue from continuing BESEER
operations Z & 10,254,496 21,353,993 18,428,172 13,827,105 9,778,807
Profit before taxation BB ADRR
(Incluing profit before taxation from (BIEIEREEK
a discontinued operation) ZBFAREN) 7,664,682 8,292,792 6,510,629 5,855,454 5,093,193
Income tax expense FrisHHY
(Including income tax expense (BEFHEEHK
from a discontinued operation) ZFTEREY) 2,465,462 (4821,911)  (3423377) (2349413 (1,982,204)
Profit for the year EREA 5,199,220 3,470,881 3,087,252 3,506,041 3,110,989
Attributable to: T5IRES :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AIERARE 4,950,941 3,170,581 2,868,796 3,131,316 2,738,432
Non-controlling interests RS 248,279 300,300 218,456 374,725 372,557
5,199,220 3,470,881 3,087,252 3,506,041 3,110,989
Assets, liabilities and non- EE 88K
controlling interests FERES
Current assets REEE 62,963,238 56,984,059 55,498,072 59,685,807 49,718,511
Non-current assets FRBEE 54,263,909 39,561,506 35,587,146 34,819,100 27,173,014
Total assets BEE 117,227,147 96,545,565 91,085,218 94,504,907 76,891,525
Total liabilities BAE (72,126,315) (60,324,631) (55,516,152) (61,731,272) (49,312,179)
Net assets BEFE 45,100,832 36,220,934 35,569,066 32,773,635 27,579,346
Non-controlling interests SRIERRES (3632591)  (3410121)  (2243201) (277,775 (2,24153))
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders AN\ Bl 25 AR B FE A
of the Company BRER 41,468,241 32,810,813 33,325,865 30,495,860 25,337,811
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Cultivate Craftsman's
Spirit
T 5 A5 #

Building Living Vision to
Achieve Undertakings in Shenzhen
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Chairman’s Statement

EYiE &0

Driven by the aim of ensuring its shareholders’
interests, the Group changed its operating
strategies and adapted its sales structure
to the complex market condition in a timely

manner. As a result, the Company maintained a

significant growth in the profit for the year.

THG S A i 53 T 3 A D DA DR A S
RIRR > R AU AL SR > GHRE B A
TS5 T AR RERFKIRHR -

4 LU Hua =% %

Chairman &
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Vv

The PRC real estate market has stepped into a stage of assets stabilization and
retention. With the keynote showing in the government policy that “house is a
place to live instead of a tool for speculation”, the establishment of a long-term
effective mechanism for real estate and a mechanism for co-development of
housing lease and sales is accelerating, which has and will continue to have a
far-reaching effect on the long-term development of the PRC real estate market.

In 2017, the development of real estate between the first-tier to second-tier cities
and the third-tier to fourth-tier cities in the PRC further differentiated and showed
various differences, having affected by different policies in different regions.
With the implementation of a series of controlling measures including “purchase
restrictions, credit restrictions, price restrictions and sales restrictions”, the
annual trading volume of properties in the first-tier and hot cities immensely
reduced. In turn, attributable to destocking policies and the spillover effect of
key cities, the trading volume in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities in the first
half of the year strongly picked up, and despite of a slowdown in the second
half of the year, showed some improvement for the year. As a first-tier city
greatly affected by the said controlling measures, Shenzhen saw a slump in its
land and properties supply, resulting in an obvious decrease in trading volume.
Nevertheless, the price of Shenzhen real estate remained stable.
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Driven by the aim of ensuring its shareholders’ interests, the Group changed
its operating strategies and adapted its sales structure to the complex market
condition in a timely manner. As a result, the Company maintained a significant
growth in the profit for the year.

2017 Annual Results

During the year, the Group achieved a revenue of HK$10,254.5 million,
representing a decrease of 52.0% over the last year. Benefiting from the
substantial profits from disposal of projects in the third-tier and fourth-tier
cities, the Group achieved a net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$4,950.9 million, representing an increase of 56.2% over
the last year. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair value of investment
properties attributable to the Group, as well as gain on bargain purchases,
provision for litigation and provision of land projects in the third-tier and fourth-
tier cities for the last year, net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company was HK$4,010.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of 53.4% over the last year. Basic earnings per share
were HK63.64 cents, representing an increase of 50.2% over the last year. The
Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share
for the year of 2017 in cash, with a scrip dividend alternative. Together with the
paid interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share, the total dividend for the whole
year will amount to HK18.00 cents per share.

Completion of Disposal of Projects in the Third-Tier and Fourth-Tier
Cities

The Group has been committed to the disposal of projects in the third-tier and
fourth-tier cities in recent years. During the year, seizing the opportunity of the
pickup of real estate market in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities, the Group
successfully disposed of its interests in five project companies located in Sanshui,
Guangdong, Taizhou, Jiangsu, and Jiangyan, Jiangsu through public listing-for-
sale process at a total consideration of RMB5.87 billion, recording earnings
after tax of approximately HK$3.33 billion. During the year, the Group broadly
completed the disinvestment of projects in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities,
resulting in a decrease of its land reserves in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities
from 49% to 32%, which further optimized its structure of land reserves.

Adjustment on Sales Strategies

In response to the government’s stringent control over the market including
purchase restriction and price restriction, the Group decisively adapted its sales
strategies to maximize the interests of its shareholders after careful consideration.
It made adjustment on the sales strategies of Shum Yip Zhongcheng and
UpperHills LOFT, two key projects of the Group, so as to maintain the long-term
value of its core assets. Due to such initiative adjustment on sales strategies, the
contracted sales volume of the Group decreased, recording RMB11.50 billion for
the year.

HHEROMETL S ARENERRREE AR
R i“kﬁ% B HBHEER RETRF
2EBMAEER

ZE-LEERER

FR - AEEBEBRRFI102545888 T KEF TR
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AEEERADAEFIRRIEMGAFL9095 875
L A FIR6.2% ° W%M$E@%E&QW%M

PAEEPREFREUBIE  FRBERH=D
RIMEBNBRENFTE @E_f TtET-A

ST -HUESEEARARRRREGAFL010488
BT - AT LIR53.4% o lﬁﬁﬁ$&5ﬂff‘z63 64l -
BEF FFEN0.0% EZFERKE —tFRER
BEBI1.00BIE AR S (RMHEURALSERZTH)
RE o BRDIRE 2P BERESRT.00E - 2FRE
A HF18.00#1 -

X—?

FEARGE B = DU A0 O

AEELFREFBENRZMHGEHRTEENEE - F
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i 8 1 SR

HHRE RESHEEOMSHE  ARELREA
B ORENERBERBER AR REHRE %ﬁ
BRI HRXFH  REX LBIOFTMATRBAH
HEMBETHAR  NEEROEENRYER - &
RFERBO TR FREARHEREEM
T 2FEREREEAREET



13

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Chairman’s Statement

% # A

Expansion of Quality Land Resources

The development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area has been
formally upgraded to a national strategy. During the year, the Group has
proactively sought project resources in the Big Bay Area and also opportunities in
the first-tier and second-tier key cities. The Group acquired four pieces of land in
Tuen Mun (Hong Kong), Nanhai Lishui (the intersectional area between Guangzhou
and Foshan), and Nanjing Jiangning (Jiangsu) successively during the year,
adding a gross floor area of over 250,000 square meters to its quality land bank,
which has optimized its asset structure and helps to improve its sustainability in
the future.

In Shenzhen, the Group accelerated its pace in urban redevelopment and was
proved to be fruitful. During the year, the planning schemes for Chegongmiao and
Bagualing redevelopment was approved by the Futian district government. The
upfront work for the redevelopment of four old units in Bagualing has commenced,
among which, the Shanglinyuan project has passed the redevelopment plan
review. Benefiting from the successful Bi-city Biennale of Urbanism/Architecture
organised by Nantou Old Town in Nanshan District, the Group obtained the
qualification for redeveloping the center of High-tech Park in Nanshan District.
During the year, the successful running of projects in each redevelopment area
has paved a solid foundation for the Group to finalize more urban redevelopment
projects in Shenzhen.

Propelling Capital Operation through Investment in Hengda Real Estate
During the year, the Group made a capital contribution of RMB5.50 billion to
subscribe the equity interests of Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited
(“Hengda Real Estate”), accounting for approximately 2.0522% of the enlarged
share capital of Hengda Real Estate (which was diluted to approximately 1.7626%
after the capital contributions under the third round investments of Hengda Real
Estate are made). According to the announcement of China Evergrande Group
dated 3 October 2016, China Evergrande Group would list Hengda Real Estate in
China as an A-share company through reorganization. Through the subscription,
the Group became a second-round strategic investor of Hengda Real Estate
before reorganization. Investment in Hengda Real Estate is expected to generate
stable returns to the Group.
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Grand Opening of UpperHills

On 18 January 2018, the commercial area of UpperHills, a commercial flagship
under the Group, ushered in its grand opening. It is a business complex,
including fashion, food and beverage, culture and entertainment, and interactive
experience, catering for diversified needs of modern people. Approximately
40% of the tenants in UpperHills are new brands first launched in Shenzhen
and Southern China, such as the first global three-in-one project combining
flagship shop, restaurant and hotel of MUJI, the only direct-sale store of Sony in
Shenzhen, the largest Porsche showroom in China, the premier experience center
of Nike in Southern China, the first Emperor UA cinema in Shenzhen, Fnji, the
first independent furniture brand in Shenzhen, the first TAIWANESE TEA HOUSE in
Mainland China and various canteens with exotic charm, committed to providing fresh,
diversified and fashionable consuming experience to customers of different ages.

Sound Financial Position Maintained

The Group continued to strengthen integrated fund planning and management
and optimize its loan portfolio. As a result, the Group’s finance costs continued to
decrease and gearing ratio was maintained at a lower level. As of 31 December
2017, net gearing ratio (including all interest-bearing liabilities) of the Group was
49.9%.

We will continue to seek for high-quality assets, promote the transformation of its
profit model and improve the Group’s operational efficiency to create sustained
and steady returns for each shareholder.

Outlook

A Long-term Effective Mechanism for Real Estate to be Gradually
Established

The establishment of a long-term effective mechanism for real estate and a
mechanism for co-development of housing lease and sales has been a keynote
of real estate policy. Such change of policy keynote has greatly affected the
development pattern and structure in real estate market. The statement that
“house is a place to live instead of a tool for speculation” is an inexorable law
as the industry develops to a stage of assets stabilization and retention. Only
industry reorganization and positive adjustment under the guidance of macro-
policy could ensure national financial security and long-term healthy and
sustainable development of the real estate industry.

We expect that the controlling measures on real estate industry in the first-
tier cities will continue for some time in the future, allowing more time to
establish and improve the long-term effective mechanism for real estate. With
the improvement of the housing security system of co-development of housing
lease and sales, the availability of various financial instruments, the successive
implementation of supporting policies in favour of the development of real estate
leasing market and the acceleration in the supply of land for leasing purpose, the
real estate leasing market, as a key breakthrough for long-term effective mechanism,
will play more and more important roles and see a golden time of development.
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Further Development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area
and the Enhancing Urban Competitiveness with Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Cooperation

The development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area has been
upgraded to a national strategy, which is putting into effect formally. Cooperation
between Shenzhen and Hong Kong is the core of the Big Bay Area strategy.
With strength in technology innovation, Shenzhen stands out itself as “a core
area of technology innovation”. On the other hand, Hong Kong will lead the
internationalization of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area by virtue
of its position as a free port, attractiveness to global talents, highly-developed
financial industry and high-end service industry. Once the Big Bay Area takes
initial shape, the economy generated from the heartland on the east bank of the
Big Bay Area, covering Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Dongguan and Guangzhou, will
amount to approximately 70% of the overall economy of the Big Bay Area. Upon
completion of several key traffic facilities, including the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge, the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Channel, the Second Humen Bridge and the
Shenzhen-Maoming Railway Bridge, new historic opportunities for development
will emerge in the West Bank of the Big Bay Area.

With the implementation of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area
Strategy, Shenzhen will further stand out itself as “a core area of technology
innovation”. Its industry system, competitiveness and attractiveness to talents
will be further enhanced and with stronger real estate demands for residential,
office and commercial purposes. Meanwhile, due to scarce land resources, land
available for construction in Shenzhen has gradually decreased and there are very
limited land available in open market. Along with slow supply of land released
from urban redevelopment projects, the supply-demand imbalance becomes a
long-existing condition in the real estate market in Shenzhen. Given the sustained
establishment and improvement of the mechanism for co-development of housing
lease and sales will diversify the real estate market and product structure in
Shenzhen, we are very confident in the value increase in Shenzhen’s quality
assets.

Adapt to New Condition to Intensify Development in Shenzhen, Focus
on Big Bay Area and Introduce New Mode of Land Acquisition

Under the current market condition, acquisition of quality land has been more
difficult and with higher costs and risks year by year. It is hardly possible to
address land scarcity in a short to medium term. Acquisition of land resources in
Shenzhen in traditional mode encounters “bottleneck” problem and needs to make
a breakthrough. In the future, the Group will secure the development opportunity
arising from the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area Strategy, and, under
the background of cooperation between Shenzhen and Hong Kong, give full play
of its advantages to concentrate on the real estate market of Shenzhen while
focusing on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area, and endeavor to
take up a share in those Big Bay Area city groups including Shenzhen-Hong Kong,
Guangzhou-Foshan and Dongguan-Huizhou.

B BOCE AR R > R AT Rt

BERANERD FAARBERKER WA EXEiEHE
B HRRBAIERERRERBBAZL « RYIR
ERREIED KAKER [RIRAFZLORE] - M
ERBREHEME  HERATHRS  2RENS
mRBERY  KIlEEERNEEMBERY - K&
REETLMEE  ERRFERHZOME  BEEE
M R BENENKERS SO BENE [E’J
0% 4 - BEEBRRARE  RAP@E - KFPZE
ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁEKXL R e R - *E@ﬁ%ﬂ%%
fFE P B RIS

BEEERNERBRNER  RIIER [RHREIH&
DE]MENKEARL  HMEXBRE— TR
Bl WHRFAMAQLAREENE—F LR Y
BEBA BENFTROHHERD - BuFE

AL wERERHR  TERMBEREBHRL -

BREARTSHELN I HEERETE WM EHE
BERLHRERERE FHENSREERNES
TPErimee - BEHELRNFIEE-FREMT
B A EHETSNERSBRENS T - RAY
RYEEEENEEERTAED -

HRERTE 5 G REREE > AR LI
N

EEROTRT  BREZLIOMHAE - KAMER
BELT - THREABEDEHRBARR - KE
EANEAERYIER L EREBRST - 2HERA
BREARE - AR AEERNEEBRNEEH

REE R EW%AWﬂAm”ET RER S
B FHAY FEEBERNER  ZSHERE
R ikx[ﬁmﬁ¢ﬁf &2



16

Shenzhen Investment Limited ¥ BAR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Chairman’s Statement

T # A

On the basis of further deepened cooperation with Shum Yip Group, the
ultimate holding company of the Company, and securing resources for urban
redevelopment projects, the Group will innovate the mode of resource acquisition,
seize the opportunities arising from the development of Hetao and Qianhai as well
as its advantage as a first-mover in urban redevelopment. It will put more efforts
in urban redevelopment, especially facilitating the renewal work of each urban
zone. By the way of restructuring and upgrading the economy of each urban
zone, the Group will also cooperate with the government, maximize the strength
of Shenzhen-Hong Kong cooperation and acquire more high-quality project
resources to realize comprehensive income.

Keep Abreast of the Tendency to Deepen transformation, Expand
Investment Property Portfolio and Strengthen the Construction of Long-
term Rental Apartments

As the long-term effective mechanism for real estate and the mechanism
for co-development of housing lease and sales establish and improve in the
market, lease is expected to weigh more in the real estate market. Therefore,
taking a share in the lease market becomes one of the targets for real estate
enterprises to make transformation. Earlier, the Group has initially entered into
the long-term apartment lease market by launching the “Room Cards for Youth
Scheme” together with some authorities in Shenzhen. LM (E), one of the
brands launched by the Group, was widely recognised and received by Shenzhen
government and market. In 2018, the Group will continue to work with its ultimate
holding company, Shum Yip Group, to launch four long-term rental apartment
brands, named Shum Yip LM (8), Youju (8/E), Shangju (£/E), Yiju (&) to
provide more options for people with different residential needs.

The Group will insist on the strategy of “developing, sale, holding and
management equally” and expand high-quality investment properties for
commercial and office use through optimization of portfolio, management,
pricing system and services, thus further improving asset quality and returns.
Meanwhile, supported by its house stock and newly completed properties, the
Group will secure the opportunity from housing lease market, establish long-
term rental apartment brands, make flexible use of financial instruments, support
the development of long-term apartment rental business and seek for new
sustainable development opportunities.

ARERERERCBARAZERERARRESR
BAE RERBERMENEBEROER L A5
BREREN  IETE  fIBRROBENHUTE
TRRRABNEREY  HENARBLENE - #
EREREHRAER  APHFREEERARAY
AR BRBRA  MAREAEES  FREZHNE
ERAER  SKEAMENE -

PEAL S > TRALEAL > SRKBEMRALS > R RA
NEEBR

BERMERIEHNBEELBROMSEHELMT
& HEMSERBMETSTOLERURES 18
EHEMSNBERBMELRERNTAZ— - A%
BRABARIEERE  FR[FFEERTE] £
MEATRELEES BT EE] ERRY
MM EZBAMMNER - 2018F - REEHEE
ERSRKERAAREEE  HHAXEE][F
Bl LB TBEE]MARBERBERSR BHA
TRAFBRABREELEEEE -

AEERESRERERRAEL Y BORE  #8
BABERE BARRENENRE  BAELA
A HEEE nEHoEERE REELRBK
Fofem AR EEEEMEBAT - B A%
ERUEENERHRINEAKT  LEEFEE
mERE  TEREAEME BRERAERIA
IREHABEBER  SHKANTHERREE -



17

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Chairman’s Statement

% # A

Deepen State-owned Enterprise Reform and Propel Incentive
Mechanism Reform

During the year, the government issued a notice on implementation of mixed-
ownership reform throughout Shenzhen. In quick response, the Group will
strive to diversify the subject of title at the level of property-owned enterprises
and project companies gradually and structurally. It will improve the operating
efficiency of both enterprises and projects by introducing major strategic and
long-term shareholders as well as implementing core management and key
employee stock ownership. Besides, the Group will propel incentive mechanism
reform by establishing a hierarchical incentive mechanism, supplemented with
restraining and supervising mechanism in order to attract various professionals,
improve employee engagement and boost enterprise vitality.

Adjust Product Structure and Maintain Reasonable Growth

As a first-tier city, Shenzhen enjoys strong economic fundamentals and a
promising future for development. Depending on market and policy condition,
the Group will adjust its product structure, particularly, increasing office and
apartment products not affected by purchase and price restriction, and promoting
project sales in second-tier and third-tier cities, and keep sound cash flows
and stable operation while striving to preserve asset values. In 2018, the Group
has annual saleable properties value of RMB31.7 billion, with a sales target of
RMB15.0 billion, increasing approximately 30% over the actual sales last year.
The Group’s key projects include Shum Yip Dongling, Shum Yip Zhongcheng
(office and apartments) and Taifu Square.

Sticking to the vision of being a “Leader in Value Creation for City Spaces”, the
Group will focus on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area, intensify
its development in Shenzhen and finalize the development strategies in the first-
tier and to second-tier cities. In the future, we will maintain a sound and healthy
growth in development and sales volume, optimize investment property portfolio
comprising properties for commercial, office and long-term rental uses, seek
for opportunities of long-term apartment rental, establish operating and service
platforms with core competitiveness, give full play of its professional advantage
and continuously improve the value of urban spaces.

| believe, through unremitting efforts, the Group will be able to operate as a
going concern and in a healthy way, achieve a balance between scale expansion
and value enhancement and constantly optimize the structure of land reserves
and assets. We will spur with long accumulation on a well-grounded strategy
for transformation and upgrading in branding to achieve a sound and sustainable
development of the Company and create better benefits and return for shareholders.

LU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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Overall Results

In 2017, the first-tier and hot cities intensively introduced control measures
resulting in decline in real estate trading volume for the year. Under the
continuous impact of the tightening control policies for the real estate in
Shenzhen, the supply of land and houses shrank notably. As a result, trading
volume of new houses dropped significantly but the prices remained stable as
strong demand from buyers persisted. Benefiting from the destocking policy and
the spillover effect across the central cities, the third-tier and fourth-tier cities
saw a pickup both in terms of trading volumes and prices.

The PRC real estate market has stepped into a stage of assets stabilization and
retention. As the building of long-term effective mechanism and the housing
system that encourages both housing purchase and residential leasing gained
momentum, the development of residential leasing market has become an
important part of the supply-side structural reform for the real estate market.

Facing the stringent control policies and to better fit market conditions, the
Group actively adapted its strategies to market trends by proactively responding
to the national policy of “encouraging renting and purchase simultaneously”.
On one hand, the Group transformed part of its projects into long-term rental
apartments, with a view to increasing the value of the core assets through long-
term operations. On the other hand, it took advantage of the prime time of market
recovery and proactively promoted its property sales, both in sub-divided units
or en bloc, for the projects in the third- tier and fourth-tier cities, which brought
about satisfactory results with a substantial increase in profit.

During the year, the Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$10,254.5
million, representing a decrease of 52.0% over the last year. Gross profit
margin was 34.6%, representing a decrease of approximately 4.1 percentage
points over the last year; gross profit was HK$3,551.4 million, representing a
decrease of 57.1% over the last year; benefiting from the substantial profits from
disposal of projects in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities, the Group achieved
a net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$4,950.9
million, representing an increase of 56.2% over the last year. If excluding the
net effect of changes in fair value of investment properties attributable to the
Group, as well as gain on bargain purchases, provision for litigation and provision
of land projects in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities for the last year, net profit
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company was HK$4,010.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing an increase of 53.4% over
the last year.
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Property Development Business

Affected by the stringent control policies, the trading volume of new houses
in Shenzhen market saw a significant decrease. The Group decided to actively
adjust its sales plan for Shum Yip Zhongcheng and UpperHills LOFT in order to
ensure maximum benefits for shareholders. The adjustment has had an impact
on the achievement of contracted sales for 2017, thus sales revenues booked for
the period decreased.

Sales Revenue Booked

During the year, the Group recorded property sales booked of approximately
482,000 square meters (excluding the interests attributable to the Group in its
three major associates and joint venture), representing a decrease of 47.7%
over the last year, and achieved a net revenue in property sales of approximately
RMB5,531.8 million (equivalent to HK$6,381.5 million) (net of value-added tax),
representing a decrease of 64.2% over the last year. The gross profit margin
of property development and sales was 39.3%, representing a decrease of 2.0
percentage points over the last year. The percentage of Shenzhen projects in the
sales revenue booked during the year was 53.4%. During the year, the average
gross profit margin for Shenzhen projects of the Group was approximately 46.4%,
whereas the average gross profit margin in other cities was approximately 31.7%.
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Property Sales Booked in 2017

Property Name Area Booked Net Sales Unit Price
E ] FEEEE HE HEBE
(RMB/sq.m.)
) (RMB million) (AE®T,
(Frx) (ANREBZT) 7z

Rui Cheng Residential 90,708.42 442.88 4,882.46

=8 F=E

Garden Hills Residential 121,734.51 607.67 4,991.76

FILB% F=E

Wanlin Lake Residential/shop 6,211.76 40.62 6,539.21

BMH F=x/ mh

Splendid City Residential 19,450.75 80.16 4,121.18

B =

Euro-view Garden Shop 452.87 6.00 13,248.84

BEBR Bl

Noble Times Residential/shop 240.32 5.24 21,804.26

RRER F=x/ mh

Shum Yip City Residential 5,466.85 51.77 9,469.80

RE F=E

Yundonghai Villa 2,080.00 16.57 7,966.35

58 i

Saina Bay Residential/shop/villa 10,837.14 54.44 5,023.47

EnE Fx /m/ 5lE

Jiangyue Bay Residential/shop 7,115.20 172.69 24,270.58

& Fx/mh

Guanlan Rose Pavilion Residential/shop/office building 27,277.26 548.66 20,114.19

BURBURE FE/ B/ BT

Nanhu Rose Bay Residential/shop/villa 3,858.93 75.15 19,474.31

MBORE Fx /m/ 5lE

Yihu Rose Garden Residential/shop 13,153.78 63.76 4,847.28

TRBRSE Fx/

Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Residential 39,704.71 275.47 6,937.97

BNREER F=E

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Residential 85,362.07 495.09 5,799.88

BERILREER F=E

UpperHills Residential/office building 38,149.94 2,312.74 60,622.38

it FE/ BT

Royal Spring Garden Villa 10,129.34 118.50 11,698.69

FHt R k=

Parking place sales™ Parking place - 164.37 -

BiHE B

Total &3t 481,933.85 5,531.78 -

Note*: 1,208 parking lots were sold.
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Contracted Sales

During the year, the Group realized contracted sales area of approximately
564,000 square meters and contracted sales income of approximately RMB11.5
billion, representing a decrease of approximately 40% over the last year. The
average price per square meter was RMB20,408.

In 2017, the stringent control policies continued to prevail in the Shenzhen
market, to better fit the market conditions and to actively respond to the national
policy for the establishment of a housing system that encourages “both renting
and selling”, the Group promptly adapted its sales strategy. It postponed the sales
of UpperHills LOFT. In addition, it changed the residential part of the Shum Yip
Zhongcheng project that was originally planned to be for sale into a project for
long-term rental, with a view to increasing the value of the core assets through
long-term operations. The active adjustment of sales strategy has had an impact
on the achievement of contracted sales for 2017. The Group will continue to
adhere to the principle of maximizing interests of shareholders so as to ensure
the long-term value of premium assets.

* Guanlan Rose Garden B3 5R5E
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Contracted Sales in 2017 201 7B T B

Project Name Sqles Area Sales Unit Price
JEE A HEEE HESRHR

; (sq.m.) ) (RMB million)
(FrKR) (ANREFZT)

Tanglang City* Shenzhen Complex 99,144 5,359 54,049
SRR R LA

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma’anshan Residential 224,832 1,591 7,077
BE8ILREER BEl £

UpperHills Shenzhen Complex 7,365 856 116,225
it sl RER

Rui Cheng Changsha Residential 61,601 396 6,427
=511 =9/ T

Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Changzhou Residential 24,867 261 10,477
BMREER M T=

Shum Yip Dongling Shenzhen Complex 14,429 992 68,722
RERA sl e

Shum Yip City Foshan Residential 11,405 214 18,746
RER i FE

Jiangyue Bay Guangzhou Residential 3,505 138 39,455
TR & M T=

Royal Spring Garden Chaohu Residential 4,863 70 14,308
Fmt R 55 FE

Guanlan Rose Garden Shenzhen Residential 11,418 375 32,841
BRI R FE

Garden Hills Huizhou Residential 25,524 235 9,221
Fildb M T=

Splendid City Taizhou Residential 18,062 82 4,512
it B3 ZMN FE

Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential 18,273 209 11,444
BMH B2 T

Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential 3,890 142 36,404
B E T=

Euro-view Garden Dongguan Residential 628 31 49,220
BEE R FE

Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu Residential 18,206 123 6,766
TRHBRGE P& F=E

Saina Bay Heyuan Residential 2,356 22 9,529
EnE AR T=

Qingshuihe Auto Park Shenzhen Warehouse/Commercial 9,403 374 39,766
BAOTBIR B EXE w3l B/ %

Gaobangshan No.1 Huizhou Residential 4172 40 9,585
LR B2 T

Total &3t 563,943 11,510 20,408

Note*: The project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, as to 50% owned by the Group, o REEERYMEEBRSERE 5 H50%E
and it is accounted using equity method. & EREZE -
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Project Development JHH A E UL

During the year, the Group had a new construction area of 601,030 square &+ AEEHE THEE01030L 5K RIEE

meters, and a completed area of 615,402 square meters. 615,402F 5 % o

New Construction Projects in 2017 201 TAEB B T H
Project Name Total GFA Saleable Area
JRH & PREEEEE AIEHE

; (sq.m.) ) (SC]-”{-)
(FHK) (F72K)

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.1 and 2.2 = Ma’anshan Residential 347,418 259,444
BRILREER21 228 B FE
Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 4 Shenzhen Wa\rehouse/Commercial 42,000 28,000
BT B A E S E 4 el B/ %
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 4 Wuhan Residential 132,570 92,865
R B L4 Bz T
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.2-Longxi Chengdu Residential 67,221 50,124
TRERIE1 28R P &D T=E
Chaohu South Phase 1 Chaohu Residential 5,415 5,063
SHmE1EH LSy F=E
Chaohu North Phase 4.2 Chaohu Residential 6,406 6,248
SHitE4.28 s F=

Total &3 601,030 441,744
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Completed Projects in 2017 R —-LEETIHA
Project Name Type Total GFA Saleable Area
J5H & R iEE BREERRE AIEHE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F7H) (£74)
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2 Changzhou Residential 125,939 88,274
BMREET2H M F=E
Building 5&6 of Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.1 Chengdu Residential 17,761 13,860
T IEBRIE1 18,/ 56508 PR A fFE
Chaohu North Phase 3 Chaohu Residential 5,721 5,580
E3H1LE3E £ FE
Chaohu North Phase 4.1 Chaohu Residential 4,853 4,653
£HitEa1 5 £ T=E
Rui Cheng Phase 2.2 Changsha Residential 73,757 73,363
E2.28 &Y F=E
Garden Hills Phase 3.1.1A Huizhou Residential 79,847 37,153
(building 2 and 3/basement)
B3 EIEA QRIFEMTE) =M F=E
Garden Hills Phase 3.1.2 (building 6-9) Huizhou Residential 127,593 93,239
F 453143262 (6-950) B F=
Garden Hills Phase 3.1.1B (building 1, 4 and 5) = Huizhou Residential 50,909 50,012
FI31H1ZB (1 RAKRSHIE) =M F=E
Shum Yip City Phase 3.2 Foshan Residential 129,022 101,904
RSS2 Gl F=E
Total &5t 615,402 468,038
Land Reserves + o ik £

As of the end of December 2017, the Group had land reserves with an aggregate ~ BZE-_T—+F+ZAK ' tHREEREEEERE
planned gross floor area (GFA) of approximately 6.29 million square meters (of #6298 F ;K (I H563EF HK) » ;T AEELEA
which the Group was interested in 5.63 million square meters), and a capacity 184768 F 7K (BRI 04028 F oK) » HhfERE
building area of 4.76 million square meters (of which the Group was interested in ~ B EH R B LR HLM9E T 7K (BE L D316EF H
4.22 million square meters), of which, the projects under construction had a total ~ K) * st AREEE2L0E L A K (BRI 02268 F A
planned GFA of approximately 3.49 million square meters (of which the Group K)o

was interested in 3.16 million square meters) and a capacity building area of 2.50

million square meters (of which the Group was interested in 2.26 million square

meters).
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véi&jv
Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December 2017) LHfEE S R =Rt HET—H)
By type — Planned GFA mtes'and3 (5q.m.) By type — Capacity Building Area tes 223 (sq.m.)
EmERSfH - REREEE 3 (LFX) ERERS M - FAREEER (FAXK)

& () Residential £ @ Industrial E% @ Complex A fE ®
By City — Planned GFA mtes a3 (5q.m.) By City — Capacity Building Area m'es 2213 (sq.m.)
W o - REREER 2 (FHXK) W oM - St RREEES 2 (R XK)

31% 32%

26%

<1§ () 1st-tier city — Shenzhen —#2#ii — &4l @ 1st-tier city — Hong Kong —#&4iT — &% () 2nd-tier city —#im1 @) 3rd-tier city =& §>

Notes: MiEE -

1. Planned GFA: the sum of the gross floor area of all the floors above and 1. HEZEERE : ERAMBEANERIZHREEYHE N L
under the ground of a single building or buildings within the scope of RHHEIATEBREmMEZ LM o
the land for construction.

2. Capacity building area: the sum of the gross floor area which is used in 2. HREEAEE ERANSEENMAESESERNEEEE
the calculation of the plot ratio within the land for construction. ZHEFN o

3. Excluded the sold lands in Sanshui and Taizhou. 3. EHIBR=KERFEMNEE L o
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New Land Reserves

The development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area has been
formally upgraded to a national strategy. During the year, the Group has
proactively sought for project resources in the area and focused on opportunities
to invest in quality projects in the first-tier and second-tier key cities.

On 22 June 2017, Shum King Company Limited, a joint venture owned as to 50%
equity interests respectively by each of the Group and Road King Infrastructure
Limited, successfully acquired the Tuen Mun Town Lot No.520 in Hong Kong (the
“Land”) at a consideration of HK$3.17 billion. Located at Sham Tseng/Castle
Peak Road (Tuen Mun) in Hong Kong, the Land covers an area of approximately
12,205 square meters (equivalent to 131,373 square feet) with a maximum
gross floor area of 43,938 square meters (equivalent to 472,944 square feet).
The Land was designated to be developed into a private residential property with
a term of ownership for 50 years.

On 26 December 2017, the Group successfully acquired a parcel of land in
Lishui, Nanhai District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province at a consideration
of RMB913 million. Located at the prime lot where Guangzhou borders upon
Foshan, the project enjoys a very convenient traffic network. It covers an area of
approximately 20,000 square meters, with capacity building area of approximately
59,600 square meters mainly for residential purpose and another supporting
area of 7,000 square meters for talent housing construction. Excluding the
supporting area, planned gross floor it is equivalent to an unit floor area price of
approximately RMB17,600/sq.m.

On 27 and 29 December 2017, the Group succeeded in bidding for two parcels
of land in Nanjing, namely Lot G72 and Lot G78, at a price of RMB1.06 billion
and RMB1.2 billion respectively. Located at Shangfang, Jiangning District,
Nanjing, Lot G72 enjoys a surrounding area with mature educational, medical
and natural resources. The project covers an area of 34,623 square meters,
with capacity building area of approximately 75,824 square meters mainly for
residential purpose, which is equivalent to a price of approximately RMB13,980/
sq.m. Lot G78 is located at the Qilin Street, Jiangning District, Nanjing which is
in Qinglong District and is close to the Xianlin University Town and well-served by
developed subway network. The project covers an area of approximately 31,304
square meters, with capacity building area of approximately 71,999 square
meters mainly for residential purpose, which is equivalent to a planned unit floor
area price of approximately RMB16,667/sq.m.

517y #r

i L s e

EERAEEDER EAREREE  A&EFAE
BEXRNEENHEBER YRIEH——RHUME
BrRAmMRERS

R-ZT— iﬁﬂ—+—a AEEHEEGERER
DEIEHSNBENEEDRFADER AR TES
TLE B - ﬁ%%m%&@ﬁmm&%wwﬁﬁmqi
i) e ZRAMUREB RS/ BTLUAK (EMR)
B (5 4012,205F 7K (HBERI3133FFTR) - £
TH 1B 7 A] 343,938 F 5 5K (472,944 F F R) » s R 15
EEFLAFERSE - EEFRLF -

RZE—t&E+ -+ 8 KAEENUARKI3
%i& BEEREHLUTEEREKMH - BHAM
REMNEHR LBRSENESHE  BERATAR
EOANET K A RREEBEN0ET A
K FERAEE SEBATERT0ELK - BrE
FEmE - AEEMENARE7,6007T,/ FHK

R-ZE—+F+-A-++tHN-tLB AEED
FIAA RHE10.6(2 7T 122 70K N 5 5 59 A G728 3
G678 o G2 AR IER FHAE - A
BHE  BE- - BRERKRA - BEGH34623F 5
Ko HRREmMBAGAT K TEAFE - FA
%W@EmFmAEMB9Wﬁ/¥ﬁ%‘Gmwmﬁ
RERTIEEESEE BERAE  BHUKK
By hERRTE EHEM%MBM$H* HA
BEABAT 99T K - FBEEE - MAFDER
B ANREE16,667T,/ FHK o



29

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Management Discussion and Analysis

B w5y A

Through the successful acquisition of the above land resources, the Company
expanded its quality land banks in the first-tier and second-tier cities as well as
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Big Bay Area, which in turn provided a strong
support for future sustainable development. The structure of the Group’s land
reserve was further optimized, with the proportion of the first-tier and second-tier
cities land reserve accounting for 68% and that of the Big Bay Area accounting
for 56%.

Completion of Disposal of Projects in the Third-Tier and Fourth-
Tier Cities

The Group has been committed to promoting the disposal of projects in the third-
tier and fourth-tier cities for recent years. During the year, on the momentum of
real estate recovery in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities, the Group substantially
completed the disinvestment of projects in such lower-tier cities and generated a
strong return.

On 24 May 2017, the Group successfully disposed of its interests in three project
companies in Sanshui, Guangdong (holding lands for low-density residential and
commercial use with an undeveloped land area of 1,073 mu and developed but
unsold land with a gross floor area of approximately 64,996 square meters) and
another project company in Taizhou, Jiangsu (holding lands for commercial and
residential use with an undeveloped land area of 275 mu, an under construction
area of 105,563 square meters, and completed but unsold residential and
commercial properties of approximately 10,394 square meters in total) through
public listing-for-sale at Shenzhen United Property and Share Rights Exchange
and recorded net after-tax gains of approximately HK$3.14 billion.

On 26 May 2017, the Group successfully disposed of its interests in a project
company in Taizhou, Jiangsu (holding lands for residential use of 159 mu in
Jiangyan District, Taizhou) through public listing-for-sale at a consideration of
RMB361.5 million, representing a premium of approximately 58% over the listing
price of RMB229.0 million, and recorded net after-tax gains of approximately
HK$190 million.

Through the above transactions, the Group generated a strong return for its
shareholders and further optimized its land reserve structure. During the year, the
proportion of its land reserve in third- tier and fourth-tier cities decreased from
49% to 32%.

BBKNER LLER ARAEET — &M
MhEBRRNEGRNEE LERDRE - RITAKA
SERREN  LHRERERBIE-—FEL  £F
B — — S LI RS E68% - KB iR
Lk 3#56%

FEARGE I = 9 A O i

AEBEIFRENEG=-"NEATRENRE - F
A AREEEE=MREHERERE  EXTK=
MEMMIERMRE T YEREBOE -

R-Z—+ERA-1+MA - AEDEBEFYIBA
ERRSIAREE  AWBURAER=KEN =R
BERR (BEEEARRERENERAL b
R AR EREL 030 CHEHS R ERETE
#64.996F oK) 2 - AR B RN THRMNE
EALNE (BEERABERM  KER L2758
HEREEBI05563F 5% BRTAPEFEREELR
K10304F 7 K) 2B HE  BERBFRENEE
3NAMETT -

RIZE—tFAAZ+TRA AKERBRFEES
A KARK361.5A BRI K — KA EZM &
BRLE (BAURRMNEZEROIBETAM) 2
Bt g WERLHEERARE20.08ETRE
#)58% - SRS F WS HE KT -

BBALIRS  AEEARFAEEEEE B
REEESINE—FBL - TR ZWNERT LR
B 49% M8 2= 32% -
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Proactive Expansion of New Resources in Shenzhen and Other
First-tier and Second-tier Cities

Together with Shum Yip Group, the Group owns the qualification of a general
coordinator for certain redevelopment projects in urban zones of Shenzhen
with an area of nearly 10 square kilometers, mainly including Bagualing and
Chegongmiao in Futian District, the centre of High-tech Park in Nanshan District
and the Nantou Old Town in Nanshan District.

During the year, positive results have been achieved in all aspects of the
redevelopment work of each urban zone. The planning schemes for the
redevelopment of Chegongmiao and Bagualing were approved by the Government
of Futian District. The upfront work for the redevelopment of four old units in
Bagualing has commenced. Among which, the Shanglinyuan project has been
audited and included in the urban redevelopment plan. Benefiting from the
successful Bi-City Biennale of Urbanism/Architecture organised by Nantou Old
Town in Nanshan District, the Group obtained qualification for redeveloping the
centre of High-tech Park in Nanshan District. During the year, the successful
running of projects in each urban zone has paved a solid foundation for the Group
to finalize more urban redevelopment projects in Shenzhen.

Property Investment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has investment properties of over 1.14
million square meters, 85.6% of which are located in Shenzhen. During the
year, the Group recorded rental income of approximately HK$929.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 21.6% over the last year. The gross
profit margin of property investment business was approximately 78.8%,
representing a decrease of 6.1 percentage points over the last year. The Group
recorded a revaluation gain in its investment property portfolio of HK$1,161.7
million for the year. Revenue and scale of the Group’s investment properties are
expected to increase significantly with the completion of UpperHills and Taifu
Square projects in the future.

Long-term Rental Apartments

Earlier, the Group has initially entered into the long-term apartment lease
market by launching the “Room Cards for Youth Scheme” together with relevant
authorities in Shenzhen. LM (#£88), one of the brands launched by the Group, was
widely recognised and received by Shenzhen government and market. The Group
will continue to work with its ultimate holding company Shum Yip Group to launch
four long-term rental apartment brands, named Shum Yip LM (i&8), Youju (B /&),
Shangju (L&) and Yiju (B&/8) to provide more options to people with different
residential needs. Residential component of the Group’s Shum Yip Zhongcheng
project and certain units of Hong Kong Tuen Mun project will be launched to
the market as a product line of “Shum Yip Shangju” (% £ /&), highlighting the
features of elite, taste and leisure.

R PR J F 8 — A3 i 0 0

AEBERZEEREFRIMI0F 7 DB T E
FEBEREIRER TERRA \IEHE
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srand Opening of UpperHills

On 18 January 2018, the commercial area of UpperHills, a commercial flagship
project of the Group, ushered in its grand opening. It is the first large-scale urban
complex that integrates various shopping amenities, industrial research and
development center, culture and creativity LOFT, premium business apartments
and top-notch luxury hotel in Shenzhen, catering for diversified consumption
needs of modern lifestyle.

Approximately 40% of the tenants in UpperHills are new brands launched in
Shenzhen and Southern China for the first time, such as the first global three-
in-one project combining flagship shop, restaurant and hotel of MUJI, the first
Mandarin Oriental in Shenzhen, the only direct-sale store of Sony in Shenzhen,
the largest Porsche showroom in China, the premier experience center of Nike
in Southern China and the first Emperor UA Cinema in Shenzhen, committed to
providing fresh, diversified and fashionable consuming experience to different
generations of customers.

Property Management

The Group has its own property management teams who are committed to
becoming “the most reliable property service integrator” by improving services,
supporting the development of real estate business and helping to enhance the
corporate brand. As of the end of the year, the total area of properties under the
Group’s management was approximately 51.76 million square meters, covering a
variety of property types such as government offices, office buildings, residential
estates, villas, and science and technology parks, which are mainly located in
the Pearl River and Yangtze River deltas as well as the central region. During the
year, the property management business contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$1,820.4 million to the Group, representing an increase of 16.9% over the last
year.

Hotel Operations

The Group owns six hotels. Those in operation are Suzhou Marriott Hotel (with
293 guest rooms), Chaohu Shumyip Bantang Hot Spring Hotel (with 20 spring
villas) and Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring (with 203 guest rooms).
Muji Hotel (with 79 guest rooms) in UpperHills, Shenzhen has completed its
construction and commenced operation on 8 January 2018. Those under
construction are Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen (with 190 guest rooms planned)
and Tanglang City Project Hotel in Shenzhen (with 200 guest rooms planned),
which is co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group.

During the year, the three hotels in operation recorded a revenue (included under
other operating segment) of approximately HK$181.2 million, representing an
increase of 8.1% over the last year.
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Manufacturing Business

The Group’s manufacturing business mainly represents the LCD manufacturing
and metal materials processing and other businesses which have been
held by the companies under the Group over the years. During the year, the
manufacturing business recorded operating income of approximately HK$325.6
million, representing an increase of 9.2% over the last year.

Performance of Joint Ventures

During the year, the performance of Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development
Limited (a 51% owned company of the Group) was flat with the last year. It made
a net profit contribution of HK$1.3 million to the Group for the year. The principal
activity of the company is to assist local government in primary land development
and the local government did not make any arrangement to launch such lands
during the year.

Shenzhen Langtong Property Development Company Limited (a 50% owned
company of the Group) made a net profit contribution of approximately HK$110.8
million for the year, representing a decrease of 5.3% over the last year. The
company and Shenzhen Metro Group jointly developed the Shenzhen’s Tanglang
City Project.

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Co., Ltd. made a net profit contribution of
HK$298.3 million to the Group, representing a decrease of 45.0% over the last
year.

Performance of Associates

During the year, the associates invested by the Group performed as expected. Of
which, Road King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a
net profit contribution of HK$525.8 million to the Group, representing an increase
of 53.8% over the last year. Coastal Greenland Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong, incurred a loss of HK$69.1 million to the Group, compared with a net profit
contribution of HK$137.2 million for the same period of last year.

R
ARENREXBIBZRAMBEEZFUR—ER
ENRBRBERSEERSBAVMIERE - TR
BEEBREWABRLAB6BER T LLEF LTt
9.2% °

AEATEM

R AEERBNWESOTMNTARARREERER
RARERT  ZLRAFEAAEETRANERN3
BEET ZARNIBREBRHBHEMRRFETL
R FRENBFARLIHER L ES -

AEBFEAWERNAY BBFHEREERAFAR
FERAREETRAMNER08BEET  LEFTR
5.3% ° &% B AERYIM0E & B A (EF B RIERAN
ZBBRA]

FINKRLZEIES AR D A AKREBR R4 FIFE298.3
BEETT  LEFETR5.0% -

Wi W) 3B 4
FR-AEERENBEDRAEERBATHEG - &
B RBLTRAIRYERBRAR - AESEGR
MR ER208EEATT L EF EAL38% c AL
REEBREREER AR ATEESREEN1EE
B AFRPARNER72B8EET



33

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Management Discussion and Analysis

B w5y A

Propelling Capital Operation through Investment in Hengda Real
Estate

On 31 May 2017, the Company, through Ma’'anshan Maowen Technology
Industrial Park Co., Ltd. (“Ma’anshan Maowen”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an investment agreement with Guangzhou Kailong
Real Estate Company Limited (“Kailong Real Estate”) and Hengda Real Estate
Group Company Limited (“Hengda Real Estate”) (both being subsidiaries of China
Evergrande Group) to contribute an amount of RMB5.5 billion to the capital of
Hengda Real Estate in exchange for the equity interests in Hengda Real Estate,
which accounted for 2.0522% of the enlarged share capital of Hengda Real
Estate (which was diluted to approximately 1.7626% after the capital contribution
under the third round investments of Hengda Real Estate are made). According
to the announcement of China Evergrande Group dated 3 October 2016, China
Evergrande Group would list its real estate business in China as an A-share
company through reorganization. Through the investment, the Group would
become a strategic investor of Hengda Real Estate before the reorganization.

The principal terms of the investment agreement (as amended by the
supplementary agreement) include: (i) profit distribution undertaking: Kailong
Real Estate and Hengda Real Estate have undertaken that the net profit of
Hengda Real Estate for the years of 2017, 2018 and 2019 shall not be less
than RMB24.3 billion, RMB50.0 billion and RMB55.0 billion, respectively. During
the performance undertaking period, Hengda Real Estate will distribute at least
68% of its net profit to its shareholders as cash dividends until the signing of
the reorganization agreement. Upon reorganization, Kailong Real Estate would
recommend that at least 68% of a listed company’s distributable net profit shall
be distributed as dividends to its shareholders; (i) exit rights: if the above-
mentioned proposed reorganization is not completed by 31 January 2020,
Ma’anshan Maowen will have the right to request Kailong Real Estate or Mr. Hui
Ka Yan, the controlling shareholder of China Evergrande Group, buy back the
entire equity interests in Hengda Real Estate held by it at its original investment
cost or request Kailong Real Estate to transfer 50% of the equity interests then
held by it in Hengda Real Estate to Ma’anshan Maowen (excluding any additional
equity interests acquired by Ma’anshan Maowen after the date of the investment
agreement) at nil consideration as compensation; and (iii) lock-up undertaking: if
the abovementioned proposed reorganization is completed, Ma’anshan Maowen
will hold shares issued by an A-share listed company for the acquisition of the
equity interests in Hengda Real Estate. Ma’anshan Maowen is prohibited from
transferring the said shares of listed company within the lock-up period stipulated
by the China Securities Regulation Commission, and Kailong Real Estate has also
undertaken that it will not, until the first anniversary of the expiry date of the
lock-up period of the strategic investor, transfer the shares issued by the listed
company for the acquisition of the equity interests in Hengda Real Estate.
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Investment in Hengda Real Estate is in line with the Company’s strategy of
intensifying the development in Shenzhen and beneficial for strengthening mutual
cooperation at project level. According to Hengda Real Estate’s performance
undertaking, profit distribution undertaking and exit terms, such equity investment
of the Company is expected to generate solid returns.

Financing
During the year, the Group focused on integrated financial management to
safeguard its business development.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total bank and other borrowings amounted
to HK$22,903.2 million (31 December 2016: HK$19,757.2 million), of which
HK$17,964.9 million were floating-rate loans, and the remaining were fixed-
rate loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$14,765.6 million, representing
approximately 64.5% of the total borrowings, and short-term loans were
HK$8,137.6 million, representing approximately 35.5% of the total borrowings.
Borrowings from Hong Kong and overseas amounted to HK$12,606.2 million,
representing 55.0% of the total borrowings, and the remaining were borrowings
from Mainland China, representing 45.0% of the total borrowings. During the
year, the average comprehensive interest rate of the Group in respect of its bank
and other borrowings was approximately 4.6% per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash balance (including restricted cash)
was HK$12,984.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$12,063.7 million), of which
approximately 92.6% and 7.4% were denominated in Renminbi and other
currencies (mainly in US$ and HK$) respectively.

The Group’s assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi. 45.0% of the bank and
other borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, while 55.0% are denominated
in HK$ and US$. HK$ is adopted as the reporting currency in the Group’s
financial statements. The effect of the fluctuation of RMB exchange rate on the
Group’s finance will be mainly reflected in the volatility of the asset and earnings
denominated in Renminbi against HK$, the reporting currency. The Group will
closely monitor and proactively avert foreign exchange risk through various ways.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net assets (excluding non-controlling
interests) of HK$41,468.2 million (31 December 2016: HK$32,810.8 million). The
net gearing ratio with the liabilities including bank loans and other borrowings
only was 23.9% and the net gearing ratio with the liabilities including loan from
Shum Yip Group and all other interest-bearing liabilities was 49.9%. The gross
gearing ratio (being the ratio of total liabilities over total assets) was 61.5%.
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Financial Position
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As at As at
HK$ million 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
R-Z—tf
BEBT =R
Bank and other borrowings RITERREMEE 22,903.2 19,757.2
— Long-term borrowings - REMEE 14,765.6 14,468.8
— Short-term borrowings —EHEE 8,137.6 5,288.5
Due to the ultimate holding company JE S ER AR R 1A R 3R 5,107.3 2,850.9
Cash (including restricted cash) Bt (REIRFEE) 12,984.1 12,063.7
Net gearing ratio with the liabilities including FEEX (BERPREBTREMER) 23.9% 23.4%
bank and other borrowings only
Net gearing ratio with the liabilities including all FRBEX (AEREMAETEAR)
interest-bearing liabilities 49.9% 38.9%
Other Operating Expenses i 2888 B 5
During the year, the Group’s other operating expenses were approximately £/ @ AEEHEMELHT 4 A36.0EEBT  BE
HK$369.0 million, a decrease of 77.7% over the last year. The year-on-year 4 NE77.7% c REHMG LML ALEBES - 26

decline in other operating expenses for this year was significant as other
operating expenses for the same period last year included provisions for litigation
and provision for impairment of projects in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities
totaling approximately HK$1,496.0 million. The aforesaid provisions were one-off
event and no relevant provisions have been made this year.

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")

During the year, the Group recorded a current provision of LAT of HK$810.4
million, representing 7.9% of turnover. The LAT mainly arose from UpperHills and
Rui Cheng. The booked gross profit margin of UpperHills and Rui Cheng were
46.2% and 56.8% respectively. As the LAT rate is progressive, the higher the
profitability of a project is, the higher LAT rate and the LAT amount is needed to
be borne.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total loans of HK$402.9 million (31
December 2016: HK$638.2 million) that were pledged with assets (for details,
see note 30 to the financial statements).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had provided guarantees to a maximum
of HK$6,556.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$7,869.3 million) to banks for
housing loans extended by the banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties
(for details, see note 41 to the financial statements).
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Update on Litigation Involving Wuhan Terra

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Company Limited (“Terra Company”), a 75.05%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuhan Shum Yip
Terra Property Development Company Limited (“Wuhan Terra”) was prosecuted
for the offences of bribery by organization (EfI77863F) and offering bribes
to organization (¥f B A777865F) as its Wuhan project was implicated in the
corruption case(s) involving the local government officials. The People’s Court
of Jianli County of Hubei Province handed down its first-instance judgment in
respect of the litigation on 28 September 2017. Wuhan Terra and the three ex-
members of management of Wuhan Terra were found guilty and were convicted
of the offence of bribery by organization. Wuhan Terra was ordered to pay a
total of RMB557,413,000 (an illegal gain of RMB542,413,000 and a fine of
RMB15,000,000), and each of the three ex-members of management of Wuhan
Terra was sentenced to imprisonment for one and a half year.

Wuhan Terra has appealed against the judgment, and was officially served with
criminal ruling of second instance on 7 December 2017 by the Court of Jianli
County entrusted by Jingzhou Intermediate People’s Court, determining that
“the appeal was rejected and the original judgment was upheld”. On 25 January
2018, illegal gain and fine amounting to RMB553,914,000 was drawn from the
frozen account of Wuhan Terra by the Court of Jianli County according to the
judgment.

Wuhan Terra, having considered the judgment, has decided to appeal against the
judgment and is preparing the appeal proposal.

As a provision in the amount of RMB542,413,000 had already been made in
Group’s accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016, the outcome of the
litigation will not have any material adverse effect on the financial position of the
Group. The Company believes that the aforementioned matter is an individual
incident, and will not have any material effect on the assets, financials and
operations of the Group as a whole.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 18,867 employees (2016:
18,643) of whom 40 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance
related personnel), and the rest were in Mainland China. The total remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (excluding remuneration of the Directors)
amounted to approximately HK$1,615.8 million (2016: HK$1,307.5 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance, the
Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current market
condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In driving performance,
we also grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group.
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Dr. LU Hua
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Dr. LU Hua, aged 54, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the President of
the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January 2013 and
the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24 April 2012 to 30
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Dr. LU is also a director
of various members of the Group. Dr. LU holds a doctorate degree in Political
Economics from The Nankai University and a master’s degree in Finance from The
University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as the president of Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited from May 2011 to
December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as the chairman of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd. (000014.S7) and Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the
general manager of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also
served as a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). At present,
he is a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction and Development Group Co., Ltd.
and Shenzhen Talents Housing Group Co., Ltd.. He has vast experience of over
twenty years in property development, corporate governance and administrative
management.
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Mr. HUANG Wei, aged 47, an Executive Director and President since 21
July 2015. Mr. HUANG was an on-the-job graduate at Guangdong Academy of
Social Sciences, where he graduated with a major in law. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University. Mr. HUANG is currently a director and president of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He is also a director of
various members of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he served as a deputy
secretary of the Party Working Committee, a deputy director of the Management
Committee and a director of Social Work Committee of CPC Shenzhen Dapeng
New District and served as a member of the Standing Committee, a director of
District Committee (district government) Office and a district government party
member of Longgang District and the Longgang District Youth League secretary.
Mr. HUANG has extensive experience in management.

Mr. HUANG Wei

Executive Director H/TE =
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Mr. MOU Yong
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Executive Director #1178 %

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 55, an Executive Director since 1 December 2009.  #HE4L  A+hm B-ZZNF+_A—HEH
At present, he is also a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip  FEHTES - HEBNATLEEERAT  FE (&
Holdings Company Limited and its various subsidiaries. He graduated from The — B) ERAGIREETHEARIZES - REENHA
Shaanxi University of Technology with major in Chinese Language and Literature ~— BT B[ ZZ s NEHRE BHEIRAZSRIHE
and obtained an advanced MBA from The Peking University. He is a lawyer of ~ BELTE(fI o AR AREHB 2B EIHEZE
The People’s Republic of China and an arbitrator of The Shenzhen Arbitration — B&@F# 8 - E_ETNEMARNER 771 REF
Commission. Prior to joining the Group in 2009, he held the positions of the head  FITAREBNEEEEEEEEZESPEEEA
of Enterprise Leadership Personnel Management and the chief of General Office ~ EEEBEER BAZIE - BE 2EENARS
at The Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government State-owned Assets Supervision — EREARAF(1098HK) 2 JEHITES - 25 EEREA
and Administration Commission. At present, Mr. MOU is also a non-executive B R{THERESEEBLTH TIERS -

director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). Mr. MOU has extensive

experience in corporate governance and administrative management.
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Mr. LIU Chong, aged 58, an Executive Director since 30 December 2010 and
a Vice President of the Company since April 2010. Mr. LIU is also a vice president
of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and a
director of Shum Yip Shahe (Group) Company Limited. He holds a bachelor’s
degree from The Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics with major in
Accounting and he is a senior accountant. Mr. LIU is also a director of various
members of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he used to serve successively
as a deputy general manager and financial controller of Shenzhen SDG Company
Limited (F3ITh 2 £E B R A7), a director and financial controller of Shenzhen
Petrochemical Group Co., Ltd., a director and financial controller of Shenzhen
Health Mineral Water Co., Ltd., a director of Shenzhen Tellus (Group) Company
Limited (200025.S7), and an independent director of Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng
Group Co., Ltd. (000034.S7). At present, Mr. LIU is also a non-executive director
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (2318.HK). Mr. LIU has over
30 years of experience in finance and accounting management.

Mr. LIU Chong

Executive Director H/TE =
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Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 66, a Non-executive Director since 11 May 2006. Dr. WU
holds a doctorate degree in Economics and conducted post-doctorate research
work in theoretical economics at The Nankai University in the PRC and was
conferred a professorship qualification by The Nankai University in 2001. Dr.
WU served in various positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
1984 to 1995 and served as the president of the Shenzhen Branch. From 1995
to 1998, he served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government.
From 1998 to 2000, he served as the assistant to the Governor of Guangdong
Province.

Dr. WU served as the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong Investment
Limited (270.HK), the director and honorary president of Guangdong Tannery
Limited (1058.HK), an executive director of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(754 HK), an independent non-executive director of Yingli Green Energy Holding
Company Limited (NYSE:YGE) and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (3968.HK),
respectively, a non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (855.
HK), an executive director, a non-executive director and vice chairman of China
Aoyuan Property Group Limited (3883.HK), and an independent director of China
Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. (600999.SH) and an independent director of China
Life Franklin Asset Management Co., Ltd. At present, Dr. WU is a non-executive
director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (886.HK), and an independent non-
executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (966.HK),
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (392.HK), Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited and China CITIC Bank International Limited respectively. Dr.
WU has rich experience in finance and corporate management.

Non-executive Director FEH{TE S
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Mr. LIU Shichao, aged 46, a Non-executive Director since 18 January 2017.
He is a director and the chief financial officer of Shum Yip Group Limited and a
director of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from Zhongnan
University of Finance and Economics (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law) majoring in accountancy. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics and the title of senior accountant. Mr. LIU was the deputy head of
statistics and assessment (budget finance) department and the deputy head of the
second division of enterprise department of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government.
Mr. LIU was a director and the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Energy Group
Co. Ltd. (000027.SZ). He is currently also a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd
(000014.S2), a director of Kashi City Shenzhen Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (BT REIIEREHEAR A R), a director of Shenzhen United Assets and
Equity Exchange Co., Ltd. ()T EEER ZHBRMERAF) and a director
of China Resources SZITIC Investment Co. Ltd. (R ZEBZRZEBEAT). M.
LIU has considerable working experience in financial management and financial
auditing.

Mr. LIU Shichao

Non-executive Director 3EE{TE =
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Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 68, an Independent Non-executive
Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and a commissioner in the Strategy & Development
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he
was the deputy chairman, chief operating officer and executive director and
responsible for the Intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and
Intermediaries Supervision Departments of the Securities and Futures Commission
until 31 December 1997. In addition, Mr. WU also served as an independent non-
executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (188.HK), an
independent non-executive director and chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultural
Holdings Limited (renamed as China Finance Investment Holdings Ltd.) (875.HK)
and an executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (536.HK).

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Independent Non-executive Director B 3FH1TESE
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Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 61, an Independent Non-executive Director since 27
September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds
a master’s degree in Business Administration from The University of East Asia.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI had worked
for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was also an
independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited (1383.HK)
and a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company Limited (000089.S2).
Mr. LI is currently a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(270.HK) and an executive director and financial controller of GDH Limited, an
executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (124.HK), an independent non-executive
director of Hans Energy Company Limited (554.HK) and China South City Holdings
Limited (1668.HK). In addition, he is appointed as a committee member of the
12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province
on 17 January 2018 and appointed as a standing committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province on
27 January 2018. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the Council of the Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra Limited, a management accounting advisor of the Ministry of
Finance, PRC, the vice chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering
Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, and the president
of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association Limited.

Mr. LI Wai Keung
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Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, aged 60, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate degree
in Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG has extensive
experience in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade. Dr. WONG
is active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (2B ARREZAR). He is also the
chairman of the Land and Development Advisory Committee, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority and the Protection of Wages on Insolvency
Fund Board. Dr. WONG was appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2012
and 2017 respectively for his valuable contribution to the society.

Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director of Huayi Tencent
Entertainment Company Limited(419.HK), Concord New Energy Group Limited
(182.HK), Redco Properties Group Limited (1622.HK), Sinopec Kantons Holdings
Limited (934.HK) and Guangnan (Holdings) Limited (1203.HK), which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David

Independent Non-executive Director B FJEH{TEE
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Mr. WANG Minyuan
EHE LA

Mr. WANG Minyuan, aged 58, engineer, is currently a Vice President of the
Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. WANG joined the Group in August
2012. Prior to this, Mr. WANG had served successively as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Expressway Co., Ltd.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from The Zhejiang University.
He has over thirty years of extensive experience in engineering design and
construction and corporate management.

Mr. LIANG Kaiping

Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 59, is currently a Vice President of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated
from The Wuhan University, holding a master’s degree in history. He joined the
Group since 2000. Prior to this, he was the director and president of Shenzhen
Futian Investment and Development Co., a general manager of Shenzhen Futian
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., and an associate supervisor of Office of Futian
District Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. LIANG has over thirty years of experience in
corporate management.

Mr. DONG Fang
#j el

Mr. DONG Fang, aged 45, is currently a Vice President of the Company, Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
The Hunan University with a master’s degree and a senior engineer qualification.
He joined the Group since 2006 and served as a general manager of the real
estate department and investment department of the Company, and a deputy
general manager of Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. Prior to this, he
used to work in the Transport Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. Mr. DONG
is currently the non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.
HK). He has extensive experience in corporate management, property investment
and operation management.
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Mr. FANG Shaoye

Mr. FANG Shaoye, aged 49, is currently the General Manger of Finance
Management Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. FANG
graduated from the Renmin University of China and holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics and has the title as senior accountant. Mr. FANG joined the Group
since 2009 and held the position as deputy general manager of Shum Yip Pengji
Holdings Company Limited. Mr. FANG has extensive expertise and experience in
finance management.

Mr. ZHU Guogiang
R S A

Mr. ZHU Guogiang, aged 44, is currently the General Manager of Capital
Market Department of the Company. He obtained a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology. He joined
the Group since 2004, and held positions as general manager of investment
department and strategic management department of the Company. Prior to
this, he worked in Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings Ltd.. Mr. ZHU is
currently a non-executive director of Coastal Greenland Limited (1124.HK). Mr.
ZHU is familiar with the real estate market and property development process and
has maintained good communication with investors.

Ms. WONG Yin San
e+

Ms. WONG Yin San, aged 51, is the General Counsel of the Company and the
Secretary of the Board. Ms. WONG joined the Group in September 2014. She is a
solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked in the corporate department of an international law firm.  She also
previously held a senior position in a listed company in Hong Kong. Ms. WONG
has extensive experience in the legal, regulatory, corporate finance, compliance
and corporate governance fields.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) strongly believes that good
corporate governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year 2017, except for code provision E.1.2 that
our Chairman, Dr. LU Hua was not able to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 8 June 2017 due to other business commitment. Our
President, Mr. HUANG Wei chaired the meeting and, together with the chairman
of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee and
other directors, were present to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under continual
review to ensure their consistent application and to improve our practices having
regard to the latest developments including any new amendment to the CG Code.
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Board of Directors

Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, supervising and evaluating
business and financial performance of the Company, determining appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and
ensuring operational efficiency and effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive
corporate governance framework with appropriate risk control measures and
aiming to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
details of the responsibilities, membership and activities during the year of
each of them are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.
These Board committees assist the Board to discharge its duties while the
responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business management are
delegated to the executive directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in corporate structure, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, selection of directors,
changes to remuneration policy for directors and senior management, terms of
reference of board committees, as well as major corporate policies.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the conduct of the
business and development of the Company, including reports on significant
matters. Besides, all Board members are provided with monthly management
updates which contain periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook
and business related matters of the Group. Should independent professional
advice be considered necessary by the directors, such kind of services would be
made available to the directors upon request.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution
of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and five non-executive
directors of whom three are independent non-executive directors. Our
independent non-executive directors constitute not less than one-third and
non-executive directors constitute more than half of the Board.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung, our independent non-executive
directors, have served the Board for more than nine years. The Board considers
that they have continued to exercise independent judgment on the matters of the
Group and there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact
on their independence. The Board therefore considers that Mr. WU Wai Chung,
Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung remain independent, notwithstanding the length of
their tenure.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the criterion set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

All directors, including the non-executive directors, have a specific term of
appointment which is not more than three years. Each director has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company and pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, every director, including the non-executive directors,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
One-third of the directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general
meeting and eligible for re-election by shareholders. Also, any director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company
and be eligible for re-election by shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed
for the re-election of each director.

The Board members do not have any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Brief biographical particulars of the
directors are set out from pages 37 to 45 of this report.
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Chairman of the Board and President

The roles of Chairman of the Board are performed by Dr. LU Hua, whereas the
roles of President are performed by Mr. HUANG Wei. The Chairman of the Board
is responsible for leading the Board to formulate good corporate governance
practices and procedures together with the directors, determine the strategic
directions, business plans and investment proposals of the Company, assess
its performance and supervise the business affairs of the management in
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President is responsible for
overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the implementation of
plans efficiently.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of
the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular Board meetings and
nine special Board meetings were held in 2017. At the Board meetings, the Board
reviewed significant matters including the Company’s business development,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and half-year report
and discloseable and connected transactions. At least fourteen days’ notice of
a regular Board meeting was given to all directors who were provided with an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and the
accompanying board papers were sent to Directors at least three days before
the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of
each Board meeting were circulated to directors for their comment and record
respectively. In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board
also held a separate meeting with non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors without executive directors present on an annual basis.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and
General Meetings

The attendance record of each director at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meetings in 2017 is set out below:

Board

Meeting
EFE

o2
=

No. of meetings held BITM R R 13

Executive Directors HITES

LU Hua (Chairman) BE (£E) 913

HUANG Wei (President) =& (#5) 10/13

MOU Yong 2B 9/13

LIU Chong 2|= 11/13

Non-executive Directors FHTES

WU Jiesi RER 713

HUANG Yige' aicl -

LIU Shichao? 2R 12/13

Independent Non-executive BIIEHTESE

Directors

WU Wai Chung Michael RER 12/13

LI Wai Keung EX-t 13/13

WONG Yau Kar David =RE 11/13
1. Resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017.

2. Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in securities of the Company
by the directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the directors, all directors
confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development Programme
Each newly appointed director will be provided with necessary induction
information and given briefings by external counsels to ensure that he has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company also updates directors on any latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. During the year, the Company
had arranged an in-house training for the directors.

A summary of the training records reported by the directors for year 2017 is set
out as follows:

RIS R A
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Type of training covered*

PR 15 5l ey AR B¢

LU Hua B
HUANG Wei =E
MOU Yong =
LIU Chong ElES
WU Jiesi R
HUANG Yige' il
LIU Shichao? 2|t j£82
WU Wai Chung Michael Rz
LI Wai Keung e
WONG Yau Kar David R 5

#

1. Attending briefings/training seminars/conferences relevant to the industry, business and

their duties
2. Reading industrial and regulatory updates/monthly management reports etc.

The Board is regularly kept up-to-date on key events, the performance, position and
outlook of the Group through the monthly management reports.

Notes:
1. Resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017.

2. Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 18 January 2017.
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Board Committees

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions. The
respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, who
are all equipped with commercial and financial skills and experiences required for
understanding of accounting information. It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung and
other members are Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor
and monitoring the effectiveness of external audit, supervision of internal audit
and oversight of the integrity of financial information and the financial reporting
system, overseeing internal audit, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The Audit Committee performed the following in 2017:

Financial reporting/external audit and internal review
—  Reviewed the 2016 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and recommended the same to the Board for approval :

—  Reviewed the 2017 half-year financial statements, half-year report and
results announcement and recommended the same to the Board for
approval;

—  Reviewed report submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit of the
2016 annual financial statements and their independent review of the 2017
half-year financial statements;

- Reviewed and discussed the observations and recommendations on the
financial reporting and control matters set out in the 2016 management
letter submitted by external auditor;

—  Reviewed the representation letter issued by management to external
auditor in connection with their audit of the 2016 financial statements;

—  Reviewed with the external auditor their plan for statutory audit of the 2017
annual financial statements, including the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations.
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Risk management, internal control and internal audit
—  Reviewed the evaluation report on internal control and risk management
systems for year 2016 issued by the risk management department;

—  Reviewed with the risk management department on the risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness, the overall risk
management, internal control and internal audit work progress and findings,
and the adequacy of resources and staffing for such functions.

In the meeting held on 26 March 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed and
approved the 2017 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and considered reports from the external auditor. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems for year 2017 issued by the risk management department.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other members are Mr. LI
Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of non-executive
directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting such
remuneration. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

No director or any of his associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider
factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of directors, employment
conditions of other positions within the Group and whether their remuneration are
performance-related.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the director fees
of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive directors and
other incentive rewards such as grant of share options to directors and
senior management. In January 2017, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendation to the Board for the remuneration in respect of the appointment
of Mr. LIU Shichao as non-executive director.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out below:

BE_Z—tHF+-A=1T-HLFE RFHEE
SANMRREEAR ZHFMEFIMT :

Number of Individuals

Remuneration Bands I E A
HK$1,000,000 or below 1,000,000/ 708k A T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 70 21,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C 22,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 or above 2,000,001/ 08k A 2

The particulars regarding Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration and
the five highest paid employees are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the financial
statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two of them are
independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to determine the policy for
the nomination of directors, to set out the nomination procedures and criteria to
select and recommend candidates for directorship. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year 2017, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and opined that it is adequate for independent
and effective decision making. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and
recommended to the Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2017. The
Nomination Committee also assessed the independency of the independent
non-executive directors.

In January 2017, the Nomination Committee reviewed and recommended to
the Board in relation to the appointment of Mr. LIU Shichao as non-executive
director. All appointments of directors are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. In assessing potential candidates for the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers the diversity perspectives as set out in the paragraph
below. Notwithstanding the diversity perspectives, all appointments to the Board
are based on merit, having regard to the ability of candidates to complement
and expand the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision.
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The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, a copy of which is available on the Company’s
website. The Board recognizes the benefits of a diverse Board with members
possessing a balance of skills, experience and expertise which complement to
the business success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the following
corporate governance duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e o review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors;

e o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. Management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage the risks to the
Company to the maximum extent, in order to identify and manage these risks so
as to understand, reduce, mitigate, divert or avoid these risks. The Board hereby
explains that the systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to meet business objectives, and only to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Structure

Board Oversight
Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board

Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk management framework is established
and maintained by the Group.

Oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework.

Oversee management in their risk mitigation efforts.

Risk Management, Reporting and Communication
Risk Management Department

Being the specialized risk management department, is responsible for the
construction and operation of the comprehensive risk management system of the
Group; guide and supervise the overall risk management of other departments and
the respective enterprises which they belong to.

Risk management: Regularly conduct systematic risk evaluation and carry out risk
audit to major businesses in advance.

Internal control: inspect, evaluate and optimize the implementation of internal control
system, to avoid the risk of implementation.

Internal audit: carry out multi-level audit, to implement the risk of rectification,
prevention and operation of audit.

Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management framework has
been conducted at least annually and provide such confirmation to the Board through
the Audit Committee.
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Performing Daily Risk and Monitoring Responsibility HITRERERKERES

Functional Departments, Risk Management Departments of Subsidiaries and BEEERFT - W11 3 ) e B FE AFFT R (BN

Individuals

o Responsible for carrying out risk management procedures and internal control e BETHREEHNTRREEEFRANE
measures in their daily operations. PRI o

o Regqularly review the risk profile and report to the risk management department and o TFHRGERMAILGEESEEERB LS

management on the risks within their respective operating and functional areas. ERfRRRRREZDREREEITER -

Risk Management Process

The Company adopts an integrated “bottom-up” and “top-down” risk review
process, requiring the heads of functional departments and business units of the
Company to participate in identifying operational risks and incorporate them into ,\;&glj VB A S zm)\ﬂlﬁﬁip%&j;g%;m;q: B
various business and decision-making processes, including strategy formulation, KRBT - £BEE - £33 - Beol K& R
business development, business planning, capital allocation, investment decisions, T APEELAESES LM%BA

internal controls and daily operations, to enable

R Ay B
/RETT‘?&?H [BTmLEl RS [hEMT] BEE
Rigipa iz BRORBAENPAIREBHMPEES

(1)  Comprehensive identification and prioritisation of all significant risks (1) 2 EHFIEERNLAENESKER - THETER

throughout the Group, BF
(2)  Escalation of significant risks at the right managerial level, 2 BERERLREZEENEEERR -
(3)  Effective risk dialogue among the management Q) EEEERRERETENER-
Bottom-up Process BTmENER

o Business units and functional departments identify, evaluate, propose and implement . %f%ﬁli FRARIBESHIEBREERNNEA
risk management solutions for specific operations within their terms of reference; and BEGETRBHRG 7 RO E’-T/iﬂzﬂ
report annually to the risk management department of the Company on significant A?:Tiﬁtr&%ﬁ P WHFERARRAE

risks identified during the risk management process. B ERERRERBER uﬁk)”u'JE’JEKﬂ 5 o
EBFHE B }|L£¥ Q %%%/ﬂb%ﬁ ’ Eji N

e The departments of the Company are responsible for inspecting their own business o

processes, collecting and sorting out the internal and external risk initial information
within their scope of functions extensively and continuously. The risk management
department regularly screens, abstracts, compares, classifies and combines the
initial risk information collected by each department and draws the risk coordinates
map based on the risk evaluation results of each department and preliminarily
determines the management priority of various risk of the Company, formulates risk
management strategies, and proposes and implements of risk management solutions.
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The Risk Management Department of the Company, through aggregation, filtering
and prioritising processes as well as consultation process, compiles a corporate
annual work report on comprehensive risks and Evaluation Report on Internal Control
and Risk Management Systems.

The Risk Management Department of the Company reports their works to the Audit
Committee annually and submits Evaluation Report on Internal Control and Risk
Management Systems to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Top-down Process

The Audit Committee examines the new-born risks or significant strategic risks that
may have a significant impact on the Company in the long run, and reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company.

Inaddition to the risk evaluation function, the management from the functional
departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating the financial and other risks
in different areas of the Group from the aspects such as investment auditing and
strategic planning, financial management and legal compliance respectively, and
forms a normalized mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly carry out systematic
significant risk evaluation, so as to achieve dynamic management for significant
risks.

A normalized mechanism for risk evaluation has been formed, which regularly carries
out systematic significant risk evaluation, to identify, evaluate and analyze all kinds
of existing or potential risks in current business development, and timely tracks and
monitors the moving trend of significant risks, control the progress and effectiveness,
S0 as to achieve dynamic management for significant risks.

Prior comprehensive risk evaluation and audit is required to be conducted for
significant business such as tender, bidding and listing of land, equity acquisition,
joint venture and partnership etc., in order to achieve such an operating mechanism
that the audit opinions without prior risk evaluation will not be submitted to meetings
for approval, thus the significant business risks has been effectively controlled.

Annual review is performed to strengthen the systematic and standardized
construction for internal audit.

AREBREESRARE BERKFOHS
BURGBREF RECFX2ARRERSF
B TERE R (MRS kR EE R R
RE)

AR EBREENEFATSRREEREHT
{E - Y2 (MREERRARER R 5]
E)HERZBERETEEM

mLEmTHERF

ERZBERFERENRAREAAR
EBENEATENNEARIBANEER
B mat AR R EE kAR RGN
o

BRARREFEREESN  BEHFIEEERD
EREEGRBERE  MBERE iR
ARETHRERNRAEERTREADN
PR EmEE - AR R
B EHRRAGEERRRFGEIE B
RTEARRDEEHR -

BT BB BRI THRRRS
GERERFEIE HENLERRTR
ERBENSEERETHER  FEND
o YRERRENEARBRECES &
TERNMKA - BRTEARBRDHEEE -

BB REKE AEAFSERX
FBERVAZIMET2EORBFENE
% BRESAARFEEZSLTERER
LEEENETRE EXEBRREET
BRI S o

FEETR  MRAELENHEL &
ElLER -



62

Shenzhen Investment Limited ¥ BAR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Corporate Governance Report
o X REE &

A T B

DR A BB S 4R R 42 1R #5C0S0 (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) JA T~
BRAETZ - RAIERERSSFEHABELER
Bl B8 R ETREN GRS - RIDRBEELR
% BB EREEY ERFREREREEAS
AEFE - KA AR RSEERERER R
LRRE 45 BURRH - BRERIGFEMK
DENBEERERERZFTERS -

Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is based on the principles under the
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission).
The internal control and risk management systems are seriously evaluated and
reviewed annually by the risk management department of the Company, the scope
of which covering five aspects such as control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring measures and information and communication in
order to assess whether the internal control and risk management systems is
sound, appropriate, effective and sufficient. The risk management department
annually forms an evaluation report on internal control and risk management

systems.
Principal Policies and Measures of Internal Control FTERPE BRI
Control Environment EHRIE

The Company has established a code of discipline of corporate governance policy,
human resource management policy, regulatory business operation and governance,
as well as regular review and refresher training on key ethical practices.

The Company has compiled the human resource compilation system. Through
implementation of the management guidance manual, the human resource concepts,
policies, systems get further unified and standardized, and the policy get more
transparent; in achieving the corporate objectives of the Company, the accountability
has been implemented for each employee as to the internal control responsibility.

The Company has, based on the need of management, formulated the Management
Measures for Contracts and the Guidance on Professional Technical Review for Major
Projects, as well as modified administrative regulations such as the Management
Measures on Mobile Officing and the Management System on Informatization
Construction, so as to further improve the effectiveness and operability of such
systems.

Risk Assessment

The risk management functional department identifies and assesses the systemic
risks faced by the Group by conducting regular risk inspection; by having the regular
risk management reporting system of subsidiaries together with the activities of risk
assessment and control for significant projects and businesses, it can control the risk
situation of subsidiaries as well as identifying and assessing the changes that may
have a significant impact on the internal control system.

In addition to the risk management functions, the relevant functional departments of
the Company are responsible for identifying and assessing financial and other risks
in different areas of the Company from the aspects such as strategy planning and
investment auditing, financial management and legal compliance.

Compile a comprehensive risk management report and submit it to the Audit
Committee for consideration and timely take corresponding risk management
measures.

e RAMNELEFRELABRER ANBREEK
R BEEXBEFEREATIENLETA
BB RERERTHTE P MEBE -

o RAMETANERHERS - BEEEH
THEREETFM EANERES K
RBEGIE-—FHR-MRE  BREM
W HEIRRMEEBRBRT  UE
FETEABEFNEEL  ERFAHE -

e REARBREETE HITT(EREEM
B CERNBEBEXRMAERED E7]
T(BBMAEEWE)  (ERIEREES
B)SERHE £ ARBHENEREN
AR

BB

o EREERBEAMBETHREARRME
BRI R E RN R R  BAK
BhExrHRBREEREHENHEANR
B ¥BRERFEREE  HHEEER
RAVTETTERS] - BRI ET b I B B AR ES
BEERELBATENEE -

o KREREEBEIN  REABRMEINPIED
B RERRER, MBERE iR
ARETER XA KB AR REEDN
s Rt o

o EAGHARREEREURIBEREZR
F%  YRERERBHBRNORRERER -



63

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Corporate Governance Report
o R &

Control Activities BT

Ensure that policies are implemented effectively through the development of policies
with specific requirements and formulation of procedures.

Key control systems and processes, including budget and cost control, submitting
management report, corporate policies and corporate daily activities, for approval,
review and division of duties through financial reporting systems and processes. The
internal control system of the Company includes a mature organisational structure, a
clear definition for the duties and powers of each unit. The Company has established
policies and procedures for major business functions and business units.

The Company has formed a set of effective performance appraisal mechanism
through years of experience. In 2015, the Company established and circulated the
Administrative Rules on Supervision and Management of Audit Rectification for the
first time, which included the completion of audit rectification into annual appraisal
indicators for related subsidiaries, and complete a circular managerial accountability
mechanism of audit rectification.

Monitoring Measures

Continuously inspect compliance and conduct risk management and internal control
reviews.

The Board Office and relevant functional departments are responsible for the overall
assessment and monitoring for the established procedures to ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and to monitor the compliance with applicable laws and other key
provisions.

The internal audit is performed by the Risk Management Department of the Company,
which is responsible for independent auditing towards risk management and internal
control.

In 2017, the Company established and circulated the Management Measures
for Contracts, in which prior due diligence and feasible study is required for
important contracts, to promote standardized, routing and institutionalized contracts
management, so as to establish and perfect contract management system. The
Board Office ensures that the capacity to prevent and control the legal risk gets
further enhanced.
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Information and Communication

e Implement, maintain and continuously develop business and information management
systems to support the business and operations of the Company, including financial,
information disclosure and collaborative oversight.

e Disseminate corporate information in a timely manner through the intranet of the
Company, collaborative office systems and corporate e-mail system.

e Establish and implement the website of the Company and shareholder communication
policies to ensure that shareholders receive comprehensive, clear, transparent and
timely information about the Company.

Internal Auditing

The Risk Management Department is responsible for the internal audit of
the Group. It reviews the risks involved in daily operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries by using the audit plans and procedures set out in the
Comprehensive Risk Management Manual and the Interim Measures for
Internal Audit Management it established, and conducts regular post-evaluation
reviews on internal audit items to ensure the effectiveness of risk management
framework.

Each year, following the strategic plan of the Company and based on the
operational management needs and the annual work arrangement of the
Company, the Risk Management Department determines the priorities of internal
audit work and formulates annual internal audit plans.

The annual internal audit plan shall include the following basic elements:

1) Annual work objectives of internal audit;

2)  The specific audit items to be implemented and the order in which they
should be implemented,;

3)  The audit resources allocated to each audit item.

resnE

o Eift KERHERME %ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ%
B AXERRANEBREE  BENEK -
EERBERBRAEES -

o NEMAEE  BRBEARFERARE
i’g%/db &Bﬁ'{%%ﬂlﬁ{ﬁlm °

o ARAMURBERBARRORILNEEER

BRREGEHARMNZEBMERRENE
é\c

P

ARERRMRRSENSET  ERARIO(ZE

RREEFM) & <<W*B%ﬁrlf’ﬁ§i§ TR Fi5
MF AN E R B - A AR RNBEENA
FEEEGENER - WHABEIRB MERRTE
RS IARE B B IR R RN ©

RRERREFERRARNBKNE RELEER
FENAANFE TR BEAMEF TEE
B BIEFEARETE

FRENBESHEZERUTERAAR
) REEAFEIEER:

HEETAE RELKIER

3 BEFNRBAIENENER



65

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Corporate Governance Report

e X TE S

According to the Interim Measures for Internal Audit Management, the items must %8B (NEBEET TESIBETHE) - WERTTEREH

be audited shall include the following:

Type of Audit
B2

Economic Responsibility Audit
RERER

[tem Audit
JRE &

Post-Evaluation Audit
EE

FREE TSR :

Content
AE

During the three-year tenure of the corporate management team, at least one internal
economic responsibility audit shall be performed

CEELMFIFAERDE  FEETEVIRENEER TS

The departure of a leader of enterprise requires an economic responsibility audit
CEEEABT  REETEERES

For significant investment projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
BARERE - WFAFTEETEDNRER

For on-going operating projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
FEKEERE  B3FAREETEDIRER

After the investment projects are all completed, a comprehensive post-evaluation is
required towards to their operation and economic effectiveness
REBEZBTAE  REAHBENCERRSETE2ENRTEST

In addition to the above, the Risk Management Department will also conduct % Filtéh EBRE BT RELEBRERER
specialized internal audit in respect of functional departments and subsidiaries, RAREELEEE IR AT GEENIEHEE M
having considered the actual operational and management situation, the work — EEEIER - BB MEBO LKL BEHET
focus of the year as well as the risks faced by the Group as assessed at the HIENYEHFI/E EHmEREEYHATINES
beginning of each year. The risk management department conducts internal & - IR THIEBH#ITANETEE -

audit supervision towards following matters of the wholly-owned and controlled

enterprises of the Company:

e The implementation of the relevant financial laws, regulations, rules and o BEXR HFENERTEMMPEBET S LR X

regimes by the state, government and superior authorities;

The implementation of the operating guidelines, policies, rules and
regulations formulated by the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of
the Company;

The soundness, rationality, effectiveness and implementation of internal
control systems and regimes;

Financial revenue and expenditure, asset quality, operating performance
and other related economic activities;

The establishment and implementation of various operating plans, planned
budgets;

Important economic contracts, investment projects, mortgages loans or
provision of guarantees, infrastructure projects, etc.
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Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal
Control and Main Procedures to Address the Lack of Internal
Control

Based on the above risk management and internal control systems, the Risk
Management Department of the Company conducts regular review and evaluation
in accordance with three aspects of risk management, internal control and
internal audit, to identify the deficiencies of internal control and improve the
system process.

The Risk Management Department establishes a work plan for the coming year in
the later part of every year, which sets out the objectives and scope of the audit.

Internal auditing includes the testing of the monitoring on the finance,
operation and compliance. The Risk Management Department shall engage an
external accounting firm to issue an annual internal audit report, and the Risk
Management Department shall, towards the deficiencies in monitoring raised by
the accounting firm, make rectification on the details of the audit disclosed by the
internal audit report and on the audit results of the department concerned.

Towards the identified deficiencies of internal control, the Risk Management
Department communicates the issues with relevant functional departments
or subsidiaries in time, put forward measures of rectification and establish
corresponding policies after discussion with management, and circulate a notice
of rectification to the functional departments or subsidiaries, so as to urge
enterprises to complete the rectification within the prescribed time.

During this year, the implementation of the rectification towards enterprises
turned out good, and passed the second round of testing on internal control
conducted by the accounting firm.

The Risk Management Department has not identified any significant deficiencies
of internal control when conducting the internal control works during the year.
Based on the results of the audit and the feedback from management, the
management believes that the existing internal control system is still valid as a
whole.
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Review on Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal
Control in 2017

The Risk Management Department has predicted and analyzed the possible
risks to the operations and management of the Group in 2017. According
to the assessment results, there are 3 major risks faced by the Company in
2017, namely strategy implementation risk, resource security risk and asset
management risk. The Risk Management Department has put forward operational
and responsive measures and strategies towards these risks, and during the
year, has simultaneously strengthened the audit in advance for major business
risks, carried out special risk audit for key projects, and monitored the changes
in corporate risk profiles through regular evaluation of financial risk warning
indicators including solvency, asset operation capability, profitability and capital
operation capability.

During the year, the Risk Management Department has conducted internal audit
and examination on rectification of audit opinions on the subordinate enterprises:

° Conducted specific audit on non-local projects. Specific audit on
11 non-local projects was conducted. During on-site investigation,
the investment condition, operation and management and economic
effectiveness of each non-local project was checked, and audit opinions
and advice was formed accordingly. The audit showed each non-local
project had a management system in place, project investment and disposal
process were in compliance with laws and regulations and each project was
developed, operated and managed in a standardized and orderly manner.
Consequently, the overall economic effectiveness was satisfactory. The
audit also identified some problems and risks existed in such projects and
gave corresponding management advice. The subordinate enterprises also
complete rectification pursuant to the notice of rectification within specified
periods.

e  (Conducted specific audit on the engagement of intermediaries. A
specific audit was conducted on the engagement of intermediaries
by the Company and Nongke during the period from 2014 to 2016,
including the engagement of auditors, financial advisors, asset appraisal
firms, legal counsel and other services, focusing on the management
of the engagement, the quality of service and effectiveness of such
intermediaries. The audit identified corresponding problems and risks,
mainly the engagement of intermediaries records management need to
be strengthened, management of intermediary service contract was not
regulated and lack of established evaluation system in relation to the quality
of intermediary service, and also put forward corresponding management
advice.
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° Conducted annual internal control audit. For the general flaws in internal
control found in annual audit of internal control of the Group by the
accounting firm, including insufficient original certificate management, lack
of leasee credit management system, no systematic and all-around due
diligence being conducted on new suppliers as required etc., all of them
have been rectified one by one and all flaws in internal control discovered
during the year were rectified. Thus the accounting firm has issued an
unqualified audit report on internal control.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system of the Company for
the year 2017, the scope of which including financial, operational and compliance
controls, as well as the progress of overall risk management and internal control.
The annual review has also taken into account the adequacy of the resources,
qualification and experience of staff in accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions of the Company; and the sufficiency in training courses
received by the staff and related budgets.

The Audit Committee and the Board have also reviewed the Evaluation Report
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2017 issued by
the risk management department. The Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient as a whole.

Procedures for Handling Inside Information and Internal Control
Measures

The Company requires that any department or individual shall keep any
information which may constitute inside information in strict confidentiality
and shall not leak or report the contents without the prior approval of the
Board. The Board makes timely disclosure decision on the inside information (if
necessary), and disclosure of the inside information shall be in charge by the
office of the Board. In this connection, executive management and other relevant
employees who are privy to unpublished inside information are reminded of their
responsibilities to comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which provides employees with
reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns about possible improprieties
related to the Company, a copy of which is available on the Company’s website.
In 2017, the Board had not received any whistleblowing enquiry or complaint.

Company Secretary

The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has confirmed
his compliance with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is Ms. Edith Wong, our
General Counsel.
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Constitutional Documents
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year.

Directors’ Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the preparation
of financial statements of each financial period which shall consistently adopt
suitable accounting policies and to comply with the accounting standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the
financial position, the results during the period and cash flow of the Company in
a true and fair manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report in this report.

External Auditor
During the year, the services provided by KPMG and the fees for such services
were as follows:

Audit fees:
Financial statements audit fees: HK$4,350,000 (2016: HK$4,250,000)

Other service fees:
Interim review: HK$1,000,000 (2016: HK$1,000,000);

Acting as reporting accountants for a major transaction: RMB900,000 (2016: nil)

Communication with Shareholders

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication channel setting out
the dialogues that the Company are in place to promote effective communication
with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided with timely
information about the Company and encouraging them to engage actively in
communication with the Company and to exercise their rights as shareholders in
an informed manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a corporate website
(www.shenzheninvestment.com) where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual and interim reports to
shareholders, announcements, business development and operations, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public’s access.
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The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
face-to-face communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each issue at the general meetings.

Investors Relations

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
persons with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet with
investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress and
strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-financial
information that is relevant and material, for instance, we publish unaudited
contracted sales performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond
promptly to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
However, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selected parties.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “C0O”"), the
Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings (“AGM”) and direct
enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

—  Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the
CO.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention
to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the
directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become
subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.
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—  Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution
if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic
form (by fax; 852-2723-2263); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director can be found on the website of the Company headed “Investors
Relations” under the “Corporate Information” section.
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Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Board
Office at the below contact details:

Address: 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
No. 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email:  ir@shumyip.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2723 8113
Fax: (852) 2723 2263

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants, the
Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at the
below contact details:

Address: Level 22 Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email:  is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group consist of property development for sale,
property management and property investments for rental income. The property
development process is vertically integrated from land acquisition, project
planning, material sourcing, construction and project management through to
sales and marketing to ensure high standards in every aspect. The Group’s
professional property management team manages a variety of types of properties
including government offices, office buildings, residential estates, villas and
science and technology parks mainly located in Pearl River and Yangtze River
deltas as well as the central region. Our investment property portfolio includes
commercial, residential and industrial buildings and car parking bays, which are
located mainly in Shenzhen. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 20, note 21 and
note 22 to the financial statements, respectively. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the financial
position of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 100 to 241.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: a final dividend of HK10.00
cents per share and a special dividend of HK5.00 cents per share), which subject
to the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, are payable on or about Friday, 17 August 2018 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
8 June 2018. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share
which was paid on 20 November 2017, the total dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 will amount to HK18.00 cents per share (2016: HK22.00 cents
per share).
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Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” respectively from pages 10 to 17 and pages 20 to 36 of this report
and the paragraphs below.

Law and Regulations

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property management
and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject to the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. In respect of the laws and regulations relating to
the environment, they include, but not limited to, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection (2 A REFEIRZREZ), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution (#
2= AR A AEE R )5 RRIR0TA)%) and the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone as well as other
provinces where the Group operates etc.. The Group attaches great importance
to legal compliance, and carries out all the business activities in compliance with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations.

Key Risk Factors

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
operational results or growth prospects leading to a divergence from expected or
historical results. The following paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there may be other
risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could become material in the future.

Macroeconomic Risks

The overall economic downturn and capital market risk. The downside systematic
risk in China’s economic transformation and the risk of the shrinking wealth
effect caused by fluctuating capital market will bring all kinds of uncertainty to
the Group’s operating environment. The Group keeps track of the macroeconomic
changes at all times and takes corresponding measures as and when necessary.

Industry Risks

There is a downside risk in the real estate market in China, in particular the real
estate market in Shenzhen. The income from property business accounted for
approximately 80% of the Group’s total operating income, and in the Group’s
income from real estate sales, the income from the real estate sales in Shenzhen
has a higher proportion. Therefore, if there is a downside risk in the real estate
market, especially the real estate market in Shenzhen, this will have an effect on
the Group’s sales revenue and profitability. The Group closely monitors the sales
position at all times and adopts strategies with flexibilities to cope with the risks.
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Exchange Rate Risks

There is fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s main assets are
located in mainland China while the Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong
dollar. The Renminbi exchange rate may increase or decrease. A decrease in
Renminbi exchange rate can cause the depreciation of the Group’s assets and
earnings denominated in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting
currency.

The Group did not adopt any financial instrument to hedge against exchange rate
risk in the year. In future, the Group will monitor the exchange rate risk, apply
financial instruments to hedge against the currency risk.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operations will be affected by multiple risk factors related to the
real estate business. Inadequate internal processes or personal misconduct and
external partner’s breach behavior, or other factors beyond control may have
certain negative impacts on the Group’s operation. The Group will continue to
optimize its management, enhance its operational capabilities and improve its
internal control so as to avoid such risks.

Policy Risks

In 2017, Shenzhen and other cities have been under an environment with
extremely stringent policy control, while the changes in and the efforts in
implementation of the policies including restrictions in property purchase, selling
price and mortgages shall have an impact on trading volume and selling price
of real estate market. For instance, the policy in respect of limitation in property
selling prices may affect the sale prices of the Group’s properties. The Group
may adjust the contracted sales plan and the launching time for part of the
projects based on the release and implementation of policies. This will affect the
contracted sales of the Group. In addition, with the establishment of a long-term
mechanism for real estate and the improvement of the policy of both rent and
sale, the Group’s strategy may also be adjusted to increase the rental business,
which may have an impact on the composition of operating income.
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Highlight of ESG Report

The Group has been committed to actively take on the corporate citizen
responsibility to protect the environment, striving to achieve a win-win situation
for enterprises, shareholders and business partners. In order to observe the
social responsibility management system of the Group, and regulate various
environmental, social and governance measures, the Group has made reformation
in respect of information management and information disclosure during the year.
For information management, the Group has adopted an online system to collect
information about environmental indicators. It was the first time for the Group
to use an online platform to effectively collect environmental information, which
further facilitated the systemization and standardization of the environmental,
social and governance information collection. For information disclosure, the
Group has engaged a third party to examine the key ESG information selected,
S0 as to reduce disclosure risks of information and ensure that the Group strictly
discharges the environmental, social and governance responsibilities.

Insisting on the operating concepts of low pollution and low carbon, the Group
encourages development of sustainable buildings by actively adopting green
construction standards. The Group is committed to construct an eco-friendly
building environment through green construction to achieve a win-win situation
for environmental quality and green ecology. In addition to environment, the Group
is also concerned about the interests of employees, charity investment, qualify of
products and services.

The support from stakeholders is essential for the development of the Group.
The Group has attached great importance to the suggestions and advices of
various stakeholders and consistently implemented and strengthened the existing
communication mechanism. In the preparation of the 2017 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, the Group actively collected advices from various
stakeholders (including government authorities, investors, business partners,
customers, employees, suppliers, industry associations, etc.) through various
channels and understood their specific views on the environmental, social and
governance work of the Group. These advices and views are considered as key
reference by the Group to disclose report information of the year and make
decisions of the future sustainable development. During the year, the Group
carried out again a special stakeholder survey programme on the environmental,
social and governance issues of the Group, and in aggregate collected needs
and expectations from 456 stakeholders. Based on the results of the survey
programme, the Group has refreshed the analysis matrix of aspect importance.
Moreover, the Group carried out effective communication with the managements
and employees in different departments through 8 interviews. In order to meet
the expectations from the parties and to clarify the importance of the various
aspects of ESG, the Group shall respond to various parties with a more proper
and detailed environmental, social and governance report.
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The Group attaches great importance on protection of interests of employees and
diversification of employees, and also values talent’s training and sustainable
development. Meanwhile, the Group actively participates in poverty alleviation
and community volunteer work, and strives to provide diversified services to and
create greater value for broader communities through various ways including
continuous development of wisdom park, strengthened business management,
building a health platform for elderly and continuing a business model of “real
estate + service”.

Please refer to the “2017 Environmental, Social and Governance Report” to be
issued by the Company for details.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year is set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Properties
Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 242 to
248.

Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in note 20, note 21 and note 22 to the financial statements
respectively.

Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$986,070,000 of which HK$886,449,000 have been proposed as
final dividend for the year. Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 104 to 105 and note 36 to the financial statements
respectively.

Interest Capitalisation
Interest of approximately HK$464,165,000 was capitalised during the year in
respect of the Group’s property development and investment projects.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

Donations
During the financial year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$17,304 for charitable or other purposes.

Directors

The list of Directors is set out on page 4 of this report. Mr. HUANG Yige resigned
as a non-executive Director with effect from 18 January 2017. Mr. HUANG Yige
has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other
matter relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company. Mr. LIU Shichao was appointed as a non-executive
director with effect from 18 January 2017.

In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr.
HUANG Wei, Mr. LIU Chong and Mr. LI Wai Keung will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election.

The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year of this report is available on the Company’s website at
www.shenzheninvestment.com under the “Corporate Governance” section.

Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 37 to 47 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts
None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Material Interests in Transaction, Arrangement and
Contract

None of the Directors or his connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by
the Group and subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest
in a business which competes or may compete, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Mr. HUANG Wei is the president and a
director, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr. HUANG Yige (resigned on 18 January 2017) and
Mr. LIU Shichao (appointed on 18 January 2017) are directors, and Mr. LIU Chong
is the vice president, of both Shum Yip Holdings Limited (“SYH”) and Shum Yip
Group Limited (“SYG”). SYH and SYG, through their subsidiaries and associates,
have interests in property investment and development businesses in PRC.

In addition, Mr. MOU Yong is also a non-executive director of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK), an associated company of the Company, whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and engages in
property investment and development businesses.

Emoluments of Directors and Chief Executives and the Five
Highest Paid Employees

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the financial
statements respectively.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (“Share Option
Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:—

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and reward
to the participants to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

2. The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are the employee or
director (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of any member of the group comprising the Company, Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, Shum
Yip Group Limited, the holding company of Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited, and their subsidiaries and associated companies from time to
time (the “SY Group”) or any employee, partner or director of any business
consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and
to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may at it absolute discretion
determine.

3. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adopting the Share Option
Scheme. That 10% limit was refreshed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 19 June 2014 whereby the Company was authorized
to grant further options carrying rights to subscribe for up to 538,252,770
shares, representing 10% of the total number of the Company’s shares in
issue as at the date of the said meeting, under the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 582,084,944 (of which options to
subscribe for 218,269,731 shares had been granted and were outstanding),
representing approximately 7.22% of the shares in issue of the Company.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to each participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue, unless otherwise separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. Further, any
grant of option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
him in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of date upon which the option is granted
and accepted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be held, nor
any performance target which is needed to be achieved before the option
can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified
at the time of the offer.

The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided that it shall
not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the date upon
which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall be made
with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8.  The exercise price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and shall 8. {IFENAREEC2EET  VEELANTY

be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as Bed  (BEBARIMERAR ([HRA])
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong FHBBRAMERRARHRREE B 2T
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (i) the average closing B RiBXAEARERMETATRNAE
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily BEROEBAAEEER ZFHKRHIE -
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date

of grant.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 22 June 2022 9. HREHEARRERZE-_E-_—EXA=-+=
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated B BRIFREEFMETABERBITRLE -
therein.

Please refer to note 35 to the financial statements for further information of the — HEEEME S EiER - BT HRAM 35 -
Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 139,048,000 options were granted, 58,749,763 options were F R 139,048,00017 BERAE IR 1+ 58,749,76317 B %

exercised, 13,155,362 options were lapsed and 130,743 options were cancelled  #E247{5 + 13,155,36217 B Mk i 2 5k i [ 130,74317 B ik

under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2017, 196,385,731 options EEREERETESE R —+E+=-A=1

granted under the Share Option Scheme were still outstanding. —H - BEBRETEF T 2196,385,73110 B R &)
ARITIE ©
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The particulars of, and movements in, the share options outstanding under the TYHFERNEREST BB TR TE 2 ERE
Share Option Scheme during the year are set out below: B

Number of share options
BREYE

Other Date of Exercise Exercise

At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled changes At 31 grant of period of price of
January during during during during during  December share share share
2017 the year the year the year the year the year 2017 options options options

i
Se-tF RER RER RER RER A By waR

-A-H xR iH Regy = ERERS BRETERR

Directors
E
LSUﬂua 7,830,000 - 5,706,000 - - 1022612 3146612 2812014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.333
E:
- 7,712,000 - - - 144985 7856985 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022™* 3436
%thez 3
(Fisx2+3)
@QGWei 3,196,000 - 1,000,000 - - 282133 2478133 2772015 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 3.01
HIE
- 7,326,000 - - - 137,728 7463728 2062017 20/6/2019-19/6/2022™* 3436
%theZ, J)
(W2 3)
MﬁO%Yong 5,246,000 - 4,404,000 - - 1,083,147 1,925,147 28172014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019" 2.333
- - 5,168,000 = = - 97158 5265158  20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022"** 3436
%thez 3)
(Fzt23)
g?ﬁhong 5,246,000 - 4,006,000 - - 683,722 1923722 28172014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019 2.333
5|5R
- - 5,168,000 = = - 97158 5265158  20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022+** 3436
%the 2,3
(Bt 3)
21518000 25374000 15,116,000 - - 3548643 35,324,643
Other employees
AttEE
77,745,600 - 39911763 13,155,362 - 12658218 37,336,693 2812014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.333
3,948,743 - 1,770,000 - 130,743 457245 2505245 2772015 28/1/2016-27/1/2019 3.01
6,920,000 - 1,952,000 - - 440,101 5,408,101 14/6/2016  14/6/2016-27/1/2019** 2873
- 113,674,000 - - - 2137049 115811049 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022** 3436
%theZ, 3
(FHx23)
88,614,343 113,674,000 43,633,763 13,155,362 130,743 15,692,613 161,061,088
Ig\aﬁgregate 110,132,343 139,048,000 58,749,763 13,155,362 130,743 19,241,256 196,385,731

[SIAY

* Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review:— * BREBIE T AT E T ZTRIBEXIRR -
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Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

A TR BB R LI

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

1A A L Pl AR < TR HArA

40% at any time from 28 January 2016 to 27 January 2017
—E—NF-A-t+N\BEZZE—tF— A=+ tRZEAERE
70% at any time from 28 January 2017 to 27 January 2018
—E—+F-A-+tN\BEZZE-\F-AZt+tAZEMEMHE
100% at any time from 28 January 2018 to 27 January 2019
—E-NE-A-t+NBE-_ZE-hE—F-++H2EmAERH
** QOptions shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review:— o BRERE T RTEEFRBEZRR

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

A TR BRE RSP

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

AR L I RB A < 1T ]

40% at any time from 14 June 2016 to 27 January 2017
T REAATEAE-Z—+tF— B -ttHZEIAEMH
70% at any time from 28 January 2017 to 27 January 2018
B+ FE-A-+N\BEZZ—\F— B = t++ B2 EAERH
100% at any time from 28 January 2018 to 27 January 2019
—E-\E-A-+N\BEZ-NEF— B+t B 2 AR
*** Qptions shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review.—  **  BEREARIZ T RITEEZRFEZHRIR

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

A{TERRERR L

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

AR PIRB R 2 1T 1 A

40% at any time from 20 June 2019 to 19 June 2020
ZE-NEARAZTREZZEF AT NA 2 EMERE
70% at any time from 20 June 2020 to 19 June 2021
TETEXNATHEZ - —FXATAHZEARRE
100% at any time from 20 June 2021 to 19 June 2022
TR -FRAZTHREZZ S XRAT AR ZAEMEMHE
Notes: MsE -

1. The number of unexercised share options and the exercise price may be subject to 1. ROFEERBREYSE RTEESREA DTN AL

adjustment in case of alteration in the capital structure of the Company. Pursuant to the
announcements dated 18 August 2017 and 20 November 2017, the Company adjusted
the exercise price and number of options outstanding with reference to the terms of the
Scheme and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange
relating to share option schemes dated 5 September 2005. The adjusted number and
exercise prices for each batch of share options and presented in note 35(a) to the financial
statements.

BEDMAR - RE-_ZF—LFN\ATNBERZ
T E+ A tHZAE  ARRREER
RERT B 6 50 K B 22 P L AR SRR BB A H B
—TRRFNA TR RS RO T 5 B
RITERBRETTEE R BB M A - BHULHER
W2 AT B BB R AT B 15 R MY 7E35(2)F
R
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2. The closing share price was HK$3.49 per Share on 19 June 2017, being the date
immediately before the day on which such options were granted.

3. Being the offer of the grant of options subsequently accepted by the grantees and deemed
to have been granted on the offer date (i.e. 20 June 2017). The initial number of options
offered to be granted to Dr. LU Hua, Mr. HUANG Wei, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr. LIU Chong
and the employees were 8,740,000, 8,302,000, 5,856,000, 5,856,000 and 128,808,000
respectively.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company were as follows:—

Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying shares of the
Company:

2. BEOR_F—tFAATIA (EERBRABER
BRHERAZAH) ZWHEREMRI49ET

3. HREEEMBREEBEEARAEMR LR
AERREAH (M _Z—tFXA=-+H) K
o ZURARERL EREE BBLER
RETEUNEBRZFENBEREZE D5 A
8,740,00017 - 8,302,00013 5,856,000 * 5,856,000
19 12128,808,00017 °

R i

R-F—tF+-A=t—R FREAZEZNES
TBRABRARR REMEEEZE (EEREHFRE
B0 ([FH5RBEEH) EXvEl) 2Bt - HEk
i REFFEEREE S LB GRISXNVHET R FS
DBANEGARBREBRERARAMERAR (B
) ez RRE (BRBREESRBEHRD 2 ZE
EXREFIBRERLEDIARR) - RTHERR
%%%&ﬁf%%%%% REBEZETM s %m

CERBARRRAZ EMBETAESETES

%E+#WUE #WD%%@$QE&%§%Z%
HIORRWT :

A A ety (Tt 1) BB Bty Z 5 A

Underlying shares

Number of
Name of director Capacity Shares
EEin BnE 8
LU Hua Beneficial owner 1,133,713
ZE= ExBAA
HUANG Wei Beneficial owner -
=E ExBAA
MOU Yong Beneficial owner -
23 EnBEAA
LIU Chong Beneficial owner -
EES ExEAA
WU Jiesi Beneficial owner 3,400,000
HEER ExBAA
LI'Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,180,880
FRR ExBEAA

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 8,058,124,983 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2017.

pursuant to Aggregate Percentage of
share options interests Shares in issue
RIEERE HEETRRDZ
il a2 afEs ARt
11,003,597 12,137,310 0.15
9,941,861 9,941,861 0.12
7,190,305 7,190,305 0.09
7,188,880 7,188,880 0.09

— 3,400,000 0.04

- 1,180,880 0.01

M - BoIREEE-_T—tF+=-A=+—82
B2 17R% 17 8,058,124,9838 5T & -
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Interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are stated in detail
in the preceding section “Share Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2017, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations and none
of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

EENANRIBRE 2 EEN L6 (B3] &
AT -

BREXHBEEN BE-Z—tFT-_A=1—
B BEARTEERERTRABRRARERALE
{HREEEE (EE B EF LB GRIIFEXVE) 2 ERK
D REERDREFTEREREESRBEHRIEXV
BETRESD BAMNERRNR RBR 2 BEIOAR
(BEREES LIS R ABEURE AR AR
BZREIAR)  RLBRREZEFLREHAF
RMFAMANAFEZELMERAIAR - HRE
BRETRBNMGARD R RBRTZBRIAR

B EXFREEI  REREMER  ARRHELE
AMERRSE2EEFATHE CEZTHUBAR
AIRARBAB RO REFES (BEES) ME
Mo REEAES  AREZEBIET/GEUTT
THEETMAREAR R RERBAE 2 B S HEH
BN R B TR AR SRR -



87

Shenzhen Investment Limited B4 RR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Directors’ Report

5

Substantial Shareholders FER R

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 AARNBEMNESSESTTHRAEMFH  R_B—
December 2017, the interests and short positions of the shareholders (other  +&+=-A=+—H RE (KAFRESHESTHA
than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short BN RARARRMD RABERD P EEBRIEES R
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall HE GO EXNDE2REINDBZIEXRARNRNBEE 2
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part B RARE  HERERANTBESALBAEENE
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the  3366BEE Y XXM R RARNT :

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:—

Interest in Shares: WA REDS

Number of Shares
’in g8

Percentage of
Shares in issue

Capacity Long Position Short Position (Note 1)

HEETKRR

2B

4] S KE (PitzET)

Shum Yip Group Limited*(“SYG”) Interest in controlled corporation  4,965,577,232 - 61.62
REEBFRAR (DREERE]) XEEE s (Note 2)
(PzE2)

Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“SYH”) Beneficial owner 4,897,856,631 - 60.78

#x (&E) BRRA ([FX (RE)]) EmfEaA

Interest in controlled corporation 67,720,601 - 0.84
REEE 2 s (Note 3)
(Ft3E3)
Notes: FE
1. The percentage was calculated based on 8,058,124,983 Shares in issue as at 31 1. ARl IEEEE—_T—+F+-_A=+—H2
December 2017. BB 1T 178,058,124,983 /%51 & °

2. SYGis deemed to be interested in the 4,965,577,232 Shares which SYH is interested in 2. FEURZ% (RME) BRXEE g2 AMBEAA -
by virtue of SYH being its direct wholly-owned subsidiary. MAXERERE RN AR (RE) HAEER
4,965,577, 232 X R R % o

3. These 67,720,601 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned 3. #% %67,720,601% A% 15 MSuccessful Years Holdings

subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Shum LimitedZi\ﬁWE’AEEJIHE%EJ‘E?\@ A
Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF”). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and ﬁﬁSECEeSquJTYeaLSEHoIdlngs\LlrrﬂtedEEgﬁ%ﬂiéﬁﬁﬁﬁ
accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 67,720,601 Shares. RAE] (DRES@]) 2EER - AXRSBERRE

(@) MEEWBRR - Fit - &% (RE) ¥
RAHEA 567,720,601 RAR (D P BV -
* For identification purpose only
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had not been
notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 42 to the financial statements. None
of these transactions constitutes non-exempt connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Shares Issued

During the year, the Company issued 408,960,525 new Shares, of which
258,807,500 new Shares were issued and allotted to the shareholders who
have elected to receive their 2016 final and special dividends by way of scrip
dividend in lieu of cash, 91,403,262 new Shares were issued and allotted to the
shareholders who have elected to receive their 2017 interim dividend by way
of scrip dividend in lieu of cash and 58,749,763 new Shares were issued and
allotted upon the exercise of options under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Company’s shares issued during the year are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the Companys Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities during the year.

BREXHBEEEN BE-_T—tF+_A=1+—
B BEEMAL (FRAEZRERTRARRIN
ZHERRBENARR RN LABERN P HERE
FEHRAEKGIEXNVBE2REID 2 BT R
REZBZ LG RIIEBRAFEZECM 2 BER

VPN
KE o

T 5% 4 64 B

ML EREARE BB RERREF
EERE - ARAIMETUSFEENHERAEHR
ARAFTRORERARAT UM EHTERAR
AVEATIBD A0 (L] hh 5 ) B R 1 88 10

A i 0 22 5
REEXRHBRTETNEABB IR 5 BHRY
BHMERMTLR - ZEXFLTIER ETRANE AR
HTZFHEWER S/ HERERS

TR AR

FRN ARQF D % 17408,960,5250% F Bk 3 0 H
258,807,500 ¥rix 9 B %17 R B & TEEUR S RH
REUBEHAUBM T - FRBRE REFFIRE
FIRR S 91,403,262/ 3T R0 B 217 M BL 8 T B = AR
BROREUREFANM T —+FFERBHRK
R 258,749, 7630 ¥ 10 B IR IR BE AR A A BN BE AR AR I
TR R T R R B o

EN - AAFRDHEITRD 2 FBEEN BB HRFK MG o
JEE ~ &SR AN R 2R 5

ER ARAREEFAMBARLERE -
B E AT L e 5 o
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares are held by the public.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement”) dated 9 October 2013 entered into
between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to a principal amount
of US$235 million (or equivalent to approximately HK$1,833 million) transferable
term loan facility and up to a principal amount of HK$1,654 million transferable
term loan facility (“1st Facility”) were provided to the Company. The 1st Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in four instalments of various percentages of the
total amount of borrowings, with all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on
the date falling 60 months from the date of the 1st Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 25 August 2014 entered into
between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to a principal amount of
US$435 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,393 million) transferable term
loan facility and up to a principal amount of HK$2,510 million transferable term
loan facility (“2nd Facility”) were provided to the Company. The 2nd Facility shall
be repaid by the Company in three instalments of various percentages of the total
amount of borrowings, with all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on the
date falling 60 months from the date of the 2nd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 4 December 2014 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$400 million transferable term loan facility (“3rd Facility”) was provided to the
Company. The 3rd Facility shall be fully repaid in 36 months commencing from
the date of the 3rd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“4th Facility Agreement”) dated 29 May 2015 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$200 million term loan facility (“4th Facility”) was provided to the Company.
The 4th Facility shall be fully repaid by the Company in three instalments with
the last repayment date falling 60 months from the date of the 4th Facility
Agreement.

ARSI

REFE2FERBEERREAEY  REARAREN
RRAEREREZAAL  ARAARANAREFR
g ARRBREL T PRARAEE EITRIDHI25% °

LRG3 21 Rz PR B A

W ARERBEREERTREZRITAE

BERRAR (EAERA) BEFHRIR-_Z—=F+
ANBIYz—EH® (F-0OREHRRE])  —£&
= A& 58 £235,000,000% 70 (3 HEE 7 491,833,000,000
BL) CNEETHEFRER—E5a428A
1,654,000,0008 c 2 TEEEHEFRE ([E—F5
) BEREFALA - Z—4REERALAS N
BIEERBIRANEDSLEE FEAEESEAR
F—MEERF R BRER S TEAZEHEREE -

BEAAR (EABHIA) BEFTRAR-ZT N
FNAZ+HRBFTUZz - EHZE((E-_NaER
Z1) —E K582 A435000,000% T (KEER
#93,393,000,000%5 ) T EETHEFNRER —£&
=R E % A2,510,0000008 Tz A EEEHETRE
([E-28%]) ERETARE - FE/MEERA
DREANZHEREBRETRANENLEE  FIERE
BERARE_NRERAABRARER A ATEAE
ARHEE -

REALE (ERERA) BE—RIR-_FT-OF+
—“RAWBFN - REHE (F=REHE])  —F
&5 A% % /400,000,0007 7T 2 FI ¥ E F B E R A
([F=2RE]) CRETARE - F=FHEANE
=R EHEEBEHER =t NEAZAEHEE -

READE (EREFA) B—RTR-_T-HFIA
—tABRANZ-REHE (FE0REHE])  —F
&= A% % 4200,0000008 T EHEHRRE ((FM
ERE]) CRUETALA - EWNERBAMALDA D
“HBHER RER-ZERAPAITLFNNARE
mEE B ER N TEAZAE -
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By an agreement (“5th Facility Agreement”) dated 7 March 2016 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a syndicate of lenders, a US$230 million
transferable term loan facility and a HK$1,000 million transferable term loan
facility (“5th Facility”) were provided to the Company on the terms and conditions
as stated therein. The 5th Facility shall be repaid by the Company in instalments
with the last repayment date falling 60 months from the date of the 5th Facility
Agreement.

By an agreement (“6th Facility Agreement”) dated 9 August 2017 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$500 million transferable term loan facility (“6th Facility”) was provided to the
Company. The term of the 6th Facility is 48 months commencing from the date of
the 6th Facility Agreement.

On 16 August 2017, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“7th Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility up to a
principal amount of HK$600 million (or its equivalent in United States dollars)
(“7th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The Company shall repay in full to
the lender each borrowing of a portion of the 7th Facility on the date falling 48
months from the date such borrowing is made and all other sums (if any) then
owing under the 7th Facility Agreement on the date falling 54 months from the
date the lender notifies the Company that the conditions precedent under the 7th
Facility Agreement have been complied with.

On 18 August 2017, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“8th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to US$65,000,000 (or its
equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“8th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The
8th Facility shall be fully repaid by the Company in three instalments with the last
repayment date falling 36 months from the acceptance date of the 8th Facility
Agreement.

On 6 November 2017, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“9th Facility Agreement) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
US$135,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“9th Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the 9th Facility is the day falling
36 months from the acceptance date of the 9th Facility Agreement.

On 18 December 2017, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (“10th Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility
of up to HK$400,000,000 (“10th Facility”) with a bank as lender. The term of
the 10th Facility is 48 months commencing from the date of the 10th Facility
Agreement.

BEARR (EAERA) E—REEFARZ
ﬁiiﬂtaﬂiz Emfwﬁﬁfﬂﬁmf)v
—%£ 3% A230,000,000E L2 T EETHERME K
—£ $%41,000,0000008 Tz A EEEHETRE
([ERERE]) BREPHEZERREHRETE
DA FREMEBRALANBEERER £
FABEITUERNBERZE R RFTER - HEA
AR

READF (EREFA) B—RTR-_2—+F/\A
NRFTZZz —Eh# (EADRERR])  —F&KS

R4 ¥8/5500,000,0008 T2 I BEFHERRE ([£
NERE]) CRETFARA  ERERENSERAER
EAMREREEREFTOTN\EAR -
RZE—+ENATA B A28 (EABEZA)
EWMEETEBRAA) BT — %?m$i$ﬁ
600,000,000/ 7T (SkHHE BB 2 Em) 2 EETH
EREE ((5L28E)) 2BExEt ([ELmpeE
H&El) c ARRARELEREZSBAERELA
%tﬁﬁ%@+ﬂﬂﬂ§ammmA¥%aL&%1
CMELHBEBZEE N ZMBEMER (0F) &
am AABAADRRECHBEREE T 2 SR EM
BEETZASETERATEEAEBEREE -

R-Z—tFENA+NH  ARF ((EEBRA) BEH
mﬁﬂ(WEWmA)#ﬁ % 524 %8 /465,000,000
N (FREEEZEL) 2EHEZBE ([ENE

BE]) &R TEN\DREDHE]) - FN\ERE
ARARR D ZHBBEERRER —EEKBHRE

WEN\DRERAERRAER=TEAZEH -

R-Z—+F+— A H  ARF (EEBRA) BEH
RIRT (EAMAA) FH—E&54 5 £135000,000
EN(FHEEEEZET) 2ERETHER ﬂé
(IENERE]) EFHH (BENHBEHRR]) -
NERENE éLmH%ﬁ%nfﬂéﬁm&ME%
ﬁﬁ/ﬁ:ﬂ‘/\flﬂz H /HH °
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On 26 February 2018, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“11th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility Agreement, 2nd
Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement, 5th Facility
Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement, 7th Facility Agreement, 8th Facility
Agreement, 9th Facility Agreement and 10th Facility Agreement collectively
referred to as the “Facility Agreements”) relating to a term loan facility of up to
HK$500,000,000 (“11th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The last repayment
date of the 11th Facility is the day falling 3 years from the acceptance date of
the 11th Facility Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued share
capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China and at any time after the
happening of an event of default, all amounts due under the facilities may be
declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2017, all advances made under the 3rd Facility Agreement
had been fully repaid.

Permitted Indemnity

The articles of association of the Company provides that each Director, Secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance) which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

Audit Committee

The Group’s results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the work of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 48 to 72.

RZE-NFZRAZ+AB AR (EBER
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Auditor B fi

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December AEEHZ - Z—+HF+-_A=1t—"HILEEZHEE
2017 have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire ST HBECHH LS HMEE RS HFEY
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual EEHeAMEEMBRAAARERRERBENS

general meeting of the Company. BRI YHAERBBEEERET -
By Order of the Board RESEH

LU Hua TE

Chairman BE

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018 55 -\ =A=+H
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 100
to 241, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters (continued)

B at S OH ()

Valuation of investment properties and investment properties under development

RENERBRHPRENENMEE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 116.

FRHG R BREN T 1I7RE 1A B HE -

The key audit matter
BRELEE

The aggregate fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
investment properties under development as at 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$26,939 million, representing 23% of the Group’s
total assets as at that date.

A ERER69.39EET  (HERENZRREEN2%

The net change in fair value recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represented 16% of the Group’s profit before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2017,
FAGERERTNAAEESFREEEERE _T—+F1+_
A=+—BILEERTIATFEEI16% o

The Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development, which are located in Mainland China, comprise
shopping malls, office premises, residential premises and car
parking bays.
EEEURPBEAENRENERERTFRENECEENES
BTE  IEWEREES -

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and investment
properties under development were assessed by the board of
directors based on independent valuations prepared by an external
property valuer.

ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%%&%@¢&ﬁ%%%@ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ%%%%%ﬁ3
o MBESARRERETABNEERES (AT afRE

B RSB (BT -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RERANEERN

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
! properties and investment properties under development
included the following:

 RPHRENERRRTREANENGERTIENERER
WZZE—+tGF+ZA=1—0 ESEREVERZEFRENENR |

2

° assessing the competence, capability, experience of the

locations and types of properties subject to valuation,
independence and objectivity of the external property
valuer;

3- FRENBDEEEHNEE - 80 FEEULE REE

MENRRELER  BUMRTENL

e with the assistance of our internal property valuation

specialists, evaluating the valuation methodology used by
the external property valuer based on our knowledge and
experience of other valuers for similar types of properties;

o ERMREMEEESROBHT  RERMALELEY

MR EAMEEROMBANEE - FEINEY R G ER A
ERHMENE

e comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information

included in the valuation models, which included
committed rents and occupancy rates, with underlying
contracts and related documentation;

MBEMHER) EAAEA A KA IHETILE
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Key audit matters (continued) B R ()

Valuation of investment properties and investment properties under development (continued)

RENERBRHPRENENGE (R)

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 116.
FERHG A BRENFITREI6EMEETHE

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRELEHE  RERFNEEL R

We identified valuation of investment properties and investment Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties under development as a key audit matter because of ! properties and investment properties under development
their significance to the consolidated financial statements and included the following: (continued)

because the determination of the fair values involves significant | U HENERERFRENENHEETTIHEOELER
judgement and estimation, including selecting the appropriate | B% : (&)

valuation methodology, capitalisation rates and market rents and,

for investment properties under development, an estimation of costs e discussing the valuations with the external property
to complete each property development project. valuer in a separate private session and challenging
BRI EMERERTPRENENGAMERERNEEEURALER the key estimates adopted in the valuations, including
ETHREACEBYUMMGE  pEE2EENEETE BRI those relating to market selling prices, market rents

ENTIERERERSMLRRERNRAGE (RERDRENLR | and capitalisation rates. With the assistance of our

=Y, 2 /i s i 1 e wn AR | internal property valuation specialists, comparing them
I:il) ERREANRRBETRAVRORERE R~ RHRENF | with historical rates and available market data, taking

into consideration comparability and other local market
§ factors;
§- SITEINEMEEERMEB T REE - WHEETEER
! MESEE (RFEMZEE  mEHeME M EE
) REER - ERMASBDEEEEZOBET - &
BRAMFTEEL L ERTSARSBEELL - WERALM
REMEMTSER

e conducting site visits to investment properties under

: development, on a sample basis, to observe the
development progress and comparing the observed

| development progress with the Group’s records;

Lo MBS ABMESERTREMFERR  UBRERE

3 B UHBRIMNEREETHEERNTIETLE

e challenging management’s property development budgets

| reflected in the latest forecasts with reference to market
statistics for estimated construction costs, signed
construction contracts and/or unit construction costs for

§ recently completed projects developed by the Group.

e ZBMAEHEERAL CEBENERANR/SEEEHI

| TIEANERRE HEFNEAFRENEREENNE
BREERDE
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the all information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

kW 5 e S A B o DA A A £ B
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

A B AR it A T R PR B Y TAT
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

R B R it A B S B ORI I AT ()
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated — HHFME R 5& MERFERENEL (5)
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those ~ HEEHZEBENZED  BEEEWHLEEY
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial ~ AHGAFBERENEHAZAEE  AMBEKERE
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We — 5tEIE - B EZEM RSP HMELEE  BIEE
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes  @FERAAF AR BBRELER  JEEBEBERHE
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we St MR ABTEHE R FIRET BB L EEERL
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the  BH#EEBBELN AR RFRETEERS
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the ~— HUEBZHIE o

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's — HERBUZEMBENENERABARRTER °
report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG ERREMERA
Certified Public Accountants HELHA

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BEPR

10 Chater Road EITER

Central, Hong Kong KFRENE

26 March 2018 —E-\$=A=-+~H
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=ZT—+F+-_A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & #5855} + FrE & 1L ETLHT)

2017 2016
—E—iF —EREF
Notes $°000 $'000
fisE S S
Revenue W 5 10,254,496 21,353,993
Cost of sales SHERUK (6,703,088) (13,083,234)
Gross profit EF| 3,551,408 8,270,759
Other income and gains Hi A RFE 5 566,139 828,743
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBARFG 6 3,676,757 3,599
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of equity BREZRAABEFE 2 RERE |
investments at fair value through RAME ORD),/ EmFeE
profit or loss, net (48) 870
Increase in fair value of investment properties & ¥ N &N 17 1,161,684 | 1,204,139
Recognition of change in fair value ERBREYEE ]
upon transfer to investment properties RANEE 17 96,808 | 654,516
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R AR (232,117) (362,224)
Administrative expenses THHEY (884,183) (956,298)
Other operating expenses Hib & &Ry (368,977) (1,656,121)
Finance costs RUE R 7 (747,532) | (838,167)
Share of profits less losses of joint R RN E =Nl
ventures and associates FEE 844,743 | 1,142,976
Profit before taxation 558 A ) 8 7,664,682 8,292,792
Income tax expense FTSMMAx 9 (2,465,462) (4,821,911)
Profit for the year £ P F 5,199,220 | 3,470,881
Attributable to: Tl fEL 3
Equity shareholders of the Company ARARERBRR 4,950,941 | 3,170,581
Non-controlling interests FEERIER 248,279 | 300,300
5,199,220 3,470,881
Earnings per share (HK cents) FREF (&) 12
Basic B 63.64 42.36
Diluted wE 63.42 | 42.35

FIBE2M B MEBKAEHBRR 20D - A
BAARERERREEFNENRIKKRE 25 - #
IR ©

The notes on pages 108 to 241 form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the
profit for the year are set out in note 13.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=ZT—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & #5895} + FrE & 1L ETLHT)

2017 2016
—EB—iF —EREF
Notes $°000 $'000
k3 T =S
Profit for the year FREF 5,199,220 3,470,881
Other comprehensive income for the year FREM2EKZE
[tems that will not be reclassified to ElreEHHEER%YER
profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of investment —mYE  BERREEES
property transferred from property, LR b =
plant and equipment RENREBMHES |
— Changes in fair value — DA EEZH 7,064 | -
— Income tax effect - FiEHige 33(b) (1,765) : -
14 5,299 | -
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently g ESN DS B IER -
to profit or loss:
— Available-for-sale investments: — Al ﬁ’i?’“ 3
— Changes in fair value - AREE 1,154,816 | (10,785)
— Reclassification adjustments for amounts - RNHERENHEREME
transferred to profit or loss on disposal BEEnze® (15,468) | -
— Income tax effect - FiEHize 33(h) (284,837) | 2,696
23(b) 854,511 | (8,089)
— Share of other comprehensive income of - EERERAREE AT
joint ventures and associates Hip2Ela 223,500 (235,432)
— Cumulative exchange differences -RHENBRARRBEN ER |
reclassified to profit or loss upon Bz 2 E =8 §
disposal of subsidiaries 6 (93,486) | -
— Exchange differences on translation of - BEBIEBERER
foreign operations 3,323,009 (2,918,015)
4,307,534 (3,161,536)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEZENE @ BiRE
net of tax 4,312,833 (3,161,536)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRREW A 9,512,053 309,345
Attributable to: o - i
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AEHBRR 9,000,057 170,542
Non-controlling interests Rk RS 511,996 138,803
9,512,053 | 309,345

The notes on pages 108 to 241 form part of these financial statements.

F18E2M B 2 B ZEN SRR 2 — 37
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5 # 85 Fi % 881 LUE T IR )

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF — s E
TEEET=E SF=E=Er=E
Notes $°000 $'000
FisE SFo SrE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEKRE 14 4,746,901 3,844,311
Prepaid land lease payments BN+ EE 15 37,349 | 36,083
Goodwill EES 16 379,302 322,240
Investment properties &ﬁ%% 17 26,939,445 | 22,807,211
Interests in associates i NI S 21 4,431,186 | 3,994,821
Interests in joint ventures NEEREER 22 4,816,707 | 3,300,931
Other financial assets HEtemEE 23(h) 7,869,007 112,985
Other long term assets HibREABE 24 3,015,861 | 3,188,483
Deferred tax assets ELERBEEE 33(b) 2,028,151 | 1,954,441
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 54,263,909 39,561,506
Current assets REBEE
Biological assets AR 25 333 | 8,136
Completed properties held for sale BEFEZDERME 18 5,977,395 | 7,514,657
Properties under development BRANE 19 39,710,990 | 35,292,229
Inventories 7E 26 115,699 | 93,354
Trade receivables FEHKBE%Z 27 371,047 | 322,506
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENTIE - 3]E REMEWTIE 28 3,799,165 | 1,684,928
Equity investments at fair value through FRBR &Aﬂa‘%ﬂaz
profit or loss B E 23(a) 4,517 | 4,566
Restricted cash XEREES 29 1,817,022 | 2,204,157
Cash and cash equivalents HERELZEY 29 11,167,070 | 9,859,526
Total current assets REEEARE 62,963,238 56,984,059
Current liabilities RBaE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HRBTREMES 30 8,137,680 5,288,454
Trade payables FEfFERFR 31 1,622,921 | 1,116,432
Other payables and accruals Hib T IE&E@?E#?E% 32 22,522,866 | 17,023,915
Due to the immediate holding company FEREEERARRIE 42(b) 1,359,741 | 1,270,755
Due to the ultimate holding company FE SRR A B 2B 42(b) 5,107,312 | 2,850,880
Tax payable JE(RITE 33(a) 7,973,704 8,755,178
Total current liabilities RBREELE 46,724,224 | 36,305,614
Net current assets RBEEFE 16,239,014 20,678,445
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 70,502,923 | 60,239,951
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
e ol EA o =k
Notes $°000 $'000
FisE SEom S
Non-current liabilities ¥REEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HERBTREMES 30 14,765,566 14,468,791
Deferred income BERWA 34 28,187 27,375
Due to the immediate holding company FENEEERARZIE 42(b) 781,549 | 752,362
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIEEE 33(b) 9,826,789 8,770,489
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELAH 25,402,001 | 24,019,017
Net assets BERE 45,100,832 | 36,220,934
Capital and reserves EXRf#E |
Share capital R 36(b) 19,712,476 18,281,191
Reserves i 36(c) 21,755,765 | 14,529,622
Total equity attributable to equity AR AR R |
shareholders of the Company e 41468241 32,810,813
Non-controlling interests SR 3,632,591 | 3,410,121
Total equity EReE 45,100,832 | 36,220,934

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2018.

Huang Wei
R
Director
=

The notes on pages 108 to 241 form part of these financial statements.

Liu Chong
LIS
Director
=

EEeRN S /\GZ AT BRERTETE -

FI8E2M B2 MERAASHBRER 2 — 70 -
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=ZT—+F+-_A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & #5855} + FrE & 1L ETLHIT)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RATRERREE
Available-
for-sale
Share Asset investment Exchange Non-
Share Other ~ option  Capital revaluation revaluation Statutory fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests equity
AfHE
BhiE EEEf, REER EfZD F2k
ke EftfE i EARE il i LERE fE  REEA ] Bt EREE
Notes $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Wi Tr Tn T T Tr fr T Tn T T T Tn
At1 January 2017 RZZ-tE-F-H 118,281,191 (208,140) 62,247 59,019 216,142 11,486 2,104,245 (1,476,426) 13,761,049 32,810,813 3,410,121 36,220,934§
Profit for the year EpgH o = = = = = = - 4950941 4950941 2482719 5,199,220
Other comprehensive income ~~ £AEHAE 3
for the year: i -
Changes in fair valug of other ~ EhEBEEZ | §
fancial assets netof tx  DAEEE BRE 20 | - - - - - 866,112 - - - 866112 - 8612
Disposal of other financial HELHSR
assets, net of tax EE Bk 230b) - - - - - (11,601) - - - (11,601) - (11,601)}
Surplus on revaluation of S ‘ 3
investment property Ve L
transfered from property, RENE |
plant and equipment BfR% - - - - 3709 - - - - 3709 1590 5299
Share of other comprehensive ~ E(RAE A = 3
income of jint ventures AREpRE 3
and associates Y& i - - - - - - - 223500 - 223500 - 23500
Cumulative exchange REEHBATE § :
differences reclassified to EE L
profit or loss upon disposal &7 ZHER § 3
of subsidaries b ! = = = = = = - (93486) - (93486) - (93486
Exchange differences on 3
translation of foreign :
operations - - - - - - - 3,060,882 - 3060882 262,127 3,323,009 |
Total comprehensive income M2 ENE §
for the year g = - - - 3,709 854,511 - 3190896 4950941 9,000,057 511996 9,512,093 |
Final 2016 dividends ZI-AERERE 130 0 = = = = = = - (1150449) (247,728) - ()
Inerim 2017 dividends “E-+ERERE 13 346418 = = = = = = - (596503 (210,085) - (210,085
Acquisition of non-controlling SRR |
interests s : - (60412 - - - - - - - (60412 19914 (40,498):
Exercise of share options fiimE By 182,146 - (417) - - - - - - 1579 - 152729
Lapse and surrender of BRHRRME : 3
share options i = - (3367) - - - - - 3% - - -
Equity-settled share option DY topd i : i
expense B 3B - - 2867 - - - - - - 2867 - 22867
Dividends declared to HEER 3
non-controling shareholders —~ RREE2HE - - - - - - - - - - (300440) (309,440);
Transfer from reteined profits ~~ BEERLEF = - - - - - 883,501 - (883,501) = = o
At 31 December 2017 WoB-tE+-A=1-A 119,712,476 (268,552) 52,330 59,019 219,851 865997 2,987,746 1,714,470 16,124,904 41,468,241 3,632,591 45,100,832§
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=ZT—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & #5895 + Br& & 8L ETLFIT)

Attributable to equty shareolders of the Company

KRAERREER
Avalable-
for-sale
Share Asset  Investment Exchange Non-
Share Other option Capital ~ revaluaion ~ revaluation  Stafutory  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capital TESEIVe TBSEIe TESEIe TEServe TESEIve TESEIVe TBSEIVe rofts Total inferests equiy
THHE
i HEER REE 3% p2alls

B EtEe  BR SARE 0 BR HER ITRR  BR O RERN 0 B BB H6eR
Nots $oo o0 fow S0 o0 fo0 S0 S0 SO0 S0 S000  $00
Mt T /et St T el /el il R

At 1 January 2016 RZE-AE-B-H 17478481 (208,140) 57504 59019 216,142 19575 1837976 1515524 12349784 33325866 2243201 35,569,066
Protfor the year EREH - - - - - - - - 310581 3,170,981 300300 3470881
Other compreensive income FREHZE
for the year W&
Cnanges n far value of otter ~ EHABAEZ
fnanialassfs, et o ta DAEED BEE 2 - - - - - By - - - (B - o
Share of oher comprehensie.  EEASAFREL
income ofjint ventures and DAEf
associaes A - - - - - - - (23543 - (23543 - (23548
Bxchange difrences on BEENER
transltio of foreign LER
eraions £8 - - - - - - - 76519 - 7618 (161497 (2918019

Tota comprehensive income ERzEka

for the year &% - - - - - (6,089 - 2991950) 3,170,581 170542 138803 309345
Final 2015 dividends “I-RERERE 13 751,296 - - - - - - - (959922 (208,666) - (208,666
Inerim 2016 dividends ZE-EnERE 13 15733 - - - - - - - o8y (1915 - [o19,18)
Acquistion of non-controling E-E

intress Ea - - - - - - - - - - 1308915 1398915
Disposal of non-contrling HEFHAR

interests Ea - - - - - - - - - - (1,186) (1,186)
Evercise of share options TEBRE b)) 31 - (5,321) - - - - - - 30,400 - 30,400
Lapse and surrender of BRHRRE

share options e - - (g - - - - - 1,759 - - -
Equty-setted share opton WRERH 2 BiRE

Bipee B3 ) - A - - - - - T T
Diidends deckred o mHEER

non-controling sharefolders hEskRe - - - - - - - - - - (6961 (369612)
Transler fom retaned pofts BB BREER - - - - - - 266269 - (266269 - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-REt-A=1-H 16281191 (208,140) 62,247 59019 216,142 1486 2104245 (1.476426) 13,761,049 32810813 3410121 36200934

The notes on pages 108 to 241 form part of these financial statements. F18E2M B 2 BN ZEM SRR 2 —37
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—F—+F+_A=-+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ( B EEEHS) - BB LB ETITR)

2017 2016
—E—tF TR F
Notes $'000 $'000
ez ST T
Operating activities REER ; 3
Cash generated from operations ReEBEEZRS 29(h) 577,987 11,660,241
Interest paid BAIFIE 7 (1,211,697) (1,045,844)
Mainland China taxes paid BN REARERE (3,791,994) (3,217,599)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from feEES (FTH),/ FEzBs 3 §
operating activities KEFE (4,425,704) 7,396,798
Investing activities REED i |
Interest received BRI 284,074 | 78,135
Proceed from disposal of other financial assets & E i B AEFFERE 27,678 | 1,287
Dividends received from associates Bl E R AR A 144,448 | 99,869
Dividends received from joint ventures BlASARRE 165,153 158,333
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYME HERREBEBRED
plant and equipment | 69,408 ' 3,657
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HE&EREWFEFEHIE 1,763 26,328
Purchases of items of property, plant and BAYE  BEE&EEE
equipment (854,035) | (169,466)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B JEAE R b 2 (40,498) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries =)= = (2,765,682)
Increase in breeding biological assets EEEEYEEEMN = (262)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal of HEMBRARTBELSRA/(GRHE)
subsidiaries FER 6 6,595,393 | (10,779)
Purchases of other financial assets BAHOGREE 23 (6,337,100) -
Additions to investment properties BANREN (711,161) | (514,106)
Additions to interests in an associate NNy il (598) | (10,061)
Additions to interests in joint ventures REBDRERIEM (39,478) -

Increase in loans to joint ventures BIEE AT ZETIEN (955,158) (56,965)

Net cash flows used in investing activites BEZBFA2EEHERE (1,650,111) (3,159,712)
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=ZT—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & #5895} + FrE & 1L ETLHT)

2017 2016
“E-tf —E—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
Pt ST T
Financing activities METEE
Proceeds from shares issued under share REBRET S B BTG 3 |
option scheme g8 35(0)(ii) 152,729 | 30,400
Dividends paid BRRE 13 (457,813) | (727,817
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders 37 - JF#2 B % 32 2 J% &, j (299,600) | (127,013)
Proceeds from borrowings from related parties — BiE¢ 5 (& B 15208 290) | 8,638,157 | 1,640,062
Repayment of borrowings from related parties  {EERE A EE 29(c) (3,986,375) | (2,737,719)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings FITREMEEMEHRE 29(c) 11,069,920 | 4,946,030
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTNEMES 29(c) (8,401,839) (7,270,481)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) RETBHME (A Behe 3 3
financing activities FE 6,715,179 (4,246,538)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRASZEYWEM /(HD) 3 ;
cash equivalents BE 639,364 | (9,452)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNZHERBREEEY | 3
of year 9,859,526 9,708,046
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net JM&E RS 822 FHE 668,180 160,932
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRRERBLEEEY 29(a) 11,167,070 9,859,526

The notes on pages 108 to 241 form part of these financial statements. F10822M B 2 B EN B]E 2 —5h o
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Corporate information

Shenzhen Investment Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company is located
at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) are described in note 4.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings”, &
#(&.E) BB AT]), which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is JFE£EE AR A (“Shum
Yip Group”), which is a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basic of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

AT ER

AINERERLE (TRRF]) A—AREBH
MLz BREERAT » RAFZFEMMFRA
REBNEMBEBIRHREFETLE - KX
RERAMBAR (MEAIFKE]) 2T RE
ST AU

EERA ARRZERERARANEBEM
KL ZIARR —RE (RE) BRAR (TR%E
(£B)])) - ARFZREERARARNPEAR
HAE ([HE]) RINKLZEERE - REE
BERAR (TREEHE]) -

FEEFBOR

(a) AHEH
ZEUBRROBERBH B REER
([BAFBRELEL]) OB RBERTEE
o FANBMELEANERBERASH
frg ((EAgtirg]) BhrmeE
AERNEEYBEREED  BBSHE
Al (e &R fMRE . 884K
S RAINREBRRGHNETE - %5
BBERENFEEBRERIMBRAT
(M pT]) BH EMARRAEEERT
AEERANTIESHBRERENTX

EAEHAAREGETRAREASH
S50 8 R A T AR AT SRR 2 9 3T B
EATERN HRE LA - W20 REEY
RIBBZ ST (A BERBE R H
MRREHBRENRE 2 AR AL
£AR) MaIR2 EHBEAAZH A
B

(b) BABMEZ G
BE-_E—+E+-A=+—-HLEEY
BAVBERRBEARREMNBRRR
AEBRBENFINAE DR 2R -
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basic of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

—  investment properties (see note 2(h));

- leasehold land and buildings within property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(i));

— derivative financial instruments (see note 2(g)(i));

—  financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (see note 2(g)(ii));

—  biological assets (see note 2(m)); and

—  contingent consideration payable within “due to the immediate
holding company” (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

2

FEFRBOR (8)
(b) B WA (5])

REAMBRREMZAEEERELAA
HEEETIEERABRADAETR
(WX BERAE) ZRRo -

- REDE (ZREMEAD)

- HELwREFINE  BEREE
CILEVE

- (TEERIA (2EME20)

- DEATHEESBBEREARLE
FEZBRAREzSBTA (2HK
FF2(0)() ¢

- EDEE (2@ME2m) R

- [ENEEBERARZE] Z2HRR
B (2805E20)

RRNRBEPHERERNNFHREST
EEEBRLTYERRERREE &
B WARRX 2 BESBAOHE - 5
RB& - B REAERRABEER RS
BHEARRERERTAENEMRERS
K MEBBERANERTRKEEEME
RORREE E R & B0 MR E B 1F A B
Rig - BERGRAEAHINMEFR-E -

AEEREENZE M RERRR - &
S EHETERR  WETEYEZH
- AERT @ NMERT AT IR AR
HHERTRE R EE MR R - e
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None
of these impact on the accounting policies of the Group. However,
additional disclosure has been included in note 29(c) to satisfy the
new disclosure requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS
7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities
to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

2

FEFRBOR (8)
(c) HRIBORZES

BRGHMASERMAESKELGEH
MERERZHBBMBRELEN 2SI
BF] - ZEEATHAEB 2 G HEBE
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B &E - AEREEZEHZER - £ A
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with
notes 2(p) or (q) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)(ii)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

2

FEFRBOR (8)
(d) P A w B et (A1)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(f) and
(k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(g)(ii).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree. Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are recognised in accordance with note 2(u(ii).

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or l0ss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill represents the excess of

(f)

U)

(i

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments and other financial assets
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for derivative financial
instruments and other financial assets are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investments in other financial assets

Investments in other financial assets are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Derivative financial instruments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Investments in other financial assets (continued)

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividends earned on these investments as this is recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(v)(vi).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Investments in other financial assets which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
investments. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities that
do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial position
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Dividend income
from equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in notes
2(v)(vi) and 2(v)(vii), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt
securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(k)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in
the course of construction or development at the end of the reporting
period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(v)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 2(j).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with note 2()) up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at the date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
and recognised in asset revaluation reserve within equity until the
retirement or disposal of the property (when it is released directly
to retained profits). For a transfer from completed properties held
for sale to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use are stated at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the end of
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings
held for own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the asset
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to profit
or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect of
that same asset had previously been charged to profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(k)), and is not depreciated. Other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(x)). Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

QOver the lease terms
20%

10% to 25%

9% to 20%

10% to 25%

—  Leasehold land and buildings

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment
—  Motor vehicles

—  Plant and machinery

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assels

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGHER (H)
(j) Leased assets (continued) () MEHE (H)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group () HEFAEEEZENTE

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to HARAKEUELO T BENEE -

the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership MEEBROGEABERNBRHLHE

are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases B R EREREAREE - AEEEE
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 2HEANREERNEE - T2EM
ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with BEMERBHRREEREBEA

the following exceptions: SEMBELY  MoBEALEHEYN - A

THNERBRAN -

—  property held under operating leases that would otherwise - UEEHOFABEREEM
meet the definition of an investment property is classified FTHAFAREMETENY
as investment property on a property-by-property basis ¥ oRBBENENEES
and, if classified as investment property, is accounted for BRAEENE - WA BAKRE
as if held under a finance lease (see note 2(h)); and ME - RBERERNBTHE

MM ¥ AR (28300 2E2()
&

—  land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair - Z“‘.%?TEZUEJEH’EQ B
value of which cannot be measured separately from the EFERNRRBEEALE
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of HERE FWEE ¢@E’J’Aﬁﬂ
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance SHITENTRZURER
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an NEEAAAR BRI
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the REHENTARENEEDR
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by She Bt E - MOMNARE
the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee. HAREASEERILAEN

B s EpA AR REEY
i o
(i) Assets acquired under finance leases (i) HEEBHTARENEE

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are recognised as property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or

WAREESHERNR TEENE
A NEHEERENEERE
AREZRERERE (MAREE
B) NEEREA/DE - BE IR
& mMIBRRERRRNARARR
AEFIBRERLAE - HERHEM
AHERIEENRER (ZZM

valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, SERVENESEENEE) A
where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, DAMRSE E A A S BRI RETE (2

the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(i). Impairment losses

BABREE2()) - BB EAR IR TR 20 AT

are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy BENEFABEAR - HENTAEHW
as set out in note 2(k). Finance charges implicit in the lease HEERAE AMEHANERT -

payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

EEESTHENRERRAHEER
RAEOLEIATNAR - AEEHE
HEANESHERNERETHR -
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(j) Leased assets (continued) () MEEE (5
(iii)  Operating lease charges (i) AEEHLEH

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating WAEEBELEMENETRENE

leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit EXNFEAE  BEROEDZATE

or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered MAOBRRENSTHEASES B

by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more FAEBRAMR - EEEREZE

representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the EEEMEANRGEANEREE

leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit Broh - BEEN 2 HEREIEAD 1ER

or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments BEMFFERBENARPHERR

made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the WHER - AARSEEENS TR

accounting period in which they are incurred. TEEmAME

Prepaid land lease payments under an operating lease is BREGERNBN T EFRR

amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease MEFHNEGZ#EE - 2H27TT

term. When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between R REF I ] Sei D B A - Al

the land and building elements, the entire lease payments are 2HHALEAYE  BEAREZRH

included in the cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a EMORBEL W REF 2 KA

finance lease in property, plant and equipment. B

(k) Impairment of assets (k) EEEWE
(i) Impairment of investments in securities and other financial () REFREMEHEEZREMNE

assets

Investments in securities and other current and non-current RSB AT IR S 5 SR AT

receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are HEREZRESFLEMRERIER

classified as available-for-sale investments are reviewed at HEWFIENS RERARETER

the end of each reporting period to determine whether there NEECREREREEE - BB

is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of BERERERBEFAEEIECEBT

impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention Jl—EsZEEREEH 2R BRE

of the Group about one or more of the following loss events: 1

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - BEBAEBAUKRE :

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in - EBRAY GIMELHRERZ
interest or principal payments; R8s AS

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy - EBERARAIREARESRE
or other financial reorganisation; M GES

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic - Bilf W5 KEREERSE
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the ZAEEBHEBAEETF
debtor; and FER

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an - BERIAREZRABARBER

investment in an equity instrument below its cost. ROBZERERE -
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(k) TImpairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEWE (5)

(i)

Impairment of investments in securities and other financial (i)
assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 2(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(k)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

—  For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEWMHE ()
() Impairment of investments in securities and other financial (i) /}4 FREMZBEEZRERE

assets (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows: (continued)

—  For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

AR EBRRLRRE  RATHR
EE REREMAESSE : (&)

BAEHEREMS - EAH
HEREEHFEERNERNEZ
AEEENOERER T8
EARRMEATEEEED
WEKA (B ImNASEE
&%%)ﬁ@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%Z%
CRZEELIIRBREARE
wmﬁﬁgﬁo

%T1ﬁ¢%$&ﬁ#ﬁéw
HERNREERERRR

B - mﬁ%%@ﬁ@%ff
HggnaEezmla g

=7
s °

fHRABERRENRE L HE
HRREBRRELENSFHA
& Al EERESN
REBERTARD - ZERT
HORER R D RN o

BEBBEZMEREEE -
GEKEZIRERRESE
oh - BB R AR IREL R
W EUERT - RERAR
BEBEERBEREEAR B
AEBEHRREPER  BA
AR R A & B8 B B o TR Uk
R TEZREEBOFIR
FERBENIMEE TR
[ - Hig e LAl EEERE
WNBME B ERES T
BE - BEERRENEMESK
%HE&W%W%&W@&

RERATER



<02

123

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 A% M

<=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

—  prepaid land lease payments;

- goodwill;

—  other long term assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries and associates in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEWMHE ()

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) BEERE (&)

—  Recognition of impairment losses - ERAEBE
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impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals ErmEENREE - BES
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the BRENEREENFETA
year in which the reversals are recognised. B
() Inventories n #H##&
(i) Property development ) YEZRE

Inventories in respect of property development activities are BERWERR 2 FERKARETER
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and FEMAE ZBIEEIIER - KARAE
net realisable values are determined as follows: REERATHAERE :

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion. They are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle.

ERTIE
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGHER (H)
(I) Inventories (continued) () #& &)
(i) Property development (continued) )  YEZRE ()
—  Properties under development (continued) - BERWE (B)
The cost of properties under development comprises BRAYEZKAREREA
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost ZHARER - BRI
of land, aggregate cost of development, materials and K REHERE MRERY
supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an appropriate B IEREMEHER @&
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised &I BB AR B AL
(see note 2(x)). Net realisable value represents the EERA (2EE2x) - A7&
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion BF ARG EERERE
and costs to be incurred in selling the property. BIRAREENELEER
AR o
—  Completed properties held for sale - BEGEZEERME

In the case of completed properties developed by the HRAEERABEZEERMEM
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the 5 RATRANEERDG
total development costs for that development project, JHBREBE CBHERAR
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value HoBE BB FEER
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be FEEREENESTELER
incurred in selling the property. PR

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises BIEGEZEERMEZKAE
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other BEMARENAE  BH@KA
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present L EERERI RN
location and condition. EEREMAA o

(i) Other inventories (i) EtizE

Inventories other than those in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Biological assets

(0)

Biological assets represent cloned orchid flowers recorded as current
assets. The biological assets are measured at their fair value on initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period less estimated
costs to sell. The fair values of the biological assets are determined
based on the most recent market transaction prices. Any change in
fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset is included
in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated with
a customer for the construction of an asset or a group of assets,
where the customer is able to specify the major structural elements
of the design. The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 2(v)(iii). When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period
are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profit less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented
in statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included under “Trade
receivables”. Amount received before the related work is performed
are presented as “Receipt in advance” under “Other payables and
accruals”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(k)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

()

(r)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
to the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss unless
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy for borrowing costs
set out in note 2(x).

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
2(u)(), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted
cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents
in the statement of financial position and cash flow statement.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits

(s)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
participates in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated
by the local municipal government for all of its staff. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 8% to 20% of their
payroll costs to the CPS. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CPS, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of investments not yet recognised
as an expense.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(s) Employee benefits (continued) (s) fMEEMEA (5)
(i) Share-based payments (i)  HRBBEEZ15
The fair value of share options granted to employees is ETEEZBREALERIARES
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase B - HERRTE TR I R i iR e IE
in share option reserve within equity. The fair value is measured e AREFERZXEBETEER
at grant date using the binomial model, taking into account the ERLBHSGHE  TERERERD
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. BER RGNS - EEEEKAERE
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before FTHEERENMVERAGBGRYE B
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total BELTAAELEEEBHADY
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting B WEBBERESSRBIEER -
period, taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.
During the vesting period, the number of share options that NEEHE HEHEBNEREY
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to BYUERN - BAEFECHERN 2T
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/ NAENTMAEREEHFET AR
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless w/MEZTNR BRERBEE
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an RS FERREENER RERER
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option HIEERE -RNGEERS  BRAR
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense TZEBETUAR  URBREBENE
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with MRiEMERSE (B ERER
a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve) except B) ERARERERDARN T
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions EEBNSBEET TLOZM - £
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The BREFGENEARERSEEZER
equity amount is recognised in the share option reserve until RETE (EHABBITRHOHBRAR
either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount HERRSECAE) KEREER
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option (B EERBIRBRFE)
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
Share-based payment transactions in which the Company ARRANBARIEERHBRED
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employee are accounted VAR 7 A LB 2 (9 R A A B B otk
for as increase in value of investments in subsidiary in the AERARMHBRARREBEENA
Company’s statement of financial position which is eliminated & MERGAERERCHIE -
on consolidation.
(iii)  Termination benefits (i) BEEAEF

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(V)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless
it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met;
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Significant accounting policies (continued) 2

()

Income tax (continued)

FEAFBOR (81)

(t)  FreRL (&)
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or -
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to -
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(u)

Financial guarantees
liabilities

issued, provisions and contingent

(u)

(i) Financial guarantees issued (i)
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within other payables and accruals. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is

otherwise estimated

by reference to interest rate differentials,

by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the

guarantee is made

available with the estimated rates that

lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in

accordance with the

Group’s policies applicable to that category

of asset. Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

MEAEREEERAR  ARFN
FEERRFREREERRARER
REREEAR: %K

MEETHREERRE - HEF—
REBEBRAEHER -

- FA-WHREE: %

- TAMBEE RNEAKH
B BEHEEIMEERER
ZEEREAEREE  #iK
FEEERHNNRELER
FIER R ERARERLEE -

CHBEZMBERER - Bl LR AR

EERHBER
MBRRBERBZTA BERA)
RERZEA(HEAD BETERE
BAREBRBEEB LA ZGREDH
BRRMRZBR  AFBAXN
REMESBE AN -

M AKEEHIBER - BRZAA
BRIV AR AR RN SR RS
ERRNZRERA - CEHMBER
ZRRERBEHET2REBURBER
RPHEARS ZEBETARRER
(MAEGZEER) MEE » %2
REEELEE - NERARRAE
BREERZERNTERBIZ A%
BETEREER BN THFARK
UMz EE R R LR (NZEE
ReE Rl St fhat) o MBIEHERZ
RESYEE AR - RERREAR
SEERNILEREE BRER -
i EA B EATRAE - BIRGS
HEREMEE R AR ERER R
BRI



<02

133

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 A% M

<=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(u)
(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in other payables and accruals in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(u)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(u)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(v)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Sale of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers and collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured. Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under receipts in advance within
other payables and accruals.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably:

— revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to
date to estimated total contract costs for the contract; and

— revenue from a cost plus contract is recognised by
reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the
period plus an appropriate proportion of the total fee,
measured by reference to the proportion that costs
incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of the
contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Service income
Service income is recognised when the relevant services have
been rendered.

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are credited to a deferred income account
and are released to profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(w) Translation of foreign currencies (CORRN %25

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. The
results of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(x) Borrowing costs (x) MR
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, Wi ERIEEBEEEREHNEEK
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a A (BN BEILEBASHREEGNERT R
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are BRHE) ERREERAN —BHER
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are B - HiEERAT R EHHEIZ -

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying EERAERBEEREEN—HHERLE
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, AEELEERYRFAR BERALEE
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary BERBEEEEZEERTRENIHE
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. FIUERREEEETEFR - BEBERE
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when Tﬂﬁﬁf’ﬂiﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁE’Jiﬁjiﬁw\
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying EERE SR TR  BEgh HEERA
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete. B AL o
(y) Related parties (v) By
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related @) —RAATHEEZRBRAUTNEHE
to the Group if that person: B AASEMEL S -
() has control or joint control over the Group; () EEH RS AER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAEBEBEEATE 3
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the iy AAEEIAEEGLANE
Group or the Group’s parent. ZEHAE -
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b FEUTENKUHNERERATEE
conditions applies: HEE s
()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group ) HEBEAZERR-—S5EM
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow KERAR (MEFAR - B
subsidiary is related to the others). NAIRRAZAMNB AR ZEEE
EiE) -
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other i) —-HEBERE—ZENBZLQ
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a AREERA (HAS—EE
group of which the other entity is a member). BB RKENANEE D

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. iy MEAETBHAR-F=Fz8
VNS
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other Wy —HEBRE=-AZAEAL

entity is an associate of the third entity. CIE
pos
=
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEGIHER ()
(y) Related parties (continued) (v) BB ()
(b)  (continued) b (&)

() The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v ZEBALAEEIASEIAEH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity ERUNEEASEANBERE
related to the Group. FETE -

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person vy ZEEH@ERTREATES
identified in (a). SRS o

(vii) A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence Vi) (@OEFMEEAATEHZERRE
over the entity or is a member of the key management ﬁﬁ’@iﬁ ZEE(REBEEN
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). NE)MEBEEHRAE -

(viiiy The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, Vi) ZEERIZEEBEF IR
provides key management personnel services to the Group S AN B A= UNGIEEA
or to the Group’s parent. SEYZEENAREH®EE

BB ABRE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family EAMEZFRBERBANZATER
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced HBEBRINIEEYEZATIT
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. HYBMREME

(z) Segment reporting (z) AEHE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item RENBRETBREANRENEHEIE
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial ENeERETHRETAEERRER
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive ANEUESEERRTIEAEERERE
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and AL RERDBRFKMISE BT o
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for RUBREERN  EREELEHBI K
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar TUER - RIESHBEBEELESE
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of REMMRSHEE FEREHEREP
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type BASER - BESEERIRERBEN
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or Eiﬁ&ﬁ*ﬂaiﬁﬁﬁ HEER - BRTIE
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. BREENEIETUES  MZENE
Operating segments which are not individually material may be HERLHZE Tﬁ

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates
Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements are
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year is estimation of fair value of investment properties, which is
discussed below:

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
the properties with similar lease and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources including: (i) current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences; (i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (i) discounted
cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment properties based on
valuations determined by independent and professional qualified valuers.
Significant judgement and assumptions are required in assessing the
fair value of the investment properties. Details of the judgement and
assumptions are disclosed in note 17.
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Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by business units, which are organised
based on their products and services. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments:

(@) the property development segment engages in the development of
residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial and
commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of
both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial and commercial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations,
manufacture and sale of aluminum alloy products and agricultural
products, design and construction of gardens and other businesses.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents, equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial assets and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax payable, an amount
due to the immediate holding company, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before taxation from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit before taxation from continuing operations
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before taxation except
that other income and gain, finance costs, fair value loss from the Group’s
financial instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.
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Segment reporting (continued)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing

market prices.

S 5 A% M

<=5

4

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

ARG (80

NERHERBRENE2ZRAE=TRHHN

it

B RERNRTHELETRS

Property Property Property

2017 development  investment management Manufacture Others Total

“E-t% EL NERE NEER B Hity am

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000

r ST r r r r
Segment revenue: AERE i
Sales to customers HEFRF 6,381,479 929,847 1,820,429 325,645 797,096 10,254,496 |
Intersegment sales PERHE - 16,189 49,538 - 92,237 157,964
6,381,479 946,036 1,869,967 325,645 889,333 10,412,460
Reconciliation b3 |
Elimination of intersegment sales HENBREE (157,964) :
Revenue g 10,254,496 |
Segment results before increase RENELRE ;
in fair value of investment properties ¥ iN3I 2 HiEEE 5,993,308 770,323 171,248 14,091 (118,087) 6,830,883
Increase in fair value of investment ~ BEWEALE
properties byl - 1,161,684 - - - 1,161,684
Recognition of change in fair value BRERENEERED ‘
upon transfer to investment MEED 3
properties - 96,808 - - - 96,808 |

Segment results after increase RENENAE

in fair value of investment b2 I k] 3
properties 5 5,993,308 2,028,815 171,248 14,091 (118,087) 8,089,375 '
Reconciliation % 1
Elimination of intersegment results HHNEREE (109,510) ;
Other income and gains EBARNE 566,139 |
Fair value oss on financial LRIAZALE
instruments, net BR%E (48) |
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMESE
expenses £H (133,742) :
Finance costs BERA (747,532) |
Profit before taxation KR AR 7,664,682
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 pEEE ()

Property Property Property

2017 development  investment management Manufacture Others Total

“Z-tf LI NERE NEER B Hih fam

$°000 $°000 $000 $000 $°000 $000

r r r r r r
Segment assets PEEE | 58,337,980 30,789,340 509,701 150,975 3,913,127 93,701,123 |
Reconciliation % ‘ ;
Corporate and other unallocated PEAREMES ; 3
assets K& 23,526,024 |
Total assefs BEE 17,227,147 |
Segment liabilities SEEHE | 1833895 4640678 752,103 87631 195756 24,015,124 |
Reconciliation % ‘ ‘
Corporate and other unallocated PNEREMEDIE ; 3
labilties afE 48,111,191
Total liablities pafE 72,126,315 |
Other segment information: HttpEER : :
Depreciation nE § 68,234 33,630 23,130 4,042 87,216 216,252 |
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B LHRETE
payments i - - - - 1,149 1,149 |
Interests in associates RS NEER i 2,190,698 105,772 331 15,133 2,119,252 4,431,186 |
Interests in joint ventures REERTER [ 4,610,574 - 15,161 - 190972 4,816,707 :

Additions to non-current segment ERRERRD ; ;
assets during the year* NEEE 53,300 828,952 18,068 3,157 753,240 1,656,717
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4  Segment reporting (continued) 4 HEERE (H)
Property Property Property
2016 development investment  management  Manufacture QOthers Total
I Sy MERE NERE NEER g At ek
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
it it it it it it
Segment revenue: 2ENE
Sales to customers HETRP 17,807,883 764,802 1,556,802 298,050 926,456 21,353,993
Intersegment sales PERHE - 17,402 50,997 - 60,553 128,952
17,807,883 782,204 1,607,799 298,050 987,009 21,482,945
Reconciliation HE
Elimination of intersegment sales O BREE (128,952)
Revenue Wiz 21,353,993
Segment results before increase RENERREEME 2
in fair value of investment properties ~ PiE¥#E 6,380,438 715,068 121,312 38,111 (56,941) 7,197,988
Increase in fair value of investment & WEALE
properties byl - 1,204,139 - - - 1,204,139
Recognition of change in fair value BRERENEEET
upon transfer to investment DMEE
properties - 654,516 - - - 654,516
Segment results after increase REMENAELEME
in fair value of investment LNERE
properties 6,380,438 2,573,723 121,312 38,111 (56,941) 9,056,643
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment results ¥ 7 ER%E (97,033)
Other income and gains ARG 828,743
Fair value gain on financial SBIEZLNE
instruments, net WaFE 870
Corporate and other unallocated ARRAMADE
expenses 2R (658,264)
Finance costs BENA (838,167)
Profit before taxation Gyl 8,292,792
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 pEEE ()
Property Property Property
2016 development investment  management  Manufacture Others Total
—E-NE ESGES nERE NEEE 2 Afth ek
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T i i T T
Segment assets TREE 52,519,669 25,025,456 275,089 157,525 4,050,420 82,028,159
Reconciliation %
Corporate and other unallocated assets A F R Ak KA REE 14,517,406
Total assets BEE 96,545,565
Segment liabilities B8R 13,584,262 3,119,732 717,452 95,614 325,486 17,842,546
Reconciliation HE
Corporate and other unallocated PNEREMEDIE
liabilities B 42,482,085
Total liabilities aaE 60,324,631
Other segment information: At EER
Depreciation nE 61,406 25,285 19,867 3,612 70,437 180,607
Amortisation of prepaid land lease ENTHBEETE
payments 35| - - - - 1,065 1,065
Write-down of properties under BEMYE
development iE 503,499 - - - - 503,499
Write-down of completed properties  #{EEE 7 2&R
held for sale WERE 353,754 - - - - 353,754
Interests in associates REENTER 2,426,225 95,931 309 15,133 1457,223 3,994,821
Interests in joint ventures NCIUNSIL: 3o 3,118,267 - 11,052 - 171,612 3,300,931
Additions to non-current segment FRREERE
assets during the year* PEEE 53,471 582,180 18,126 3,168 68,347 725,292

ENFEFRDOBEECREIENE  BERR
- REWME  THEREREVEE -

Additions to non-current segment assets during the year comprise additions to
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, land use rights and intangible
assets.

ARAEEBAHBHURELBURTEAREZ
RFAREMIERB I EEDLRFEARE - &
TESSRER -

As the Group generates substantially all of its revenue from customers
domiciled in Mainland China and most of its non-current assets are located
in Mainland China, no geographical information is presented.
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5 Revenue, other income and gains 5 Wugs ~ HAb A R AR
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: Wz - HBARFG 2 M T
2017 2016
“E—+tfF —T—RE
$°000 $°000
T ==
Revenue 6

Sale of properties LS 6,381,479 | 17,807,883
Management fee income EEBUIA i 1,820,429 | 1,556,802
Rental income from investment properties LEMERSIWA § 929,847 | 764,802
Sale of commercial and industrial goods HERENTEER § 325,645 | 298,050
Others Hit 797,096 926,456
10,254,496 | 21,353,993

Other income and gains Hitsg AR 7B
Interest income FBIA 415,851 | 263,938
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 42(d)(ii)) FEEBUEERIE (B sFd2(d)i) § - 526,249
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME G § =} 4,081
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & AJ it &% & 2 FIfE § 15,306 | -
Government grants (note 34) IR Bh (Fista4) ] 5,047 | 14,704

Others Hith 129,935 | 19,771

566,139 | 828,743
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6  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 6 HENREARREG
In May 2017, the Group disposed five subsidiaries to independent third RZZE—+FHA FAEERNBUE=FTHE
parties for an aggregate consideration of RMB5,869,721,000 (equivalent AXMWEBRE - BREARARE5869,721,000
to $6,659,974,000), including consideration for transferring equity 7T (18 & 7°6,659,974,0007T) © B EE ZZ S H
interests in these subsidiaries of RMB1,584,032,000 (equivalent to BEREZ RERE A R,584,032,0007T (1HE
$1,797,908,000) and consideration for transferring shareholders’ loans to 71,797,908,0007T) RERERBR TZEMB R A
these subsidiaries of RMB4,285,689,000 (equivalent to $4,862,066,000). ZERERERREAR4,285689,0007T (HHER
The net cash received by the Group from disposal of subsidiaries as 4,862,066,0007C) * i AR EMEXRMAAKED
reflected in consolidated cash flow statement was $6,595,393,000. These W E B B 2 B 2 3R % F (B 56,595,393,0007T ©
transactions resulted in a gain on disposal of subsidiaries (net of tax) of ZERFEYHEWB AR ZHE (HKHE)
$3,325,361,000, being a gain of $3,676,757,000 deducting the related 3,325,361,0007C + Bl #153,676,757,0007T 1 b B
tax expenses of $351,396,000. B 18 3351,396,0007T °
The gain in disposal of subsidiaries is calculated as follows: HEMBABRMEBHENT
2017
—E—tF
$°000
ST
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZBEFSE ; |
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 3,255 |
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FRHIE 7] REMEKFIE 66,199 |
Completed properties held for sale BIEGEZDERME 896,322 |
Properties under development BEPME 2,259,363 |
Cash and cash equivalents RehBFeEEY 64,581 |
Trade payables FEFBR TR (531) |
Other payables and accruals HEipEfERE B (5,074,552)
(1,785,363)
Net shareholder’s loans disposed of HEZRRETFE 4,862,066 |
Cumulative exchange differences reclassified to REENBRABEN BB &5 |
profit or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries bE N Z 5B (93,486)
2,983,217
Consideration, satisfied in cash RE - UEENZ 6,659,974

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARME 3,676,757
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Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (continued) 6 HEMEARNG ()

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
above disposals of the equity interests is as follows:

BotfrmT

Notes to the Financial Statements

FBREXHEREZRE MR EFEMIRAZF

2017
—E—tF
$°000
Seow
The aggregate cash consideration BEER(E 6,659,974
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERRESEED (64,581) |
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEMBLARZAERREEEY L :
of the disposal of subsidiaries RANFE 6,595,393 |
Finance costs 7 BEEAR
2017 2016
—E—tF T—REF
$°000 $'000
T ==
Interest on: FBZ - !
Bank loans RITER 768,844 775,154
Other borrowings HmEE 214,670 | 242,418
Loans from the ultimate holding company REFEIER DT ZER 144,666 | 202,325
Loans from the immediate holding company REEEERARZER 54,862 | 26,861
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZNBRRZER 2,895 | -
Loans from a joint venture RE—FHAERAIZER 16,836 ! -
Loans from non-controlling shareholders RAEFEERER 2 ER 8,924 | 14,049
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ WIFEBEFE AR EFE 28 §
at fair value through profit or loss BEZMBERYL B 1,211,697 | 1,260,807
Less: Interest expense capitalised into properties i : ZEARMEN SHTERL |
under development (464,165) (422,640)
747,532 | 838,167

*

(2016: 3.42% — 4.89%).

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.18%-4.56% per annum

EERAE X F B318%2456% (Z T — RN F ¢

3.42%%4.89%) BAIL °
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8  Profit before taxation 8  BRBiHTwA
The Group’s profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBEBRBIEFE MG,/ (GEA) THEER
EE

(@) Cost of sales (a) BHEERA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
$°000 $'000
3P ST
Cost of properties and inventories sold BEEMENTFERE 3,872,854 10,455,681
Cost of services provided RERBHK A § 2,830,234 | 2,627,553
6,703,088 13,083,034

(b) Staff costs (b) BTHRA
2017 2016
—E—+tf —E—RE
$°000 $'000
T ST
Wages and salaries TERES 1,466,182 | 1,198,107
Equity-settled share option expense IARRAR S A 27 BE AR B =2 § 22,867 | 11,823

Pension scheme contributions RIKS B 143,686 112,098

1,632,735 | 1,322,028
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Profit before taxation (continued)

S 5 A% M

<=5

8 BRBLATERA (A)

Other items (c)
2017 2016
E—t& T—REF
Notes $°000 $'000
k3 T T
 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments BNt WEERERY 0 5 1149 1,065
Depreciation e 14 216,252 180,607
Impairment losses REEE
~ trade receivables — EURER R 27 882 9,150
— other receivables — E M EAGRIR 1,362 1,401
2,244 10,551
Reversal of impairment losses of trade JEUBR TR E BB
receivables 27 (5,357) (1,601)
Write-down of inventories FEZRE
— properties under development —BRPYE 19 - 503,499
- completed properties held for sale - BEGEZBERME 18 - 353,754
- others — Hity - 4,876
- 862,129
Minimum lease payments under operating THREFEERE
leases in respect of land and buildings HERAE 22,653 21,017
Net foreign exchange gain 0 5 izs 558 67,870 (10,582)
Rental income on investment properties REDERS BN EREL
less direct operating expenses of 25 5202,889,0007T
$202,889,000 (2016: $115,200,000) (ZZ—73%F : 115,200,0007T) (726,958) (649,602)
Changes in fair value of contingent EREZERARNARE
consideration payable to the immediate NhEE
holding company 11,070 34,620
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BENMREEE
plant and equipment 22,489 4,836
Auditor’s remuneration ZERB S
— audit services - BER% 5,350 5,250
— other services — Heb R 1,061 -
6,411 5,250
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Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated at 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group has no
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”),
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the BVI.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income during the year.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

BRI B

“E L FEENER B EREFAMETER
Bia M1216.5% (=T — /5 F £ 16.5%) 2 W E5

sty
B o
F+

HERAEEFAY EREBELXRPERT G
M B ERBAMNGRARRE -

REABEZEHE (RBRZEE]) ZRAR
Bl AREBERRER RS HAEMAE
Bio

REMBAGIE FR - PENBL AR
BB ERBMARETE R R2ERE AL EMEH
(TREMABEH])

PR IRER ([RER]) g ER
{7 130%260% 2 A& B KU - L3I (B #F {7 B
HENEMEFRERBRLIOEREEE F5
RARRENEREHERZ THRAX

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
$000 $'000
T =5
Current tax: BIEAFAIE - :
Mainland China CIT FEI AR EMEE 1,271,831 | 2,326,349
Withholding tax on dividend eSSkl 58,528 ! 139,402
LAT in Mainland China A B L I E Y 810,413 3,190,927
Deferred tax R IA i
Mainland China CIT FEIAPEREMER 343,944 (561,709)
Withholding tax on dividend B FEIH 47,103 ! 4,968
LAT in Mainland China PR B A B £ B E T (66,357) | (278,026)
Total tax charge for the year AEERBY HESE 2,465,462 | 4,821,911
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9 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or 9

loss (continued)

FERBRZEH ()

2017 2016
—E—tf -z
$°000 % $°000 %
T % S %
Profit before taxation W 51 B ) 7,664,682 8,292,792
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  &iEERHEAE 2B
calculated at the rate applicable to BAraf 2 ;
the respective tax jurisdictions HERWE 1,971,667 25.7 | 2,122,436 25.6
Profits less losses attributable to joint & & /2 B KB & 22 A1 e (S
ventures and associates i B RUE 1B (211,186) (2.8)  (285,744) (3.4
Income not subject to tax DR 2 WA (486,291) (6.3) ! (145,583) (1.
Tax effect of current year's tax losses ~ RERR 2 AEEHIER
not recognised BB E 353,045 4.6 348,531 4.2
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses REBAZBEEERIAR
utilised By REY e (80,421) (1.0) | (15,096) 0.2)
Tax effect of temporary differences REBRZERZB M
not recognised TR 84,020 1.1 207,403 2.5
Expenses not deductible for tax TNENFH 2 A 170,955 2.2 260,918 3.1
Effect of withholding tax on RS (B R BT B A A i |
distributable profits of the Group’s DR RFZ 3
PRC subsidiaries BHNEE 105,631 14 144,370 1.8
LAT + 3 E R 744,056 9.7 | 2,912,901 35.1
LAT deductible for PRC CIT purpose 3t BL S 2 FHS B A4
Z TS ER (186,014) (2.4) (728,225) (8.8)
Actual tax expense TRHERY 2,465,462 32.2 4,821,911 58.1
The share of taxes attributable to joint ventures and associates amounting BE AR NI & AT EG T IE /£748,787,0007T
to $748,787,000 (2016: $619,121,000) is included in “Share of profits (ZZ—73F 1 619,121,0007T) st AGABHERA
less losses of joint ventures and associates” on the face of the consolidated [EEEE A RBE AR GFRER]I BT -

statement of profit or loss.
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10 Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 10 HHEETBALMS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BEEBLTEAEBIMNERAT (REEEF
pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and REH) BRE2B B Es ANFEEENITHAE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of HMemT

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
$°000 $'000
T S
Fees we 1,750 1,750
Other emoluments: HhEi & ; i
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind F&  REREYNS § 9,040 : 9,053
Equity-settled share option expense (note) DAY Mz BRERS (H5E) : 4,583 : 2,437
Pension scheme contributions RIKE B § 1,528 1,307
15,151 | 12,797
16,901 | 14,547
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors and Wi - AR 2 B AR A IR IR I AN A R BB A =131
chief executive under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share BRYEERITRER 2 BRIE GEER - ZZH
options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based BREBENRBAEBEHEURNINZHEE
payment transactions as set out in note 2(s)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, (BRME29)) 2 SRR BERELRAT
includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of AREBI R INEBRAAZBEFERETSEE
equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting. N7 EESE -
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of AERMFE 2 ERERLBRE 2 £ R HF R
options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the FEER RERESERE 2 [BREE] X
directors’ report and note 35. Bif3E35 ©
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BvIEEfTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year AEEENBUENTEESHENT
were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T—RE
$°000 $'000
5 i
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RER ; 330 330
Li Wai Keung TR 380 | 380
Wong Yau Kar, David BERE ‘ 380 | 380
1,090 | 1,090
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- AEETEHABENBIIFENTEE M
executive directors during the year. Gl
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10 Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration (continued) 10 #FHREITBAKMSE (4)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BATEERIEBLTE S
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e PYE
ERR Xtz Bike
e BYFE BRERX B 3 #
$'000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T Fr Tr S Tr
2017 —E
Executive directors: WTES: ;
Lu Hua S - 3,059 1,421 527 5,007 |
Liu Chong 2= ; - 1,803 952 295 3,050 |
Huang Wei* =g § - 2,929 1,258 505 4,692 |
Mou Yong = ‘ - 1,249 952 201 2,402 |
- 9,040 4,583 1,528 15,151 |

Non-executive directors: FFHITES : ; ;
Wu Jiesi BER § 330 - - - 330

Liu Shichao*™ Bt 315 - - - 315 |
Huang Yige** -t 0 § 15 - - - 15 |
660 - - - 660 |

660 9,040 4,583 1,528 15,811
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10 Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration (continued) 10 #EHRIFBEKRMNE (5)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (continued) (b) BATEFRIEUGTEF (5)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
Eac PARR AR
AR itz Bk
idkn EYAlzm BRERX ST EIfk5R ek
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
S S =5 S =L
2016 —ERF
Executive directors: HITESR:
Lu Hua S - 3,379 761 509 4,649
Liu Chong FIES - 1,634 510 224 2,368
Huang Wei* =B - 2,918 656 424 3,998
Mou Yong £H - 1,122 510 150 1,782
- 9,053 2,437 1,307 12,797

e

Non-executive directors: JEE/TE = :

Wu Jiesi BER 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige 518 330 - - - 330
660 - - - 660
660 9,053 2,437 1,307 13,457
* Huang Wei’s remuneration disclosed above includes that for services : EREATRBZFIRERBAMEE 2
rendered by him as the chief executive. U EHES -
** 0On 18 January 2017, Huang Yige resigned as a non-executive director and * RIZE—tF-R+N\B - EREEEHR

Liu Shichao was appointed as a non-executive director. TESREUBEZTAEHTES -
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11 Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2016: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2016: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor the chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

1

T B R IR
AEEZIARRHRERE-Z2EE (-2
NEZRER) AFESMEFBEERL
XHF10 BTME (ZT—RF: @) R
REEERITHER  REFHRENAFE M
SHBOT

2017 2016

—E—+E T—RF

$°000 $'000

5 7

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RELREYN G 3,521 | 3,302
Equity-settled share option expense PARAS N 2 SRR = 1,880 | 1,020
Pension scheme contributions BREFTEIRR 582 | 449
5,983 | 4771

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BREERTRESS)  HeBNTHEZ&ad
EEHEBWT :

Number of employees

EEHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7 £2,500,0007T - | 2
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,0007T 1] -
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 7. 23,500,0007T 1 -
2 | 2

Share options were granted to two non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 35 to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

BESRIRARS MARSHEAREEA
AEERHTEERRE  ARE—SHEN
REHS BRI HEARN - ZSHREZ
A (EEABEHMRNASZAER) BER
B RS  MHAAEERHBERRL SHE
HALXBEERIRGIIN 2 BEFEEMNE
ZHBEARR -
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12 Earnings per share 12 BRARN
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) WRIEAZAN
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit SREABFSERBARD A ERRE
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $4,950,941,000 FE 15 4 7 4 #4,950,941,0007C (Z T — <
(2016: $3,170,581,000) and the weighted average of 7,779,309,016 F 1 3,170,581,00070) M FAE #17E B
ordinary shares (2016: 7,484,946,956) in issue during the year, INREF817,779,309,016/% (ZF— N5 -
calculated as follows: 7,484,946,9568% ) 5t E - sEAAMT ¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRERZIEF9E
Number of shares
ignE ¢!
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HEEITLER 7,649,164,458 7,384,016,988
Effect of shares issued in respect of RUARR BB BTRG
scrip dividends a7 . 106,950,020 : 97,856,506
Effect of share options exercised BITEBRkiEZE ; 23,194,538 | 3,073,462
Weighted average number of ordinary RTZA=+—BE&&Eks : 3
shares at 31 December InEFHE . 7,779,309,016 7,484,946,956
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) R
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit FREFRFNeENEBRARNAES
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $4,950,941,000 f% 3 FE 5 & 714,950,941,0007T (= & —
(2016: $3,170,581,000) and the weighted average number of 7N % :3170,581,0000T) K & @ AR 0 2
ordinary shares of 7,806,406,949 shares (2016: 7,486,167,671), I 15 £07,806,406,9490% (= T — X F:
calculated as follows: 7,486,167,671/%) 5t - st EAAMT ¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) BBERNEFIIE (E#E)

Number of shares

ignE ¢!
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+=A=+—HEBE 2 ] 3
at 31 December IET & L 7,779,309,016 |  7,484,946,956
Effect of deemed issue of shares under BERABERESNERARERT | !
the Company’s share option scheme for &My 2 2 ; |
nil consideration 27,097,933 | 1,220,715

7,806,406,9493 7,486,167,671
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13 Dividends 13 KA
2017 2016
—E—tE —E-RF
$000 $000
T SR
Dividends recognised as distribution during BRBEADRIES
the year: §
Final dividend declared for 2016 — HK10.00 “E-RETRAERE — §K10.00 |
cents per share (2016: declared for 2015 - B (ZF—AF: ZF-RFEK |
HK13.00 cents per share) (i)/(ii REIREE — =AR13.00781L ) ()/(ii |
Scrip shares RER K 601,814 751,256
Cash Be 165,152 | 208,666
Special dividend declared for 2016 — HK5.00 ZE-REERFEARE — &%5.00
cents per share (i)/(ii L (i) |
Scrip shares RER®H 300,907 -
Cash B 82,576 | -
1,150,449 959,922
Interim — HK7.00 cents (2016: HK7.00 cents) per AR B — B w7008
ordinary share (i)/(iil (ZZ—75F  7.00084) )/ |
Scrip shares REBH 346,418 15,733
Cash Be 210,085 | 519,151
556,503 534,884
Dividends proposed after the end of the reporting WEBRERIIERZRE
period
Final dividend of HK11.00 cents AR BBk T A% 11.007% L
(2016: final dividend of HK10.00 cents) (ZZ—RF - REIMRE10.00 :
per ordinary share ()/(iv) AL (/v 886,449 766,966
Special dividend of HK nil cents BRI S B @R T H !
(2016: special dividend of HK5.00 cents) (ZZ—RF BRI E5.00
per ordinary share ()/(iv) L) (1)) - 383,483
886,449 | 1,150,449
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13 Dhﬂdends(connnued)

(i)

(i

(iii)

()

The shareholders are given the option of receiving these dividends wholly in cash,
or wholly in new fully paid share(s) of the Company in lieu of cash, or partly in cash
and partly in the form of scrip shares.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK10.00 cents per share and a special
dividend of HK5.00 cents per share in respect of year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to $1,150,449,000, of which $247,728,000 were paid in cash and the
remaining balance of $902,721,000 was settled in the form of 258,807,500 scrip
shares on 18 August 2017.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK13.00 cents per share in respect
of year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to $959,922,000, of which
$208,666,000 were paid in cash and the remaining balance of $751,256,000 was
settled in the form of 250,251,905 scrip shares on 11 August 2016.

The Company declared an interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share in respect
of year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK7.00 cents per share) amounted
to $556,503,000 (2016: $534,884,000), of which $210,085,000 (2016:
$519,151,000) were paid in cash and the remaining balance of $346,418,000
(2016: 15,733,000) was settled in the form of 91,403,262 (2016: 4,229,165) scrip
shares on 20 November 2017.

On 26 March 2018, the board of directors recommends a final dividend of HK11.00
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: final dividend
of HK10.00 cents per share and special dividend of HK5.00 cents per share)
amounted to $886,449,000, which was calculated on the basis of 8,058,624,983
shares in issue as at 26 March 2018. The proposed final dividend for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the period.

1 8 H& l%\
0)

(i

(iif

(iv)

(50)
BREEEE2HURE TN A2HMARRFZ
MRERBEORERS  ABOHURE RANUKLE
Befn 2 AR B -

AREEREE-E—~"ET-AZ+—HLEE
SRS 00081l 2 REBS B L B BR5.005 L 2 15
7l A% £.1,150,449,0007T + H #247,728,0007T B LAH
&R R I 45 #4902,721 000 E R —F—HEN
A+ /\HLA258,807, 5000k X B fp 2 FE A58 -

ARREHEBE-_E-AF+_A=t-HLFE
FIRF13.0078 L2 K E% 8.959,922,0007T + H A
208,666,0007T 2 WATR & 3 {7 2 ol 84 45 #4751,256,000
TERZZ—RF N\ A+ —H250,251,9058 1 &
Bz HALEE -

ARFEREE-TtEFET-AZ+—HLEE
FIREM7.008W (ZF—RF : FR7.005W) 2
5 3% £556,503,0007T (= Z — 7N 4 534,884,000
7r) » HF210,085,0007T (= ZF — 7% 519,151,000
70) BB € I R % 4 £3346,418,0007T (ZF
—7NEF 115,733,00000) EAZE—tF+—A=+
F 1A91,403,2620% (= Z — 7<% : 4,229,165/%) K &
BirzHAEE -

R-B-NF=ZA-+ B EZeREE-F
—tEF+Z A=t -HLEFEZSREESR.00
B(ZT—AF REREESRI10.00B1 25
Al % B & 1%5.00 L) 2 K EA % £.886,449,0007T °
BERETNERA-S—N\FZA-+ARE%T
8,058,624,983[% % 10 E R B o AFEHIR A
BEEEADABERRERREBEFAS EiEY
REREAERAEE -
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14 W3 ~ BB R

14 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings  Leasehold fixtures and Motor ~ Plantand Construction
(note) improvements  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
AELHR BENE B %E
B (K £ ET RE  HRERES REIR g
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr r r r r r r
At 31 December 2016 and RIE-AETZA=1-H
at 1 January 2017; RIE-tE--8: i
Cost or valuation KAZEE 2,965,768 318,427 287,18 86,698 92859 1,061,236 4,812,106 |
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (447,655  (165,363)  (221,995) (73,843) (58,939) - (967,795)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,518,113 153,064 65,123 12,855 33,920 1,061,236 3,844,311
At1 January 2017, net of accumulated  R=E—+E-A-F - §
(epreciation @R 2stinE 2,518,113 153,064 65,123 12,855 33,920 1,061,236 3,844,311
Additions NE 29,852 71,859 16,918 3,489 3,253 728,664 854,035
Digposals it (20906)  (60,199)  (1840)  (1,186)  (4576) (3190  (91,897) :
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) EEZ AN E (Hi17) (592) - - - - - (592) |
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 6) HENBAT (fi6) - (2,182) (335) (738) - - (3,255) |
Depreciation provided during the year ~— AEEFERE (99,513) (63,246) (43,058) (4,366) (6,069) - (216,252) |
Exchange realignment EHER 229,800 25,951 20,762 4,549 6,155 73,334 360,551 |
At 31 December 2017, net of R-E—+&
accumulated depreciation t2A=t-R- ;
ENB2HTE 2,656,754 125,247 57,570 14,603 32,683 1,860,044 4,746,901
At 31 December 2017; RZT—+F
+-A=t-HR: §
Cost or valuation KA EE 3,135,008 345,965 308,527 93,256 90,801 1,860,044 5,833,601 |
Accumulated depreciation BiiE (478254)  (220718)  (250957)  (78653)  (58,119) - (1,086,700) |
Net carrying amount BHFE 2,656,754 125,247 57,570 14,603 32,683 1,860,044 4,746,901
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14 W MR R ()
Leasehold
[and and Fumiture,
buildings Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
(note) ~ improvements  equipment vehicles ~ machinery in progress Total
fELHR BEWE KW %E BRER k#
B () L e e H& IR EE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
n o i T o T T
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-RE+-A=+-H
at 1 January 2016: k=%-75-A-8
Cost or valuation BAg A 3,181,121 33,113 282,157 9,519 161052 1,020,861 5,054,823
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (387,626) (134.887)  (217,839) (75,059) (95,241) - (910,647)
Net carrying amount FEAE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65,811 1,020,861 4,144,176

At 1 January 2016, net of accumulated PR =F—-~E-F—-F -

depreciation Tk 2RE 279349 178,226 64,319 21,464 65811 1020861 4,144,176
Additions TE 5,347 25,834 31,237 1146 1008 104804 169,466
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAF - - 1215 448 383 - 2,046
Disposals HE - - (1,557) (335) (6,601) - (8,493)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBLA - - (540) (161) (15,332) = (16,033)
Depreciation provided during the year REEHER (98,490) (39584 (26,304) (8,665) (7.474) - (180607)
Exchange realignment EiAE (182,239) (11412) (3,157) (1,042) (3,965 (64,429)  (266.244)

At 31 December 2016, net of RZE-~E+2f=1t-80"

accumulated depreciation EMR2EtinE 2,518,113 153,064 65,123 12,855 33920 1,061,236 3,844,311
At 31 December 2016 RIE-AEFZA=-H:

Cost or valuation AAGEE 2,965,768 318,427 287,118 86,698 92,859 1,061,236 4,812,106
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (447 655) (165,363)  (221,995) (73,843) (58,939) - (967,795)

Net carrying amount FHFE 2,518,113 153,064 65,123 12,855 33920 1,061,236 3,844,311
Note: The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revaluated in 2014 and the surplus BifsE ZK%Z*ﬁgiiﬂ&&?ﬁé;gfﬂfi%ﬂmﬁ ,
on revaluation of HK$242,536,000 were recognised in asset revaluation reserve. ?1&@%242536.000%7;@ﬁﬁiﬁﬂaﬂﬁlﬁﬁ&% o
These leasehold land and buildings are situated in Mainland China under medium ZERELWREFHMRTEAE - WAH A

term leases. COESE I
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Had the revaluated properties held for own use carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been:

Leasehold land and buildings RETHRET

14 3%~ WK ()

HERFEARZERNERKARRATEA
W BIBREESS

2017 2016

- El of : 3 —T—RE
$°000 $°000
T S
2,410,653 2,312,121

On 5 January 2011, Shenzhen Nongke Group Limited (“Nongke”), a
subsidiary acquired by the Group on 22 August 2014, entered into an
agreement with a real estate developer (the “Counterparty”), an independent
third party. Pursuant to the agreement, Nongke agreed to exchange certain
of its properties located at Longxi Garden (i % 1t [&), Futian District,
Shenzhen, the PRC with an carrying amount of $335,493,236 (including
investment properties of $323,001,000 and property, plant and equipment
of $12,492,236) at 31 December 2017, for new properties with total gross
floor areas of 8,469.85 square metres to be built by the Counterparty. The
new properties will be built by the Counterparty at the current location of
Longxi Garden upon demolishment of the existing properties owned by
Nongke. At the date of approval of these financial statements, the timetable
for the demolishment of these properties is not determined yet.

On 3 September 2012, Nongke entered into a supplemental agreement
with the Counterparty. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, Nongke
agreed to further dispose of certain of its buildings located at Longxi
Garden with a carrying amount of $194,088,000 as at 31 December 2017
to the Counterparty for a cash consideration of RMB250,457,000, of which
$30,000,000 had been received by Nongke as of 31 December 2017 and
was recorded as receipt in advance within “other payables and accruals”.
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Counterparty has
no obligations under the supplemental agreement to settle the remaining
consideration of $220,457,000 until the commencement of demolishment
of these properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group announced that
certain portion of the Group’s factory and dormitory in Shenzhen were
changed from for own use to for lease. As a result, a surplus on revaluation
(net of tax) of $5,299,000 was recognised upon the transfer.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates in respect of the buildings with a net carrying amount of
$380,835,000 (2016: $361,092,000).

RZZE—F—ARA  FIHEREFERA
a (R (FEER=ZZ—mENAZ+=H
H&E%Z—F'HWHJ%QET) BBV E =R ERE
mEr)TupE RZE—tF+-A=
+—8 BEZBZ  EHREBURPER
3|78 M R 82 % 7E B AR T (B 4335,493,2367T (£
AR E Y E323,001,000c D% - BERRE
12,492,23670) 2 B TIRBEMEBRE F FriEsasE
HHETEALI6985F F R ZHWE - FMEZR
BRBEZRANESFEAEINEZTEE
R B - REZSTBRRENBH  ZEY
E2BRNBERNAET

R-ZZ——"FAA=H ERNEAHFIURER
B REFRGE  RRAEREIE—F
HEENAEREREAER-_S—+tF+=

AZ+—HA194088000t 2 & TEF - BER
EAARE250457,0000 HE-_Z—+F+=
A=+—A8 ' BB WEEA30,000,0005T + I
EBTBERBATEMES T RESTER] - A
DEBERREMEL AR ZEDERRE
FATEEBERBRARFZTEHR T IRE
220,457,0007T ©

BE-Z—+tH+RA=T—HILFE ' *5E
EHASERFINc IBREE2ATHNEE
ARAERERS - Bt - EB% (MBRHEA)
5,299,000 7 82 B RE R o

#*”ft¢+*ﬂi+fa AEB®E
15 B M 7% (8 /4380,835,0007T (Z & — N & -
%wWWWQZETZEWFm
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14 W MR R ()
At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s land and buildings in RIE—+F+-_A=+—H AEERHFEAKX
Mainland China with a net carrying amount of approximately $699,057,000 B E 2 BREFEYA699,057,0000T (ZZ—X
(2016: $678,753,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the F :678,753,0007T) <& Tt RIEFEEAE
Group (note 30(a)(i). TERAEERBERTER ER (E30@)(0) °
15 Prepaid land lease payments 15 FEA LR & 0E
2017 2016
—E—+tF T—REF
$°000 $'000
S =F
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBzEREE 37,365 41,741
Charge for the year AEELH : (1,149) (1,065)
Exchange realignment BE 3 AR 2,505 | (3,311)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt-A=+—BZEEE 38,721 37,365
Current portion included in prepayments, SAFENTIE - sTe REAM
deposits and other receivables [ KT8 2 BN ERER (R (1,372) (1,282)
Non-current portion JEBNERER R 37,349 36,083
Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments for land use rights in BN AEFAEEREFHENEEZHEXR

Mainland China held under medium term leases. Bt {F B4 2 TEIS 3R -
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16  Goodwill 16 &

$°000

S

Cost at 1 January 2016 RZF—RF-A—BZHA 322,542
Exchange realignment fE 5% (302)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=T—HZRAREKARE 322,240

At 31 December 2016: RZE-RE+ZA=+—H:

Cost R 322,240
Accumulated impairment losses RiRERE -
Net carrying amount REFE 322,240
Cost at 1 January 2017 R-E—+E—A-RZRA 322,240 |
Exchange realignment B i B 57,062 '
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2017 R-B—+E+-A=+—-AZRAREAE | 379,302 |
At 31 December 2017: RIE—+F+-A=+—0": ;
Cost AR 379,302 :
Accumulated impairment losses R2itREEE =
Net carrying amount REFE 379,302

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated to the Group’s
property development cash-generating unit (“CGU”).

The recoverable amounts of the CGU is determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by the Group’s senior management.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 2% (2016: 2%) which is consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The growth rates used do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in which the
CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 12%
(2016: 12%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant business.

B0 E 2 Bl A BT A W
BRFBAHMUBZEENEEARENEH
FReELEM ((REELEM]) -

REEL BN AIRESBNRREAEESR
EEABMEZIFHRMBRECAREERE
BAREZEREEET - BARFHRRE
MERM2 (ZF—AF 1 2%) 2 IEFhE
BRTETHE  ZERXATEREMHTA
H—H - AERETERRCELBAEE!
B RBFHERE - RERERMRNTREX
(Z2—RF 12%) TR - IRAZHEEX
BEHAIT RRB R R B FRER o
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17 Investment properties 17 HEME
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) MRTEH SR
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties  development
2017 “E—+tF at fair value at fair value Total
BORE BARE
) 1)
BEK BEH
REME RENME mE
$°000 $°000 $°000
ST T T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 R =-Z—+E—-F—HBZEEE 14,498,043 8,309,168 22,807,211
Additions HE | = 802,682 802,682 |
Transfer from property, plant and HERENE BER
equipment (note 14) S (HE4) 592 = 592
Transfer from completed properties ~ EEEEH(EEFE 2
held for sale (note 18) &M% (FfiE18) 429,205 - 429,205 '
Surplus revaluation of investment ERANE  BEX |
properties transfer from property REBIIEYMEL 3
plant and equipment (note 14) BHER (H:E14) 7,064 = 7,064 |
Recognition of change in fair value ~— EEZIREME% |
upon transfer to investment BRRAEEE (PH5T18) !
properties (note 18) 96,808 - 96,808 '
Increase in fair value DA BN 64,321 1,097,363 1,161,684
Transfer from investment properties ~ B¥EETIRENE |
under development to completed ERTE &R
investment properties REME 8,761,560 (8,761,560) -
Disposal = (1,763) — (1,763) |
Exchange realignment (& 5 % 1,053,229 582,733 1,635,962
Carrying amount at RZB—tF+-A=+—H ;
31 December 2017 ZEEHE 24,909,059 2,030,386 26,939,445
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17 Investment properties (continued) 17 #BEWE (H)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) MR (4)
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development
2016 SE—TAE at fair value at fair value Total
BARE BARE
Ik SlliR 2
B BT
REME REME k]
$'000 $'000 $'000
S T T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 RZZE— X E—A—B7E@E 14,486,000 6,422,173 20,908,173
Additions NE - 555,826 555,826
Transfer from completed properties — EEFH{EFE Y
held for sale (note 18) BEmME (Hi3E18) 204,922 - 204,922
Transfer from properties under BEAEERME (M319)
development (note 19) - 653,716 653,716
Recognition of change in fair value BRI
upon transfer to investment BERNGTER
properties (note 18 and 19) (PiFE181219) 97,375 557,141 654,516
Increase in fair value NAEEM 600,239 603,900 1,204,139
Disposal HE (22,247) - (22,247)
Exchange realignment [E 5% (868,246) (483,588) (1,351,834)
Carrying amount at WZE—RF+_A=1+—H
31 December 2016 ZEEHE 14,498,043 8,309,168 22,807,211
Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties RZE—+tF+_RA=+—HZEEF
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately & 4 A1,720,575,0000T (= T — X & :
$1,720,575,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: $1,397,344,000) 1,397,344,0007T) 2 A& BETFREME R
have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group RETRBREBBPIBEMARES - AEE
is in the process of obtaining the relevant certificates. NI ARRREE  FE -
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment properties RZF—tF+ZA=+—H F5EE
with a net carrying value of approximately $521,752,000 (2016: A %) 5521,752,000 (ZF— N F:
$777,095,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the 777,095,00000) 2 REMEDER  fEAK

Group (note 30(a)(iii)). SEBRBITERZER (FEE30()i)
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17 Investment properties (continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and are held under medium term leases. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2017 based on
valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified property valuers who have among their staff
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in location and category of property being valued, at approximately
$26,939,445,000 (2016: $22,807,211,000).

The following table presents the investment properties which are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period across
the three levels of the inputs to the revaluation methodologies in
accordance with HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement (“HKFRS 13”).
The levels are defined in note 38(a)(i).

None of the Group’s investment properties measured at fair value are
categorised as Level 1 and Level 2 input. The Group’s investment
properties which are at Level 3 valuation are analysed as below:

17 REWE (F)

(b) Aol
REBZREMEMNPEALE - LA
HENOEE AABEECKREDEZY
E BULERERENEETAMEE
EoREERTE  AEEZREDER
“E—+HE+-A=+-BRBUEES
ERMEHEMTPHELETEERER
NE|(HEHETABTANEMESER

S8 AYEZNENRERGE BLE
ST ER) 2 i B E (% A £926,939,445,000
(ZZF—7R4 1 22,807,211,0007T) ©

Sl g oo

TEREFRBERRRDABITEZRE
METVRBRED BT HREERFE135%
DhEE ([BEMBREENER])
FATCERMAZBBANES B (AR
All o G BIE = RHTEE38()()

AEENRAEMEZRENELERE
RE-ERF_EHGAE  A5EREAR
FoRBRBEZRENEINOT :

Fair value measurement

DAETE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
$000 $000
Fr S

Recurring fair value measurement for: REERNREE 1

Commercial properties EEEF 24,018,645 | 20,347,800
Industrial properties T¥ETF 2,920,800 2,459,411
26,939,445 22,807,211

The Group’s property manager and the General Manager of Finance
Management Department have discussion with the surveyors on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

NEPHREABRFERE RHETRE
B AEEMELE LM BERLEL
BeRpEMimtERIMEESER -
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17 BEWE (H)

17 Investment properties (continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (b)  ARMEEFHEAE (5)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key INTNEREMEGEMBZEERERE
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: SHAEIHE

Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs Range
RERE EXARTBRBAE & F

Commercial properties*  Comparison method

BEET IV

Capitalised rental
income method

BREESRANE

AR AEMRE

Industrial properties

T8F

Comparison method

HEE

Except for certain investment properties under development valued using
capitalised rental income approach (see below), the fair value of investment
properties located in the Mainland China is determined using comparison
method by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square meter basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific
to the quality of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales.
Higher premium for higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

Capitalised rental income approach is adopted to determine the fair value of
certain investment properties under development. The valuation takes into
account current rental income of the property interest and the reversionary
potential of the tenancy. The discount rates used have been adjusted for the
quality and location of the building and the tenant credit quality.

(Discount)/premium on quality of the buildings

BFEEZ (8)/ 5B

Risk-adjusted discount rate

(Discount) on quality of the buildings
BFEEZ ()

(50%) — 43%
(2016: (50%) — 25%)

5.48% — 6.00%
(2016: 5.46%)

(58%) — (10%)
(2016: (50%) — (5%))

BRETCHERRTERANFRBALNE
SWAE (RTX) 5 R BIRE 2 &
ENMERABEL2RALBNEZROHE
B (RTARER) RALBETUEE
WHBSMHERARBBTEEMT 28
BRARTARE - BFEEUTEEEY

5 BERAAEHENS -

AEBRAERMESUNENEES TE
RHEENENLAE - BREBZEEY
$RaNRRESRARBHOEN T
e AEREDRETOEZ RN AR
HPEREREHHBE -
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18 Completed properties held for sale

During the year ended 31 December 2017, completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately $429,205,000
(2016: $204,922,000) were transferred to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by the signing of relevant tenancy agreements.
The differences of the fair value of these properties at the date of transfer
from their carrying amounts, amounting to net gain of $96,808,000 (2016:
$97,375,000), was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

In addition, the application for ownership certificates of certain completed
properties held for sale located at Li Lin Terrace (3#%8) and Li Cui Court
(%2 H) of Nongke and its subsidiaries (the “Nongke Group”) with a total
carrying value of $14,498,000 as at 31 December 2017 was still in
progress. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement between Nongke Group
and Shum Yip Holdings in 2014, any interest in the properties located at
Li Lin Terrace (3#4£) and Li Cui Court (%2%) with the total carrying
amount of $14,498,000 as at 31 December 2017, of which the ownership
certificates have not yet been issued, shall be deemed to be owned by
Shum Yip Holdings if certain conditions are not satisfied by the Nongke
Group within a specified period of time.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, write-down of completed
properties held for sale located in Mainland China of $353,754,000 was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to
the decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain completed
properties held for sale. No such write-down was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

18 HfEfrEZ TR BH

REBEE-_Z—+F+_A=1+—-HILFE"
BRE & (B 4 A429,2050000C (Z 2 — N F -
204,922,00070) BIEFE 2 B ERMEREE
BHENRZTERANER CEREZEREY
X oRERAN ZEVECAAEREREE
2 = AU e F%896,808,0000C (— T — R 4F
97,375,00070) * BN B BRRNER -

o BREREMBAR (EREE]) HR
EMERGBREAZETREREZEENY
¥ R-T—+E+-A=t-HEELEL
14,498,0007C) EFTBRESMERFF - BE
BREEERE (£8) R HFET2K
BiHE  WENSERETHRARENE T
Mo BRI B ARE R B R 7 e K B T R
ZEENE (RZE—+tFTA=-+—HEA
#81E7514,498,00000) HEMBZHIEARFRE
(@) #H -

REBE-_Z-—RET_A=+—-HLEE"
MURFBEAE BEREZE AN ERE
353,754,000 * ERAEBEGEBERNHER -
HEDEETHEGFS 2R ME 2 (hETAE
BEERY  REE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—~
HEE - UEERERANE -



<02

169

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 A% M

<=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

19 Properties under development 19 BREPHE
2017 2016
—E—+tF “T-RF
$°000 $°000
Tr =R
Land in Mainland China held under medium AR BN R B RERA 2 L1
term leases, at cost: B ; 3
At beginning of year =) § 27,594,315 | 23,954,811
Additions NE 4,176,500 | 1,857,078
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE P B A 7 § - 9,266,654
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRE § (2,205,711) ; -
Transfer to completed properties held for sale  EEZFH{EFE 2D EKME § (932,944) | (5,071,989)
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) EREREME (:17) : - (388,002)
Disposal HE § - (133,677)
Exchange realignment R § 1,815,945 (1,890,560)
At 31 December W+=A=+-~8 30,448,105 27,594,315
Development expenditure, at cost: R REA ; 3
At beginning of year F4 § 8,350,255 | 6,762,879
Additions NE 3,424,468 | 6,518,245
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B R § - 1,385,293
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT § (568,899) : -
Transfer to completed properties held for sale ~ BEEZFH{EFE 2D EKME § (2,340,945) | (5,824,928)
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) RS A (M3E17) § - (265,714)
Disposal HE § - (20,217)
Exchange realignment bE R 533,325 | (205,303)
At 31 December wNZA=+—81 9,398,204 8,350,255
Less: Write-down of properties under W BEEPYERE 1 3
development (135,319) (652,341)
39,710,990 35,292,229
Properties under development expected to FEHA AT ULl Z B R
be recovered: ; 3
Within one year —&FR § 7,466,656 | 6,387,674

After more than one year BiE— 32,244,334 28,904,555

39,710,990 35,292,229
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19 Properties under development (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, properties under development
with an aggregate carrying amount of $653,716,000 were transferred to
investment properties upon change in use. The excess of the fair value
of those properties at the date of transfer over their carrying amounts,
amounting to $557,141,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. No such transfer was made during the year ended 31
December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, write-down of properties under
development located in Mainland China of $503,499,000 was recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to the decrease in
the estimated net realisable value of certain properties under development.
No such write-down was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s properties under development with
a net carrying amount of nil (2016: $95,858,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 30(a)(ii)).

As at 31 December 2017, the application for certificates of land use rights
in Mainland China for land held under medium term leases with a net
carrying amount of approximately $2,866,383,000 (2016: $3,531,535,000)
was still in progress.

19 BRomsE (81)

REE-Z-—R"E+-A=1+—-A1It5E " EA
#4818 /653,716,000 2 BB D EANE Bk ik
HBZREYE RERBY ZEVEZLAR
ERBEEREES) A557,141,0007T ° BENGA
BRERAER - TERBEZ-ZT—tF+-A=
+—HIEFEELARER -

REE-Z—A"F+-A=1+—-BIFE  fuup
B K BE 2 B R R 2518 503,499,0007C © ER
AEBGABRRNER  BEDEETEES
WMEZGHUTERFERD - VERBE_T—
tE+-AZ A LFERATMRE -

RIB—+F+-_F=+—H KEEZERDZF
EZTJ (ZZ— N5 : 95,858,0000T) ZEEHY
¥CHEA EAASEMERBTERZER
(PBiE30()()) °

R-Z—+H+-F=+—H BEEFEY
2,866,383,0007C (== — /X & : 3,531,535,0007T)
Z AR B AN B AR 2 £ AR
BB o
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20 FMHBAREE
UTIRERSHAEEEE  EESEBERE
EEENMBARERE -BAEHBIN i
BRI AT BAR o

20 Investment in subsidiaries
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR
REXHH

Proportion of

Principal activities

Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings)
Co., Ltd. (note a/b/e)
AEEAME (58) BRAF (FiiTan/e)

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd.
(“Shum Yip Terra”) (note a/d/e/f)

RERN () RIDARRAA
(DREZR]) (K tasdles)

Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd.
(note a/b/e)
REBEE (5£8) BRAA (Mtabre)

Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (note a/b/e)
REER (CRIN) BRAR (Mztable)

Changzhou Shum Yip Property
Development Limited (note a/b/e)
FMREMERR AR (FitTable)

Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company
Limited (“Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture”)
(note e)

RIEYRERRAT
(TR EDER D) (Hizke)

Hover Limited (note e) (Fif3te)

PRC/Mainland China
RE R EARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE R B ARE

B.V.I./Mainland China

EBEREE/
=N

B.V.I./Hong Kong

KBEREE /TR

effective
ownership
Particulars of interest
issued/ held by
paid up capital the Group
A%E
BRER
BET/HE ey 1
AR 2 1E 2B
$1,702,500,000 100%
1,702,500,0007T
RMB800,000,000 75.05%
AR #800,000,0007T
RMB932,050,000 100%
AR #932,050,0005T
US$150,000,000 100%
150,000,000 T
US$99,800,000 100%
99,800,000 7T
US$1 100%
1ETT
US$2 100%
2%ETT

Property investment
and development
MERERFRE

Property investment
and development
MERE N FE

Property investment
and development
MERERFE

Investment holding

KA

Property development
MERE

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding
REER
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Name

Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd.
(note a/c)

ATAERARRIEERAR
(Pt eFarc)

Shum Yip TaiFu Logistic Group Holding
Co., Ltd. (note a/c)

REREOREERNER LA
GEE)

Shenzhen Pengji Property Management
Services Limited (note a/c)

AT EN X ERRBEERAR
GEED)

Shenzhen Jinghua Displays Co., Ltd.
(note a/c)
AR EB TN BRAE (Ftac)

Shenzhen Wondershine Residence
Company Limited (note a/c)
MImBEREARAR (MiTac)

Changsha Pengji Property Limited
(note a/c)
ROBEMERBR AT (i Falc)

20 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

AR
REHME

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE B AR

PRC/Mainland China
RE R E AR

PRC/Mainland China
B KR

PRC/Mainland China
RE PR AR

PRC/Mainland China
RE R E AR

20 AR RE (5)

Proportion of

effective

ownership

Particulars of interest

issued/ held by

paid up capital the Group

rEE

BEER

BRT/ R e kER

BA 2 2ER

RMB10,000,000 75.05%
AK#10,000,0007T

RMB323,596,169 97.68%
AR #4323 596,1697C

RMB40,000,000 100%
AR #40,000,0007T

RMB29,019,751 70%
AR#29,019,7517C

RMB15,000,000 100%
AR 15,000,007

RMB75,000,000 80%
AR 75,000,000

Principal activities

Manufacture and sale
of aluminum
products

HERHERES

Operation of
warehouses and
property
development

REBRRYERE

Property management
MEER

Manufacture of
industrial products
FETEESR

Property management

MEER

Property development

MEFE
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20 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

20 FMHBAFEE (%)

Name

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR
REHME

Particulars of
issued/
paid up capital

BEIT/ B
A

Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest

held by

the Group
F5E
BHER
FERER
ZEAK

Principal activities

Huizhou Zhongkai Pengji Investment
Limited (note a/c)
BN EREFR AT (Mitalc)

Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property
Management Limited (note a/c)
AEEE ORI WEERERAA

(PzFalc)

Shum Yip Land Company Limited
(note a/c)
REEMERDE (Fiztalc)

Great Assets Development (Shenzhen) Ltd.
(note b)
I EEER (RI) BRAR (Fizth)

Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited
(notes a/c)
AR AREER AR (KMiralc)

Nongke (note a/c)
ATERMEEERAR (Miztalc)

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
R B AR

PRC/Mainland China
R KR

PRC/Mainland China
R KR

PRC/Mainland China
HRE R E AR

RMB3,000,000
AR %3,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AE#50,000,0007T

US$100,744,000
100,744,000 7T

RMB784,528,950
AR 784 528,950 70

RMB200,000,000
AR 200,000,000

100%

100%

95%

100%

100%

Property development

UEIGES

Property management

MEER

Property development
MERE

Property development
MERE

Property development
and property
investment

NEFRBELMERE

Investment holding,
property investment
and property
management

REERR - W%
RERMEER
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Name

Shenzhen Nongke Property Development
Limited (note a/c)

A mEREEREER LA
(Fftztalc)

Shenzhen International Qianhai Real
Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“SIQ Real
Estate”) (note a/c/g)

AEBANEEE ORI BRAR
("ABEE") (Mralc/g)

Shenzhen Shum Yip Sky Park Co., Ltd
(note a/c)
AITRERR AR T (MisTalc)

Shenzhen Guohuikangguotai Real Estate
Development Co, Ltd (note a/c/g)

A mEEREREHEREERAA
(PH7Fascly)

Chengdu Fengze Investment Co., Ltd
(note a/c/q)
RELZREERAR (Miztalc/y)

Maanshan Shum Yip Property Limited
(note a/c)
S&LREmEFSRAT (MiTalc)

20 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

AR
REHME

PRC/Mainland China
RE B ARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE B AR

PRC/Mainland China

hEREARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE R E AR

PRC/Mainland China
RE PR AR

PRC/Mainland China
RE R E AR

20 AR RE (5)

Proportion of

effective

ownership

Particulars of interest

issued/ held by

paid up capital the Group

Py |

BEER

BRT/ R e kER

BARZF#E ZESH

RMB30,000,000 100%
AR 30,000,000t

RMB10,000,000 50%
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000 100%
AR #100,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000 38.28%
AR #100,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000 45.03%
AK#10,000,0007T

RMB70,000,000 99.77%

AR#70,000,0007T

Principal activities

Property development
and property
investment

NEFRBELDERE

Property development
and property
investment

MERERNERE

Property development
MERT

Property development
and property
investment

EGE Y VIES§ -
Land development

TiFA %

Property development

MEFE
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20 FMHBAFEE (%)

20 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of

effective
Place of ownership
incorporation/ Particulars of interest
registration and issued/ held by
Name business paid up capital the Group Principal activities
S|
BEER
MR BRT/#E e RS
£8 REXBE N ZEA FEEK
Maanshan Maowen Technology Park PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100.00%  Business services
Co. Ltd. (note a/c) B REBIARE AR#10,000,0007T £15MR%
BRITAMRRIEEERAR]
(Pftztalc)
Taizhou Shum Yip Pengji Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100.00%  Property development
Co. Ltd. (note a/c) RE B AR AR ¥50,000,0007T ek
FMAEBERERRAA (MiFac)
Notes: BieE -

a. The English translation of the company’s name is for reference only. The official
name of the company is in Chinese.

Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability

Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s effective interest (including equity interest
both directly and indirectly by the Company) in Shum Yip Terra was 75.05%.

~eaoo

g. Although the Group’s effective ownership interests in these companies were equal
to or less than 50%, the management consider that the Group controls these
companies through more than 50% voting power in the board or shareholders’
meeting of these companies and therefore these companies are accounted for as
subsidiaries of the Group.

The directors consider disclosing details of other subsidiaries would result
in particulars of excessive length and therefore only disclose the particulars
of the subsidiaries listed above in the consolidated financial statements.

o DEAZRXBEEH#ZEL - DAZEARRAT

X o

KRB AN BE L%
RPBERLABNERETLE

KRB BTGB E
BARAREESEZHNBAR
R-ZE—+F+-A=1+—8  KEERFERA
ZEBER (BEAARAEEREAESEZBRA
) A75.05% °

0. BEAEERZSRARAIMERMEEESSNS
Di50%  EEERANEEBBRAZARNE
EEHBRRASHEE0NN EOREEZHZER
A Al ZEARAXEENNBAR -

o oo o

EERR BEECMBARFESSHENS
WUR - ARG e M B R AERE XM
WELRALZFE
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20 Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 20 FMHBAFEE (4)
The following tables list out the information of the subsidiaries of the Group TRIMEAEBBEAERFFRES 2B AT
which have a material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised ZER c TN 2N ZHBERBE HIERIELR
financial information presented below represents the amounts before any KEARIELHE S8 -

inter-company elimination.

Shum Yip Terra GHERR
2017 2016
—E—+tF E—RF
$°000 $°000
S =F
NCI percentage FERERA AL ; 24.95% | 24.95%
Current assets RBEE 7,938,515 | 6,295,658
Non-current assets EFBEE § 8,793,064 | 8,507,192
Current liabilities FEaE | (8,429,031) | (6,684,305)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE § (1,109,327) (2,013,663)
Net assets BETE 7,193,221 | 6,104,882
Carrying amount of NCI eV kLS VIR E(E § 1,794,709 | 1,523,168
Revenue & 1,776,640 | 3,070,337
Profit for the year FRHEF § 760,564 | 453,562
Total comprehensive income FHENGEEE § 760,564 | 453,562
Profit allocated to NCI A FIEERER 28 A ! 189,761 : 113,164
Dividend declared to NCI BERTIHERER RS 1 296,977 ! 358,496
Cash flows generated from operating activites — R&EEHFEIHLTE 105,644 858,260

Cash flows generated from investing activites ~ FEEHFE7HERE 442,776 5917
Cash flows generated from/(used in) financing ~ BEAFEME /(FFH) 2HEHRE
activities 136,828 (179,613)
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20 Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 20 FMHBAFEE (%)
SIQ Real Estate Wi 3

2017 2016
—EF—tF —E—RF
$°000 $°000
Tr =55
NCI percentage FEREREDL 50.00% | 50.00%
Current assets TEAE 3,496,997 2,579,864
Non-current assets ERBDEE 379 | 335
Current liabilities mEEE (819,147) (76,103)
Net assets BERE 2,678,229 2,504,096
Carrying amount of NCI R 2 REE 1,339,115 | 1,252,048
Revenue 3% 3,918 | -
Loss for the year/period FR/PRER (1,430) 4
Total comprehensive income FERELB (1,430) (4)
Loss allocated to NCI DR TR 2 BB (715) ; )
Dividend paid to NCI IR TIRERER RS = -

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating & E8HME,/(FfR) 2HERE |
activities 23,870 | (568,717)
Cash flows used in investing activities RETHMAZELRE (85) -
Cash flows generated from financing activites ~— B&EEMEZHERE = -

Aggregate information of subsidiaries which was a NCI that are

not individually material

2017 2016

—E—+F —ZE—RF

$000 $000

r R

Aggregate carrying amount of NCI R RS REEA T 498,767 634,905
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR 28R 141,640 | 187,136

ER T BEASRRER B AR Z A AR
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21 Interests in associates 21 BB AFRER

2017 2016

—2-tF —TRE

$°000 $'000

Tr =

Unlisted F¥EW 125,842 123,469

Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 5,121,344 4,687,352
Provision for impairment* AR (816,000) (816,000)
4,431,186 3,994,821

The provision for impairment is related to the Company’s interest in Coastal
Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”). In respect of the Group’s interest in Road
King Infrastructure Ltd. (“Road King”), the board of directors consider there is no
impairment after considering the fact that there were no significant or prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost.

RERBAARANLEREXERRAR ([HE
BREXE]) CREEH - HAEERERIERER
AF([BY) 2REME  BERZEELLR
@%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé@ﬁ’lﬁ?ﬁ%iﬁﬁéﬁﬁimé EEE

Particulars of the material associates are as follows: TEBERARFBOT

Name

a0

Business
structure

RBRE

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business
B/ s
SE-E Sk

Issued

ordinary/ Percentage of ownership

registered
share capital
BET
EE/EmRA

Interest attributable to
the Group
rEEREERE
Esaol

2017 2016
—®-tF —B2-AF

Principal activities

IREH

Coastal Greenland*
HEFERE"

Road King**
B3

Corporate
NG

Corporate
NG|

Bermuda/
Mainland China
BRE/HEAE

Bermuda/
Mainland China

BRE /P EARE

4,185,874,285 |
ordinary shares of :
$0.1 each
4,185,874,285% |
SREEOIT |
LR

748,136,566 |
ordinary shares of :
$0.1 each |
748,136,5660% |
SREEITZ |
LR |

15.08 |  15.08

27.05 1 27.34

Property development
and investment

MERZRRE

Development, operation
and management
of toll roads and
property development
and investment
BREBREENER
B RMERE KR
‘&
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Interests in associates (continued)
None of the associates are audited by KPMG, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the KPMG global network.

*%

Coastal Greenland is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its ordinary shares with a nominal value of $0.10
each are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The principal location of Coastal Greenland’s business
is Mainland China. Although the Group holds less than 20% of the
ownership interest and voting control of Coastal Greenland, the Group
considers that it has the ability to exercise significant influence over
Coastal Greenland through both its shareholding and its nominated
directors’ participation on Coastal Greenland’s board of directors.

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
its ordinary shares with a nominal value of $0.10 each are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
principal location of Road King’s business is Mainland China.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for Road King, the shareholdings of which are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The financial years of the Group’s associates are coterminous with that of
the Group, except for Coastal Greenland which has a financial year ending
31 March.

21

BE A vt (80
EABERAOREEEEFRE A EBHIL
ZEBAHEMEIREG ERAMES -

* o ORBREREDNRAREEIMRLZER
BERR HEREEI0TEBKRE
BEEBMARGMARADAERLT - 48
BERECTEEENBRTEARLE - &
EAKERARERERE MEEER
RERFELR0% BAEERRTEBR
BRI REZES2ELEREZEEES
wmAEH A BREXEETEAYE

ab
Be/J) °

v O RYDNRBEREEIMRLZAREER
Al HBREEI0T 2 ERRAER B K
ARXGMBERRBRERLT - BH2EE
BEMEATEAR -

ARERBEDR  RERRARRRE 2
Befn - BREESh 2SN RERBZ BB BAR
AlZ 2 BMBARIRA

FEEBEARL R RAR B AR
EA-§ - BERERE A HERERAS
A=+—A-
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21 Interests in associates (continued) 21 BEAvRER ()
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect TRITHBERBE - DEBRIRAETSE
of Road King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and BRZEEHARTURAZERAUBHREA
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: IR

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—REF

$°000 $'000

Son =T

Current assets hEAE 50,243,875 | 41,048,193
Non-current assets EREEE § 19,491,584 | 9,686,894
Current liabilities REEE (31,518,225 (23,710,747)
Non-current liabilities EREERE (16,602,807) (12,456,756)
Net assets BEFE 21,614,427 | 14,567,584
Less: Non-controlling interests W IS (5,979,348) (938,466)

Net assets attributable to equity shareholders B¢ AR ERREEHEEFE ‘ |
of the associate 15,635,079 | 13,629,118

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HERARZEAEERBENTZ

the associate: s ; 3

Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBFBRE 2L § 27.05% | 27.34%
Carrying amount of the investment WA REE 4,229,289 | 3,726,201
Revenue & 14,755,770 | 16,841,585
Profit for the year FRHEF § 2,475,994 | 1,373,596
Other comprehensive income Emrmika § 916,692 | (821,133)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZAKGEHE § 3,392,686 | 552,463

Dividend received EMRS 141,182 | 96,972
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21 Interests in associates (continued) 21 BEAviER ()
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in TRITHBERBE - DEBLEERER
respect of Coastal Greenland adjusted for any differences in accounting MR EREH AR RARERAY
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial BHREAZREE :
statements:
2017 2016
“E—+tF —E—NE
$000 $000
T ==
Current assets hEAE 9,224,322 | 11,769,781
Non-current assets ERBEE § 3,942,339 | 4,455,151
Current liabilities REEE § (4,472,215) | (7,498,452)
Non-current liabilities FREAE (2,951,886) (2,352,345)
Net assets BEFE 5,742,560 | 6,374,135
Less: Non-controlling interests W RS 172,924 | (455)

Net assets attributable to equity shareholders BENAERRREEEERE

of the associate 5,915,484 | 6,373,680
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEEFARZAEERKERNTZ

the associate: i ; i

Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBFBRE G § 15.08% | 15.08%

Carrying amount of the investment REZEHE § 892,055 | 961,151
Accumulated impairment losses S EEER (816,000) (816,000)
Net carrying amount of the investment REZREFE 76,055 | 145,151
Revenue Iz 2,560,882 1,007,385
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE)/ %5 § (460,732) | 919,971
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEUE § 476,330 | (214,022)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEREAHE § 15,598 | 705,949

Dividend received BB 8 - -
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21 Interests in associates (continued) 21 BEAvRER ()
The following table sets out the aggregate financial information of the TRIRAEEREN A EE 2B BN A AR
Group’s other associates that are not individually material: BER
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
$°000 $'000
Fr S
Share of the associates’ profit for the year DIEBE DR Z FREFIR | |
and total comprehensive income el Gy k] 4,806 : 6,426
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBE AR EERMBE ‘
investments in the associates 125,842 | 123,469
As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of interests in associates RZE—+F+-A=+—8 RBRHESEL
whose shares are listed in Hong Kong was $2,870,722,000 (2016: TR S A B MR 2 A (B 52,870,722,0007T
$1,448,183,000). (ZZ—7fF + 1,448,183,0000T) ©
22 Interests in joint ventures 22 HEAvRER
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —T—RE
$°000 $°000
Tr S

Unlisted 3 F T 4,816,707 | 3,300,931
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wEAFER (8)
AEEZETBREDRAFBNT -

22 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22
Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows:

Percentage of

FriEz B2k
Place of
Nominal value of registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name registered capital and business interest power sharing Principal activities
R gl g

% AMEAEE Xt BELZ RER Z FEEE

Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000 PRC/ 50 50 50  Property development
Development Company AR#100,000,0007  Mainland China and property
Limited (“Langtong”) RE B ARE investment

AT EE ER R MERBERYERE
BRAF ([8A@])

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park US$62,000,000 PRC/ 37.53* 50 37.53*  Property investment
(Group) Gompany Limited* 62,000,000%7Cc  Mainland China and property
(“Tianan”) FE AR development

AL (£E) BRAA MERERMERE
(IX%])

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000 PRC/ 51 50 51 Provision of land
Development Limited AR®100,000,0007  Mainland China development service
(“Taizhou Shum Yip”) R KR R+ 10 IR

FMNTAREREREERAA
(TRMEZED

Shum King Company Limited $2  Hong Kong 50 50 50  Property development
(“Shum King”) 2t BE and property

FHERAF ([FS]) investment

MERERNERE
* The 50% ownership interest in Tianan is held by Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Company * RE50%FT A EEm R — B AEERERT5.05%2 3

Limited (“Shum Yip Terra”), a 75.05% non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
Therefore, the Group’s effective ownership interest and profit sharing is 37.53%.

2EMBARRERA (RB) BROARAA (MR
(50 BE Bt AEEERERER RE
|93 # 537 53% o
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22 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22 HEAER (H)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in TRINTHBERRE - HDEBBRBREME
respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and BRZREEHARTURAREUBREAZE
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: HEfE :
2017 2016
—E—tF =N
$°000 $'000
T i
Current assets REBAE 5,479,978 | 6,091,352
Non-current assets EREEE § 1,469,381 | 191,842
Current liabilities hEaE § (6,374,861) (5,671,648)
Net assets BERE 574,498 611,546
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEARZAEENESEATZ
the joint venture: i ; 3
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBMEGR LB § 50% | 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture ~ AEBEDERERNAIEEFE § 287,249 | 305,773
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by the Group ~ AEE R Ik mE i 6,116 : 6,116
Carrying amount of the investment REZERE 293,365 311,889
Revenue Wrzs 273 | 1,164,652
Profit for the year FRHA : 221,577 234,058
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERZRE § 221,577 | 234,058
Dividend declared BEERZBE ‘ 155,519 145,327
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22 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22 HEARER (F)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect TRITHBERBE - DEBRLHAEAM SR
of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled BRERENARTHREAZRZSGANBREN
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: ZIREE

2017 2016

“E—+F —E—REF

$°000 $°000

oo =T

Current assets REAE 14,425,270 | 11,681,829

Non-current assets FREEE § 5,295,596 | 4,436,496

Current liabilities mEEE | (9,000,136) | (6,928,758)

Non-current liabilities ERHEE (4,582,484) (3,796,542)

Net assets BESFE 6,138,246 5,393,025

Less: Non-controlling interests o IR (131,160) (115,639)

Net assets attributable to equity shareholders AR NRERREEGEEFEE

of the joint venture 6,007,086 5,277,386
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HRARZAEENEE QT

the joint venture: 2R 3 ]

Proportion of the Group’s ownership KEBMER LB § 50% | 50%

Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture ~ RNEEDHEEARIEEFE § 3,003,543 | 2,638,693

Loan to the joint venture BYRERNAIZER § 299,075 | 167,685

Carrying amount of the investment ®EZEEE 3,302,618 2,806,378
Revenue Uz 2,960,448 | 3,044,964
Profit for the year FRHEF : 596,650 | 1,095,595
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENGZREE § 601,734 | 1,095,595

Dividend declared BERZRE 119,630 | 111,790
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22 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22 HEAER (H)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect TRINTHBERRE - HEBRMAREGEMA
of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and SHEREEELAETHRARZTHREN
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: IR
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
$°000 $'000
T i
Current assets hEAE 4,118,291 | 3,235,571
Non-current assets EREEE § 2,909,565 | 3,181,410
Current liabilities REBAE | (3,260,519) (3,020,346)
Non-current liabilities EREERE (3,528,931) (3,176,313)
Net assets AEFE 238,406 | 220,322
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HIRARZAEENRSE QT
the joint venture: ZHER 3 §
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEB BRI 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZREE 121,587 112,364
Revenue I 12,861 | -
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/(E8) § 1,975 | (3,365)

Total comprehensive income for the year FAZAKGZRE 1,975 (3,365)
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wEAFER (8)
TRIRHBERBE - DEBRYHEMSF
HERZRELBRLHRBEZHBRRAZER

22 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 22
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Shum King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: [EIERE
2017
—E-t§
$°000
T
Current assets MEEE 3,250,359
Current liabilities mBEE (1,318,619)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (1,935,000)
Net liabilities BEFE (3,260)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HRARZLEFNRESE QT
the joint venture: 2 3
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEMBEZ LA 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEENERERREEFE (1,630)
Loan to the joint venture RTRERRIZER 989,766 |
Carrying amount of the investment REZEREE 988,136
Revenue* ez -
Loss for the period* HAEE ‘ (3,261)
Total comprehensive income for the period* HAZE RS ER" (3,261)

ZEYEIR :fJQ —EFRATRA GEMK

These figures represented the financial information of Shum King for the period

from 16 June 2017 (date of incorporation) to 31 December 2017. d=Fi DS ¢+ AZ+—RZHEN
HIER -
The following table sets out the aggregate financial information of the TRIITAEFEANTEEZ AL NRZ A
Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material: BEH
2017 2016
—E—t& —E—RE
$°000 $°000
T S
Share of the joint ventures’ (loss)/profit for PIERERRER (BE),/ EF
the year and total comprehensive income PELEa Rk 5,715 -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERAGERRIZRERERE ;
investments in the joint ventures 111,001 70,300
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23 Other equity investments 23 HAbBRHERE
(a) Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss (a) BRMBHEARMFEZ R Y
2017 2016
ST FE “T—RE
$°000 $'000
T =5
Listed equity investments, at market value FTRERE - BTmE 4517 | 4,566
The above equity investments at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were PR ZE—FR_E-R"F+A=
classified as held for trading. TAzBRERENEABIERS
(b) Other financial assets (b) Hib&mhgE
The following table sets out the details of the Group’s other financial TRITAREEMEREE 2
assets:
2017 2016
“E—+tF —T—RE
$000 $000
T =5
At cost: B | |
Unlisted equity investments* JEEmRRERE" § 62,268 | 58,187
At fair value: BRRE
Listed equity investments in NARBIARE T2 ; 3
Mainland China RERE 37,591 | 54,798
Unlisted equity investments in RABIAREIE T2
Mainland China** R G 7,769,148 | -
7,869,007 112,985
During the year, the net gain in respect of the Group’s other financial FR-AEEREMZ2EKRE BRH
assets recognised in other comprehensive income, net of tax, was B)ABEAZEMEREE 2 FWE
$854,511,000 (2016: net loss of $8,089,000), which comprise a EB4SM 00 (Z T —RE: FERA
net gain of $866,112,000 (2016: net loss of $8,089,000) in respect 8,089,0007T) - HBEEMERMEE DN
of changes in fair value of other financial assets, and an amount of E& 2 B 2866,112,000T (Z T — X
$11,601,000 transferred from available-for-sale revaluation reserve F: FE5188,089,00000) RREEE M E
to profit or loss upon the disposal of other financial assets. REENAIHIEEAFEEREZES

211,601,0007T, °
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23 Other equity investments (continued)
Other financial assets (continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2017, unlisted equity investments with a carrying amount
of $62,268,000 (2016: $58,187,000) were stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near
future.

23 HAbRHERE ()
b E ()

(b)

RZEBE—tF+-A=+—-H FHER
62,268,0007T (= & — 7 4 : 58,187,0007T)
2 3k B R B R AR 2 AR E R RS
B RERSEARBMRASEREA &%
wuﬁﬁ@ﬁ@T EASEiEt 2 o NEETH
WESHEHE o

“ 0On 31 May 2017, 28 June 2017, and 6 November 2017, the Group entered * RZT—tFRHA= + H- —tF
into investment agreements (“Investment Agreements”) with Guangzhou /\ﬁ %)\El K= tﬁ% ﬂ ~H:
Kailong Real Estate Company Limited (“Kailong Real Estate”), Hengda ZK’*IEEJ?JH%W%E%E&E A ([shE
Real Estate Group Company Limited (‘Hengda Real Estate”), both of which E%J) EAESEARAF ([BEXH
are subsidiaries of China Evergrande Group, and Mr. Hui Ka Yan (“Mr. )(iﬁﬁqﬂlrﬂﬁﬁlzﬂﬁ% 7)) R

Hui”, a director and controlling shareholder of China Evergrande Group).
Pursuant to the Investment Agreements, the Group agreed to contribute
RMB5,500,000,000 (equivalent to $6,337,100,000) to the capital of Hengda
Real Estate for acquisition of approximately 2.0522% of the enlarged

FREGE ([FFEE] Eﬁlrﬁkﬁ@z
EEREBRKRER) UL EHE (REH
%) RERERE  AEEREREXM
ERAE A ARS5500,000,0007T (18 & %

equity interest of Hengda Real Estate, which was subsequently diluted to 6,337,100,0007T) + LAUER B Kith EE S A %
approximately 1.7626% of the enlarged equity interest of Hengda Real Estate TEH2.0522% - EFERHNEMREEN T

after the capital contributions from other investors on 6 November 2017.

Hengda Real Estate is undergoing a major assets reorganisation such
that Kailong Real Estate, as the holding company of Hengda Real Estate,
will become the controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Special Economic
Zone Real Estate & Properties (Group) Co. Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, after the major assets reorganisation (“Proposed
Reorganisation”). If the Proposed Reorganisation of Hengda Real Estate is

—tFT-ANRERBEEEAMER
AR #)1.7626% ©

BRBEFHETEAEESHE NEXE
ESAK  BABMENERARDNEEER
R RIE 535 i £ A BRI B
BEE (58) BHARDANERKR
(Hi ZE8]) - WERMENREEAR
T_2E-A=+—-ARHARTR MR

not completed by 31 January 2020 and the failure to complete is not caused %ﬁi’[#ﬁﬂzﬁigiﬁﬁi CRIREBERERE
by reasons attributable to the Group, the Group is entitled to have the right BREERATRNEANRSEERRE TS
within two months of the expiry of such deadline to demand Kailong Real &5

Estate to either:

(i) buy back the entire equity interest in Hengda Real Estate held by the
Group at the original amount of capital contributed by it, provided
that Kailong Real Estate may choose not to buy back such equity
interest from the Group, in which case, the Group will have the right
to request Mr. Hui to buy back the entire equity interest held by the
Group at the original amount of capital contributed by it; or

(i) transfer additional shares, which are equivalent to 50% of the equity
interest held by the Group in Hengda Real Estate on the signing of
the compensation agreement (excluding any additional equity interest
acquired by the Group after the date of the Investment Agreements),
to the Group at nil consideration.

i)  HRERNIESERBAKEMRSE
WiEAmENZHRE  EIREX
FEEBTAAEELOBERERE &
AT ARBERERELFEL
NERTTESROBISEMREE
HOR DA - 2%

(il ERAEEERENRD - BER
mélw EWHERERFIEZER
B R AERS0% (TR EAEERE
&t AR R O (T BB ONALAE) o

In addition, under the terms of the Investment Agreements, Kailong Real A - BEREREET - SIEEEREXR
Estate and Hengda Real Estate have undertaken to the Group that the net iﬁf‘%fﬂﬁ‘%ﬁ% Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁé\:?*t
profit of Hengda Real Estate for the three financial years of 2017, 2018 and F —NERZT-NEZAHHEFE
2019 (“Performing Undertaking Period”) shall not be less than RMB24.3 (Uf:'EZ'ﬁK FEAR ) E’Hﬂﬂfﬁﬂ"“ﬁw TRA

billion, RMB50 billion and RMB55 billion, respectively. If the net profit of
Hengda Real Estate for any financial year in the Performance Undertaking
Period is less than the respective amount for that financial year, the
proportional dividend to be paid by Hengda Real Estate to the Group will be
adjusted upward in accordance with the formulae specified in the Investment
Agreements.

The Group has undertaken to Hengda Real Estate and its holding company,
Kailong Real Estate, that it will not transfer its interests in Hengda Real
Estate or create any encumbrances over such interests without the consent
of Kailong Real Estate for a period of three years from completion of the
capital contribution.

The balance of other financial assets mainly included financial assets arising
from the Investment Agreements, including available-for-sale investments
and derivative financial instruments.

R#2u31ET - ARB50008 7T I A R #550
87T » WIEARMER B QAR BRNE—
BEENOFNEIRZYRFEESEE - B
BAMER FALZEIRM R8RS LB R
BREADATANAARLER -

AREREABERLZERARNEE EH
2 RBEARRES S EHEA - RS
HEEXRET AEEFIeHEEANE
KiﬂFZ%ﬁﬁEXﬁ%ﬁBﬂT‘E%‘Eﬁ&ﬁ]é%ﬁ

o

e 3

b

HiheMAEABTIEORRAHAELN
SREE  REUHHERERTESRT
B
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24 Other long term assets

25

As at 31 December 2017, other long term assets mainly represented
prepayments of $1,920,687,000 (2016: $1,731,251,000) related to the
acquisition of land use rights. The remaining balance represented the non-
current receivable due from a joint venture of $1,095,174,000 (2016:
$976,555,000) (note 42(h)).

Biological assets
The Group’s total amounts of the biological assets are as follows:

Trading biological assets EREEEMEE

24 b RMEE
RIBE—+E+-A=+-0 HtEHEE
TEERRBELEREM IS 2 ENRE
1,920,687,00070( = F — /X & :1,731,251,0007T) °
HpBnREER—MALgRR ZEMETE
1,095,174,00070( = — 7< 4F 1 976,555,0007T) (B
542 (b)) ©

25 HMmEE
AEBEEYEEBENT -
2017 2016
—E—tF T—RE
$°000 $°000
T T
I 33 8,136

The Group’s biological assets comprise mainly cloned orchid flowers.

The Group’s biological assets were revalued by management at the end of
each reporting period on a fair value basis. The fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs of the biological assets was determined using the
market approach, which was determined based on the most recent market
transaction prices.

A reconciliation of the carrying values of the biological assets is as follows:

Trading biological assets

HEMENEE

At 1 January R—A—H
Purchases BE

Sales HE
Exchange realignment I 5 EE

AEEZEMEETERARERT -

AEEZAMBERMERERSHEHREAN
EEEEMR - AMEEZ DA BERBHERK
ATNUTEEERE - IRKOATSRHERE
i o

EMEECREESERNOT

2017 2016
—E—tHF T—RE

$°000 $°000

Fr S/

8,136 9,576

2,753 | 20,799

(11,133) (21,635)

577 (604)

333 8,136
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26 Inventories 26 HE

2017 2016

“E—+fF =CS—aas

$°000 $°000

Tr =R

Raw materials RE 61,931 | 42,753
Work in progress EEMR § 33,891 | 23,510

Finished goods S 19,877 | 27,091
115,699 | 93,354

27 Trade receivables 27  FEWUHRK

2017 2016

=E—tF =S =N AE

$°000 $°000

T SF

Trade receivables FEUEE § 405,202 | 357,498
Less: allowance for doubtful debts A RERBIE (34,155) | (34,992)
371,047 | 322,506
Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit terms FEEERAT  RNEBTeRERERMEHE
to its customers for the sale of properties. The Group seeks to maintain BHEREER o NEE R E L E KU B E R
strict control over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In BRESHREEHLHEEERR - ER FLER
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables MAEEEWREZ SR ZATEZZRZEE
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant WAEBYEBEETR VEERR - AEBYE

concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other THEWRAASRBETMERREAEMEE

credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables B oo EWEER BT EFIE o

are non-interest-bearing.
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27 Trade receivables (continued) 27 MR ()
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting RBEBRAA N B EW Ik A 2 BAR
period, based on the contract date and net of provision, is as follows: FERRAMIOT
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
$°000 $'000
Fr S
Within one year —FR 341,866 310,256
One to two years —FEMER 29,181 12,250
371,047 | 322,506
The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables are YRR REREREBHNT
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF =N
$°000 $'000
T BT
At 1 January ®—A—8 34,992 | 34,258
Impairment losses recognised ERRRESE ; 882 | 9,150
Amount written off as uncollectible s A AT Y e 208 § (501) | (2,704)
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables JEE Ui BR Rt (B 2 e § (5,357) | (1,601)
Exchange realignment M 1 4,139 (4,111)
34,155 | 34,992
At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of $34,155,000 (2016: RZE—tF+=A=+—H - 34,155,000 (=
$34,992,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually L% £ 34,992,0007T) 2 FEMR SR BRI RETE

impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial difficulties BRME o [ERIRNE 2 EUER T R R E 2
and the full amount is not expected to be recovered. REEH  BHRSHEEE2ENE -
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27 EWOEZ ()
SEEE R E LR R A LR RE 2 EREETERER

27 'Trade receivables (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: DIFOT :
2017 2016
-l o : 5 —E-RF
$°000 $°000
T =R
Neither past due nor impaired RBERTARRFE 341,866 | 310,256
Less than one year past due BHOR—F 29,181 : 12,250
371,047 | 322,506

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

REBMTRRE 2 RYFGRRS R ZETE 2R
SEPEH MEFOHETRBRTH

EAHRERBEERETBERRZ MY 2 ZP
AR RERPEAKEREARIIFBERE - K
BER ARAEERCERERYEENE
RERDRERAZENE  HARTESAA
BRI S BRI HRERSE

28 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 28 BEAFERIE ~ AT 4 B At e W
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZE—RF
Notes $°000 $°000
B T =FE
Prepayments BNRE 172,738 | 170,866
Deposits and other receivables i1 R E fh TR IE 3,391,205 1,134,029
Loans to joint ventures BYAERAZER 42(b) 38,183 | 68,501
Due from the immediate holding company — JEU B B4 /% A 7 U8 (O 575 | 537
Due from the ultimate holding company FEU S AR BN B IR 0 97,910 | 31,128
Due from fellow subsidiaries I EE =N 0 41,097 | 30,545
Due from non-controlling shareholders FEU IR E IR IR R [0} 57,457 | 249,322
3,799,165 | 1,684,928

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

LHEERBBIFARE - A LEHBZ 2R
BERMPEIRER 2 RKFIREBH

) AHRFEARER 2SASETENIR -
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

29 BleRBIEFHY B RE R &

(a) BlE&RBE&EEMEE

2017 2016

ST FE —T—RE

$°000 $'000

e S

Cash and bank balances B RIR1TEE 10,889,389 10,290,520
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity B ARERIIMELN=@EA

of less than three months when acquired I T HER 2,094,703 1,773,163

12,984,092 12,063,683

Less: Restricted cash* o XREE S (1,817,022) (2,204,157)

Cash and cash equivalents BeRRLEEY 11,167,070 § 9,859,526

* As at 31 December 2017, an aggregate amount of RMB551,761,000
(equivalent to $660,071,000) deposited in the bank accounts of one
subsidiary of the Group was frozen by The People’s Procuratorate of Jianli
County of Hubei Province (note 32(j)).

As at 31 December 2017, there was $822,665,000 (2016:
$1,193,580,000) in the Group’s restricted cash, which was limited to use
in the development of certain property projects. In accordance with relevant
documents issued by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau,
certain property development companies of the Group are required to place
in designated bank accounts certain amounts of presale proceeds from
properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of related properties.
The deposits can only be used for purchases of construction materials
and the payments of construction fees of the relevant property projects
when approval from the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is
obtained. Such guarantee deposits will only be released after completion
of the related pre-sold properties or issuance of the real estate ownership
certificates, whichever is the earlier.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash of denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
$12,018,340,000 (2016: $10,752,350,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

R-B—tF+-A=+—8 HILEEN
FARBREREHTRRASE—HHER
ARITIR P 2 8% AR 1551,761,0007T (18
7660,071,0007T) (PR &E32()) °

RZFB—tH+-A=1+—R FREXRHH
% F822,665,0007T (= F — 73 4 : 1,193,580,000
) ERRERZFETMEER - RETFEE
BIBRERREMZEEXMY  AEEET
NERBRREREERITRPERETHEL
BENEMETR  FRERNERETRE
RER - ZERETRESTFREEFLERE
ERtERANBERM RXNEBENFEERA Z
REER  ARERFNESGNEERENER
ITHREEHERE URRELEERE) &)
TR o

RIB—+F+-A=+—0 KEEUAR
BIAREDSHEZRERBL2EEMUR
5208 4138 4 $£12,018,340,0007T (= — N4 ¢
10,752,350,0007T) - ARB U FAIER B A
EWE o R RIE BINEE HIEH R AE -
EELRNESEET  AEBEEBEREREN
SNEEBZBRITBARERAAEME -
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29 BlaRBLEEEN k2 REBE (5)

29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) BRBLHGHE A B B RE EEZ R A2 HIR
from operations: mE :
2017 2016
“E—+F —E-REF
Notes $°000 $°000
BisE 3 ST
Profit before taxation B ETR T 7,664,682 8,292,792
Adjustments for: BT SIEHE
Finance costs BE R 7 747,532 | 838,167
Interest income B YA 5 (415,851) | (263,938)
Depreciation RE 8(c) 216,252 | 180,607
Increase in fair value of investment REMERABEEM
properties 17 (1,161,684) (1,204,139)
Recognition of change in fair value BREREYER |
upon transfer to investment WRANAE ;
properties # 17 (96,808) (654,516)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale ~ HEREERE Y
investments F& 5 (15,306) | -
Dividend income from other financial REEMEREEL i
assets RREWA - (1,287)
Share of profits less losses of joint =N YN ;
ventures and associates i B 1R (844,743) | (1,142,976)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease AN L E B
payments 8(c) 1,149 | 1,065
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BENME
plant and equipment THE 7 &8 8(c) 22,489 | 4,836
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMEZFE 3
properties 5 - (4,081)
Gain on a bargain purchase —JHREBEFNS 5 = | (526,249)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARIZHE 6 (3,676,757) (3,599)
Write-down of completed properties BEGECERMEL |
held for sale RE 8(c) - 353,754
Reversal of impairment of trade EUERRERD ;
receivables 8(c) (4,475) -
Impairment of prepayments, deposits BRHE  FTeREM
and other receivables FENRIB 2 A 8(c) 1,362 | -
Impairment of inventories FEZRE 8(c) - 4,876
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

29 BlaRBIEEHN RZREBE (5])

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b)  FRABEETERFI LK B R 2 B4 2 Bk
from operations (continued): W () -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
Notes $°000 $'000
(s o ST
Adjustments for (continued): BETHSERE (8)
Write-down of properties under BREBWMERE
development 8(c) = 503,499
Net fair value loss/(gain) on equity BRESEAREHEL
investments at fair value through IRERE 2 A FE ;
profit or loss BB/ (k) 48 | (870)
Equity-settled share option expense DA (5 2 BB R i B = 35 22,867 11,823
2,460,757 | 6,389,764
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEMRBEZL (38110) /4> (21,448) | 172,317
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FEREIE T REM
other receivables FEU TR IAIE AN (1,406,805) | (468,099)
Increase in inventories FEEN (15,798) (5,662)
Decrease/(increase) in biological assets ~ £MAERL /(3E40) 8,057 | (974)
Decrease in completed properties held BEGEZBERMERD
for sale 3,980,559 12,323,026
Increase in properties under development — ZEE LN (6,957,163) (4,954,139)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTBRZE N, (R ) 428,722 | (57,563)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and  E i B FB R EZT & F
accruals &0/ CRd) 1,715,079 | (3,642,406)
Decrease in deferred income B AR D (1,108) (2,595)
Decrease in restricted cash SRR S 387,135 1,906,572
Cash generated from operations REEBEL 7S 577,987 11,660,241
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29 BlaRBLEEEN k2 REBE (5)

29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

(continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (c) KRHMEFHZAMFZHIE :
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TRFLUAEEAREREFZD  BESR
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B aRRekEREED  REMERE

@JZET ﬁﬁﬁfﬁémiiﬂﬁxfﬁﬁmiy\
AEEGARSRERTFIBAREEY
RemENERE -

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flow from financing
activities.

Interest-
bearing bank Borrowings
and other from related
borrowings parties Total
TERT REBEHS
REMmEE ZEE k)
$°000 $°000 $°000
S St ST
(Note 30) (Note 42(b))
(BfH&E30) (B aE42(b))
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZE—+tH—-A—H 19,757,245 5,188,796 24,946,041
Changes from financing cash flows: REBERLHEZEEH :
Proceeds from borrowings from KEBMAH 2 EEMRE i
related parties B - 8,638,157 8,638,157
Repayment of borrowings from BEEH A 2 EBE
related parties - (3,986,375) (3,986,375)
Proceeds from bank and other RITREMEEREHE
borrowings 11,069,920 - 11,069,920
Repayment of bank and other BERITREMES
borrowings (8,401,839) - (8,401,839)
Total changes from financing cash MERERECEEEH ;
flows 2,668,081 4,651,782 7,319,863
Exchange realignment ERAR 477,920 993,096 1,471,016
Other changes: Hit# 5
Finance costs RER A - 84,943 84,943 |
Capitalised borrowing costs BRMLEERA = 134,316 134,316
At 31 December 2017 R-—E—+E+=-A=+—-H 22,903,246 11,052,933 33,956,179
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30 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 30 FFESATEH I bAT
2017 2016
“E—+t& ==k
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) $000 (%) $000
B &8 Bl /A1
(%) Fr 72 (%) S
Current BN | :
Bank loans-secured RITEH - BEA § - - 4.83-523 73,489
Bank loans-unsecured RITET — BIEA . 243-6.33 8,137,680 | 2.44-6.18 5,214,965
8,137,680 | 5,288,454
Non-current JEENH ;
Bank loans-secured RITER — BIEM § 4.90 402,878 | 4.83-4.90 564,736
Bank loans-unsecured RITEH — BEA i 2.50-6.20 11,371,938 | 2.89-513 11,109,305
Other borrowings — unsecured HipEE — miff 6.80 2,990,750 6.80 2,794,750
14,765,566 14,468,791
22,903,246 19,757,245
2017 2016
=T tF T—NF
$°000 $'000
Tr S
Analysed into: S
Bank loans repayable: BB ZIRITED : |
Within one year —FR } 8,137,680 | 5,288,454
In the second year F-ER § 4,612,899 4,832,822
From third to fifth years E-FEERFNR : 7,161,917 | 6,673,534
Over five years AELE - 167,685
19,912,496 16,962,495
Other borrowings repayable: EEE7HEMET : : |
From third to fifth years E-FEERFN 2,990,750 | 2,794,750
2,990,750 | 2,794,750

22,903,246 19,757,245
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30 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (continued) 30 #HEBSITEHLILMEE (4)

(a)  Bank loans amounting to $402,878,000 (2016: $638,225,000) were (@ & 8 A402,878000C (= T — N F
secured by certain of the Group’s assets as below: 638, 225 00070) ZRITEFUATIEFASE
B2 BEFERR
() land and buildings in Mainland China with a net carrying amount ) RPEBEREFSERIEL
of approximately $699,057,000 (2016: $678,753,000) (note 699,057,0000L (= & — X F:
14); 678,753,0007T) < £ 3t R & F (K&t
14)
(i) properties under development with a net carrying amount of nil i) EEFEZT(ZF - NF:
(2016: $95,858,000) (note 19); and 95,858,0007T) < % B ‘:P v ERU
19)+ &
(i) investment properties with a net carrying amount of (i) BREFEH521,752,000T (ZF— X
approximately $521,752,000 (2016: $777,095,000) (note 17). 1 777,095,00070) 2 & &M% (K
H17) °
In addition, Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding company, has guaranteed BN RERERARAAEEEAR-FT—F
certain of the Group’s bank loans of $2,990,750,000 as at 31 December +ZA=+—8" EEMK%@%?ﬁﬁ%%K
2017 (2016: $3,771,012,000) (note 42(d)(i)). 2,990,750,0007C (= & — 75 & : 3,771,012,0007T)

{EHRTER (P E42 (d)) °

(b) Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately b  BRIEER45,909,123,0007C (=T —7K4F ¢
$5,909,123,000 (2016: $6,981,840,000) and $6,697,097,000 6,981,840,0007C) %%6,697,097,0007T (= &
(2016: $5,964,000,000), which are denominated respectively in — 734 15,964,000,0007T) ZRITEFR SR
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars, all borrowings are NETRABTFEN  FEREHUAR
denominated in RMB. WETE

(©) A subsidiary in Mainland China has entered into a fund arrangement © WEAEz-RHRBAFE-HmHEE
with a financial institution (the “Trustee”), pursuant to which the (%A BFTERLY Bt X5
Trustee has raised trust fund amounting to RMB2,500,000,000 AEEEETES /\EMZ 500,000,0007T
(equivalent to $2,990,750,000) (2016: RMB2,500,000,000 (FBE#2,990,750,0007) (ZZ—~5F : A
(equivalent to $2,794,750,000) and provided the fund to the [ #2,500,000,0007T (18 & 7%2,794,750,000
subsidiary for financing a property development project of the 7)) RRBEANB AR 2 —EANEEE
subsidiary. The fund bears a fixed interest rate at 6.80% (2016: EEMBESRMBRARRRES - 22
6.80%) per annum. The fund will expire in May 2021 and is ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ao%(:f—/—ﬁ'
guaranteed by Shum Yip Group. 6.80%) T B BR-_Z-—FHAFH

FHAREEEER -
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30 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (continued) 30 #HESRITEH LI MEE (4)

(d) Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment o AEBETFRIBEASEAEENBE
of covenants relating to the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly REBCREERTEAEEE (EAR
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the HEMBBRIT 28R HRET) - WERE
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities BERZ# NEIMBRERERAR
would become repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors ERHEER AEETHEFHETRZE
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s REZER AEEEERBURR 2 #E
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 37(b). As 31 —HHBHERWEIID) RZF—tF+
December 2017, none of the covenants relating to drawn down “A=T-B BESAETDRERRZ
facilities had been breached (2016: nil). RHBEER (ZE—RF E) -

31 Trade payables 31 HEATHRK
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RBEBRZEZ B E 2B ETERROM
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: LN

2017 2016

:g—‘tﬂi _g_/\ﬁ

$°000 $°000

T =5k

Within one year —FR ; 779,004 | 570,813

One to two years —FEWEA 358,440 | 235,977

Two to three years MEE=FRN 175,444 | 226,082

Over three years =ZEQRL 310,033 83,560

1,622,921 1,116,432

The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. R BRRBRE AT ERA ©
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32 Other payables and accruals 32 FCft e A JE % M

2017 2016

ZE-t#F =ZS

Notes $°000 $000

BisE T P

Receipts in advance TBU A 8,888,804 8,904,751
Other payables HibERZ ; 9,118,998 | 7,167,291
Loans from associates XEM%’A ZER 42b) 81,145 | 301,147
Loans from joint ventures REAENRIZER 42(0) 2,648,740 | -
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERAEMBLRZER 420) 1,074,446 | 13,652
Accruals and provisions [EEHE B R EE 0) 710,733 637,074
22,522,866 17,023,915
() On 12 September 2014, Shum Yip Terra, a 75.05% owned subsidiary ) ARRFRLT5.05%E M B A RFERA R

of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuhan Shum
Yip Terra Property Development Company Limited (“Wuhan Terra”),

TEMBR Tﬁémm¥4%%%§%
ZAERAA ([REFA) R-_T—MOF

received a notification for the appointment of defender/application
for legal aid during the prosecution review phase from The People’s
Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province (the “People’s
Procuratorate”), informing Shum Yip Terra and Wuhan Terra that
materials in respect of the suspected corporate offence of bribery on
both of them have been transferred to the Public Prosecution Bureau
of the Procuratorate for prosecution review (the “Litigation”).

The People’s Procuratorate considers that there were violations of the
relevant regulations in the procedures in respect of a land transaction
involved by Wuhan Terra which has caused a loss of state-owned land
income, and the loss in the amount of approximately RMB316 million
should be recovered from Shum Yip Terra. The People’s Procuratorate
has frozen certain bank accounts of Wuhan Terra and Shum Yip Terra.
Further details of the matter are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 September 2014.

WA+ ZBKREBLEENEARRER
TARBERI(BEEFERZTHE
AN/ BELERPERNE) SHRER
%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
BB OHFETESER ([FR)) -

ARRERZAREZFAS Rz 1T
BFRERBBRT mﬁl%imwmﬁ
K BRRERRBHBREENARE
SmﬁiﬁoAEﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁé$%&%
E¥RRETHETRP - ZFBNE—FH
BHEARRAABEZT—NFNLATN
BERHER
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32 Other payables and accruals (continued)

U

(continued)

In 2016, Wuhan Terra received a notification from the People’s Court
regarding the prosecution filed by the People’s Procuratorate. The
Group, based on the information available and after consultation with
external legal counsel, has set up a provision of RMB542,413,000
(equivalent to $667,040,000) in relation to the Litigation, which
represents management’s best estimate of the expected financial
outcome of the litigation.

On 28 September 2017, the People’s Court handed down its first-
instance judgement in respect of the Litigation. Wuhan Terra was
ordered to pay an aggregate amount of RMB557,413,000, including
a fine of RMB15,000,000, and each of the three ex-members of
management of Wuhan Terra was sentenced to imprisonment for one
and a half year.

Wuhan Terra has filed an appeal against the judgement on 9 October
2017, and the People’s Court handed down a final judgement against
this appeal on 9 November 2017.

As disclosed in note 29(a) to the financial statements, the balance
of the frozen bank accounts of Wuhan Terra at 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB551,761,000 (equivalent to $660,071,000), which
had been fully utilised for settlement of the Litigation in January
2018. Accordingly, the corresponding provision set up in respect of
the Litigation of RMB557,413,000 (equivalent to $666,833,000) has
also been settled.

32

Ut B oo O R B 2 ()

()

(%)

RIZE—RF REZFRUIEBARR
ERREEFZARIRENE - XEHE
RIEB AT AME B AN 2%
BRI ARES42 413,000 (HHER
667,040,00070) s - MEREY FAE
B 2 SR o

ARERRZE—tFNAZ+NBRF
MEH—BH R RERARSENA
£ AR 557,413,000 (BHEE & AR
15,000,0007T) * MEZRAN=LAEE
BEMB S HIEHE BER—FF -

REZRER-_Z—LFTANBRRE
Ak MARZRERZZ—tF+—AN
BBt LR EHRAEHR -

MBI HEMF20@QHE - RERAKSE
HEATRPZESN - T—+F+-8
=+ —BiE AR551,761,0007T (FHE 7
660,071,0000) * EER-ZT—NF— A&
FRARFAERHEA - Al - RFDHRT
A R #557,413,0007T (18 & 72666,833,000
L) ZIRERERDEE -



<02

203

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE 5 e A M ek

<=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

33 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 33 HZ&BHBERNERNZFEH
position
(a) Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

(a) AREEFBARDLE N BB -

(b)

2017 2016
ZE—tF —ERF

$°000 $'000

Tr =

Provision for CIT PEMEHER 1,667,852 | 2,570,183
Provision for LAT TS ER R 6,305,852 ' 6,184,995
7,973,704 | 8,755,178

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities: ERERIEEE
017
“E-tf
Fair value
Withholding Revaluation adjustment Accelerated
faxon  Revaluation of available- arising from ~ tax depreciation
dividend  of investment  Revaluation for-sale ~ acquisition of on investment
(note) properties ofassets  investments subsidiaries properties (thers Total
RUENE
RERHH TfthE DHEEY it
(W)  RENEEE  EEEH bCEDS MEge NEHENE i a8
§1000 $000 §000 $1000 $000 §/000 $000 §000

(b)

T R MEAE LI A I LB
EERERBREEFANEHMT :

At January 2017 HE-tE-R-A 37533 2714729 61,241 11,541 5,352,226 199,166 5408 8770489
Deferred tax charged/(crecited) KERAR /(D) 1
o the statement ofprft o Bikh BLRE | !
Joss durg e year AT 20479 0785) (99) (178574 NI M0 23
Deferred tax crecited to equity RERHNERER |
during the year LEERE - 1,765 - 284,837 - - -
Exchange realignment Eja ; 21,012 199,306 4761 4621 252,380 15,054 5072 506,106
(ross deferred fax liabltes RoE-tE+2R
at 31 December 2017 ST-BERHE :
afsE 368,648 3,206,219 63,217 295,008 5,426,032 23,573 114032 9,826,789
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33 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 33 A MBRNENZHER (4)
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) CHERELERIEEELRAE (5)
2016
TR
Fair value
Withholding Revaluation adjustment Accelerated
faxon Revaluation 0f available- arising from~~ {ax depreciation
diidend  of investment  Revaluation for-sale ~ acquisition of on investment
(note) properties ofassets  investments subsidiarigs properties (thers Total
RYEnE
RGN EEil AftE  AAEEZ REWEYZ
(Wak) mEmzesfs AEEf  RAER  ArERE NEHERE i 5
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r S T S R S T T
At 1 January 2016 RZE-R
-F-H 333,852 2,481,085 71,579 13238 4,298,336 192,019 1188 7391297

Deferted tax charcederedited)  KEE IR /
fo the statement of proft or (GtA) BEx

loss during the year MBI 4,968 155,805 (3,553 - (680,811) 0149 55780 (149,658
Deferred tax creied toequity ~ AEREAER

during the year R ZELHE - - - o01) - - - (901)
Acquiston of a subsidiary WE-HHERE - - - - 1,976,087 - - 1076087
Eichange realignment ERBE (21,267) (162,161) (4785) (79) (241,386) (13000 @919 (446,336

(ross deferred tax liabilties KRB E

at 31 December 2016 +ZA=1+-H

LERHEAR

oz 317,533 2174729 61,241 11,541 5,352,226 199,166 54053 8770489
Note: B3k -
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied REFBECEMERE  ARBRAERTLZIE
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises BARCXANEREE SRR AR 0%EKE
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 E‘t CHBTER-TTNF-A—BREN TEA
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of RZBELEFZA=F—RRZEN - HHREA
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction BEEINEREE A ARE AR AR
of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on AR EMs% BAERMBE - itk AEEEHR
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in ERRPBEAEKR L ZENBRRAIR-TENE
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2017, the —A—RRELZBAMARRESNENR - R
Group recognised a deferred tax liability of $388,648,000 (2016: $317,533,000) T—+ETZA=1—H FEERZETEWES
in respect of the withholding tax on future dividend distribution by these PRC DRAZARBESRZENHERELCHELRE

subsidiaries. 388,648,0007T (ZZ—7<4F : 317,533,0007T) °
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ERA BRI AE N Z B (81)

33 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 33
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) CHEREERIEEERAE (5)
Deferred tax assets: ELERBEE -
17
ZE-tE
Losses
available for Temporary Temporary
offsetting differences differences
against future arising from arising from Unrealised
taxable profits ~ LAT provision accruals profits Others Total
RERE  THEER
ARERRER  BEEtz EHEREL
B8 ERER  CEREE  REREA 2 a5
$000 $000 $000 $000 §'000 $000
ki T n T T T
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-H 66,823 1,521,761 155,578 184,196 26,083 1,954,441
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to REEHA /(B BEERZ 3
ihe statement of profitor oss EiERE |
during the year 42,448 (80,678) (44,846) 24,192 214 (61,09)
Exchange realignment 5 HZ 6,258 101,706 9,251 16,153 1,440 134,808
Gross deferred tax assets at R-E—+5+-A=1-H §
31 December 2017 JELHELEAE 115,529 1,542,789 119,983 224541 25,309 2,028,151
2016
E0F
Losses
available for Temporary Temporary
offsetting differences differences
against future arsing from arsing from Unrealised
faxable profits ~ LAT provision acoruals profits Others Total
REEE  DHEER
ARERGRN  BEEE:, EXEREE
B TREs  CEREE  REREN i 2%
$000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T & S T T
At1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H 147,68 1,063,374 - 154,706 m 1,386,915
Deferred ta credfted{charge) fo KEEA/ (k) BRER
the statement of profitor oss LEIHE
during the year (74,798) 557,494 162,717 43256 (3,560) 685,109
Exchange realignment EiHE (6,037) (89,107) (7,139 (13,766) (1,534) (117,583)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-A"EtZA=T-AZ
31 December 2016 EHAgEeE 66,823 1,521,761 155,578 184,19 26,083 1,954 441




<0

206

Shenzhen Investment Limited ¥ BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 5 A% M

=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5 # 85 Fi % 881 LUE T IR )

33 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)

33

ERA BRI AR N Z B (4)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (0)  ARMERIEARLIE K &
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of $322,367,000 AEEREE 2 BIEEE /322,367,000
(2016: $322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting (ZF—7XF :322,367,000C) + A] A {E &
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses RILHEEBIB L AR 2 RRERFORF o
arose.
The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEEBRTBEAEZHRBEERA
$3,479,199,000 (2016: $3,075,785,000), which will expire in 2018, 3,479,199,000L (= & — <X HF:
2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 with details as follow: 3,075,785,0007T) * BORIR T —N\F
—E-NF ZEBEF T -FR
R CFRE BT
2017 2016
ST —T-RE
$°000 $°000
e ST
2017 —T—tF = 111,128
2018 —E-N\F 251,108 | 245,607
2019 —E-NF 613,244 | 646,367
2020 —ECEF 486,218 678,559
2021 —E-—F 1,000,460 1,394,124
2022 —EC-Cf 1,128,169 -
3,479,199 3,075,785
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these MRZEERNREBELEZHBER
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making 7 MBEEERY T ES A UEHEER
for years and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be BUEF - MU BRZSBERRELERE
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BE o
34 Deferred income 34 BIEWA

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income of $28,187,000 (2016:
$27,375,000) represented government grants received from the relevant
government bodies to support the research and development activities of
the Group. During the year, the income of $5,047,000 (2016: $14,704,000)
has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon
fulfilment of certain conditions specified by the government bodies.

RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 28,187,000 (=

E=_

=

SN 2 27,375,0007T) ZIEEMAIE BB B

BB BB - SRR 2 3R

g o

R 0 5,047,0007C (ZZ—75F 14,704,000

TO) QAR ERK BT T BA 2 & TRk R a

ANFREEE
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35 Share option scheme

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
approved and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants of the Scheme
include any employee or director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors) of any member of the group,
comprising the Company, Shum Yip Holdings, Shum Yip Group, and their
subsidiaries and associated companies from time to time (the “SY Group”),
or any employee, partner or director of any business consultant, joint
venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and to any member
of the SY Group, as absolutely determined by the board of directors.
The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2012 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from that date, after which period no further options will be issued but in all
other respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its shareholders. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30
percent of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

35

S JBL 1 2
ARAERE - RBBETE ([58) R=F—

ZERNRAZTZAMERRESR UHAERE
BRNELEBRZABHR2BERERD KT
B sfBlZ A ERSHEBEREARR  FE (£
) REEBRBESIEZNE QR XEH
DR ([FREEREE]) 2 EERESE (BIEH
T ERARBUERTES)  SRERRE
BEMKBARZAMEEREMN  AEBE o
BERREZENZES  BHSEE  Yhz
SRERT HER-E——FA=+=H
0 MBRIERBUE SR - T AIZRT BB R
ERBIHTEANER - BRHERE  BTeH
BHEAERE  BEMGEMAE - sTEIEX
MEA+BHARIER -

BRIEARRERESITHAE - BRIRBEITHER
BB RAD B EMEMERE IR 2 BR
BEmMAa T EBREE LRIEBBNILE
SHEIE AEETROBE10% o BIEEIEK
KBz BIREE TR T AZI0%REE - Ein
e EREATERERT B A A B A E A
BT EIR L M T 2 AT EBRET 8L
BIOIZROYE LRTEBBTRERTRNE
B230% °

BE22REREHENESZRN LR - BIRTT
EREFREABRRTE2RE 2 BRE (8
REBTERERITE 2 BBE) MBETRAE
TZBINB%  TERASHETRNARZ1% -
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35 Share option scheme (continued) 35  WEMHERTE ()
The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined BREZATEHEREES2RRT  UhE
by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and notified by the ERAZSARA  MEBTEHRBREER
directors to each grantee as being the period during which an option may BRERDREEMEHEDMI0EFTEBNE
be exercised, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of the e BIEZTERTE NERLERESNE T X
date upon which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with iR TAETEEREN IRV ERER
the Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors and ez SIRERR o BRETTHEARDL 2 EAK
specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer, there is no minimum BOHAESSRRAT  BASEL 2 ERER
period for which an option must be held before the option can be exercised. AXNHREIT - BERH 2IFEEENTER
An option is open for acceptance for a period as determined by the Board BERZEET -

at its absolute discretion. The amount payable on acceptance of each grant
of options is $1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for
shares has to be paid upon exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of directors TEEREESETRAENSEE  TFEAE
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of () the PEUTZESE  ((RREER (BEAE:
closing price of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong ) EBEBARHMER ARG HRERME
Limited’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of grant, which must be ZRMEHE  RiREERHERAREEE
a business day, and (i) a price being the average of the closing prices of AEREBERZMERARIEARBRME 2
the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily B mETESE -

quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of grant.



<02

209

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE 5 e A M ek

<=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

35 Share option scheme (continued) 35  MEMBCREGE ()
(a) Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period (@) TR BUT A 1A R AT
The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding as at the R AR L R T B IR 7 62 I
end of the reporting period are as follows: mF :

Contractual

Number of  Exercise life of

instruments price Vesting date Expiry date options

BREZ

IA¥E RE GEAH HHAH AHER

At 31 December 2017

e e =

Batch 1 options granted to
directors and employees: ‘

RYESREEZE—HERE: | 5
—on 28 January 2014 3,976,488 2.333 28/01/2016 27/01/2019 5.00 |
-R=B-mE-At/A —2-~E-A=tNB —g-AE-A=ttA |
- on 28 January 2014 6,043,578 2.333 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 5.00 |
- RZF-mE-AZT/\A —§-tF-A=1/\A “§-AF-A=TtA |
- on 28 January 2014 34,312,108 2.333 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 5.00 :
-RZZ-mE-F=1+N\H “E-N\E-A=1NH “E-AE-A=ttH 3

Batch 2 options granted to
directors and employees:

BTEEREE E-HBRE: | g
—on 27 July 2015 700,558 3.010 28/01/2016 27/01/2019 3.50 |
-RZEF-RELAZTER ~&8-~E-A=1/\A “E-AE-A-1tA |
-on 27 July 2015 1,908,276 3.010 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 3.50 |
-RZF-RELAZTER —§-tF-A=1/\A “§-AF-A=TtA |
—on 27 July 2015 2,374,544 3.010 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 3.50 |
-RIE-RFLAZTLA “B-\E-A=1NA ZE-NEF-A=TtH ‘

Batch 3 options granted to
directors and employees:

RYEEREE E-MERE: | g
—on 14 June 2016 1,795,175 2.873 14/06/2016 27/01/2019 2.62 |
~-RZZ-RERATEA —E-RERBTHA “B-hE-A-TtA
—on 14 June 2016 1,366,783 2.873 28/01/2017 27/01/2019 2,62 |
-RZEF-REARATRA —§-t£-A=1/\A “§-AF-A=TtA |
—on 14 June 2016 2,246,143 2.873 28/01/2018 27/01/2019 2.62 |
-RZE-"E/ATEA “E-N\E-A=1NH “E-AE-A=ttH 3

Batch 4 options granted to
directors and employees:

RTEERES MM RRE |
—on 20 June 2017 56,664,832 3.436 21/06/2019 20/06/2022 500 |
-RZF—+£AAZTH “E-AEARZT-H e |
—on 20 June 2017 42,498,623 3.436 21/06/2020 20/06/2022 5.00 |
~RZF—LERAZTH “R-EEAACT-A “R-oEAACTA §
—on 20 June 2017 42,498,623 3.436 21/06/2021 20/06/2022 5.00 |
-RIE—tERAZTH ZB-FxA=t-H ZBZCEXRACTA 1

Total share options outstanding 196,385,731

RATERREEH
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35 Share option scheme (continued) 35  WEMHERTE ()
(a) Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period (@) TSR R v R AT O B IR RE (40)
(continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 196,385,731 REEBHER REFE X275
share options outstanding under the Scheme, of which 15,790,858 196,385,731 B R i m R {T(F - H P
share options were exercisable. The weighted average remaining 15,790,858 17 FE AR A] T ATTE « B2 E MR
contractual life of these options are 4.28 years. The exercise in full B2 MEFERGEDFR BL8TF - 17
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital BARRBRE 2 RARERE  BEITESEK
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 196,385,731 T8 2 5% PR o B fF %2 17 FE M 96,385,731
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share B AR E 2z i@ - 38 0% Z8673,045,000
capital of $673,045,000 (before issue expenses). 7t (RINBREITRS) °
(b) Share options movement during the year (b) A o B Pt 5
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options REFTEIR LERECSE RNEEHT
under the Scheme are as follows: EENT
2017 2016
—E—+tf =S —NAE
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFLITEE BREHE MEFHTEE BiREHE
$ per share $ per share
BRI SR
At 1 January mn—A—H 2.905 110,132,343 2.884 126,406,000
Granted during the year (i) RERE ) 3.500 139,048,000 3.108 6,920,000
Exercised during the year (i)  FAF RTTE i) 2.600 (58,749,763) 2.850 (10,666,400)
Forfeited during the year RERZ I 2.501 (9,998,233) 2.856 (7,464,057)
Lapsed during the year RERKH 2333 (3,157,129) 2.850  (4,730,400)
Cancelled during the year — FAEREESY 3.396 (130,743) 3.396 (332,800)

Adjusted during the year (i) 4 f 2B i) - 19,241,256 | - -

At 31 December R+=A=+-8 | 3.161 196,385,731 | 2.905 110,132,343
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35 Share option scheme (continued) 35 JMCRER!E ()
(b) Share options movement during the year (continued) (b) MBS (4)
Notes: BisE

0

(iii)

The fair value of 139,048,000 share options granted during the year was
$94,953,000 ($0.6829 each). The Group recognised a share option expense
of $22,867,000 (2016: $11,823,000) during the year ended 31 December
2017.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was

RER H139,048,0000 B E 2 DA ES
94,953,000 (£170.68297T) e REE - F
—tETZA=ZT—ALFE  FEEER
2 B RER X 522,867,000 (Z B —R4E
11,823,0007T ) °

RERREABRA N 2 BREZ DA E

estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account REL B EER - B E T EE - & qu
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following RERERD 2 ERREHGE - TRIITR
table lists the inputs to the model used: EBAERZEAE:

Share price ($) BB () 3.500
Exercise price (§) (i) ﬂﬁfﬁ (7T) (i) 3.436
Dividend yield (%) u&@ %) 6.290
Volatility (%) /ﬁrllrﬁ 37.432
Risk-free interest rate (%) K M?'r |5 (%) 1.005
Expected life of options (year) BEREETFE (F) 2-5

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The subscription rights attaching to 58,749,763 (2016: 10,666,400) share
options were exercised at the weighted average exercise price of $2.600
(2016: $2.850) per share, resulting in the issue of 58,749,763 (2016:
10,666,400) shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
$152,729,000 (2016: $30,400,000). The corresponding amount included

(i

S A (S B A B BB R
B -

58,749,76313 (= Z — 73 4 : 10,666,40017)
Bt 7 BB SR B 4 LA B R AR 19 2.6007T (=
T—NF 285000) 2 MEFHITEER
f# BB A152,729,0007C (= — X F:

304000007{:)2%%1&1“(%[1 BB 2 A

in share option reserve of $29,417,000 (2016: $5,321,000) was also ?éfﬁSS 749 763f% (= = — 73 F : 10,666,400
transferred to share capital upon the exercise of the share options, resulting ) & W%H%Eéﬁ 1% - s ABRER

in a total increase in share capital of $182,146,000.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was $3.683 per share (2016: $3.718).

The number of unexercised share options and the exercise price may be
subject to adjustment in case of alteration in the capital structure of the
Company. Pursuant to the announcements dated 18 August 2017 and 20

1%294170007c< T — X4 1 5,321,0007T)
ZIEESENERERA  RERARA L
71182,146,0007T °

FREBRETEE BATTEZ MEFHRG
B AER3.683TT (ZF—RF : 3.7187T) ©

RTEBRE BB RTREGEARAR
ARBEYMAL - RE-T—LF/\A+
NARZE—+F+—AZtHZRAE XK

November 2017, the Company adjusted the exercise price and number of ’&Wﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁ%ﬂﬁ’] R R FRER
options outstanding with reference to the terms of the Scheme and the BHEHARBA-STRAENARBNK

supplementary guidance attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange relating
to share option schemes dated 5 September 2005. The adjusted number and
exercise prices for each batch of share options are presented in note 35(a)
above.

HBERT B R TR 1R B S M R 1T B AR T (B
REEELAE - SUBRE LHZEE
RATEBR L3505 R
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36 Capital and reserves 36 EAR LAkt
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERRALBIR A 2 S 8y
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of FEERERARSDORBIRBRES
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the CHEHNGAEZZHRN - ARAE

consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FIEZERDORNFNRER2EENFE
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning HIT
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share option Retained
capital reserve profits Total
[ BRERE REBEF k]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SET =P =T T
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"¥—H—H 17,478,481 47,862 1,380,921 18,907,264
Total comprehensive income FREEWE
for the year mE - - 1,440,758 1,440,758
Final 2015 dividends —E-RERBRE 751,256 - (959,922) (208,666)
Interim 2016 dividends “E-RERHRE 15,733 - (534,884) (519,151)
Exercise of share options TR 35,721 (5,321) - 30,400
Lapse and forfeit of BRM R
share options Rt - (1,104) 1,104 -
Equity-settled share option PARR AR 3 1+ 2 B P A
expense 53 - 11,823 - 11,823
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—X"F+=A
1 January 2017 =t-8k ;
—E—+F—f—H 18,281,191 53,260 1,327,977 19,662,428
Total comprehensive income FRNZENE
for the year k2] - - 1,364,451 1,364,451
Final 2016 dividends ZE-RFERBRE 902,721 = (1,150,449) (247,728) |
Interim 2017 dividends —E—LERERE 346,418 S (556,503) (210,085) |
Exercise of share options TEERRE 182,146 (29,417) - 152,729
Lapse and forfeit of BARB LUK E 3
share options Pt - (594) 594 -
Equity-settled share option PABR A S+ 2 B A e !
expense X - 22,867 - 22,867
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=A |
=+—H 19,712,476 46,116 986,070 20,744,662
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36 EARKfEM (%)

36 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital (b) A
2017 2016
=i —qeid —E—RF
$°000 $°000
3 ST
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE
8,058,124,983 (2016: 7,649,164,458) 8,058,124,983% (ZZ—71F 3
ordinary shares 7,649,164,4581% ) L@ 19,712,476 18,281,191
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FA - BRAEZEHMT
2017 2016
- 2l o 3 —E—RF
Number of Issued Number of Issued
shares in issue  share capital shares in issue share capita
ERTROEA ERITRE BEIRHEE BEIRA
$°000 $°000
SPon S
At 1 January n—H—H 7,649,164,458 18,281,191 7,384,016,988 17,478,481
Share options exercised 1T{R BB AR
(note 35(b)(if)) (BFFE35(0)(ii)) 58,749,763 182,146 | 10,666,400 35,721
Final dividend in the form of ~ ISR EH 2
new shares (note 13) KERRRE (Fi3H13) | 258,807,500 902,721 | 250,251,905 751,256
Interim dividend in the form ~ FRHFREEZ
of new shares (note 13) mEAR S (F3513) | 91,403,262 346,418 | 4,229,165 15,733
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 8,058,124,983 19,712,476 7,649,164,458 18,281,191
Notes: Pt
() Inaccordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the 0 BRE(EBREE) £1356  RARFER

ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

B EERmEE -

TEERRAEAFRUBRIEE RS - I
BRENARABRAE LREREE MR

- MAEERRHARBZAREESS
FIEHER
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36 Capital and reserves (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of the grant date
fair value of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(s)(ii).

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold land and buildings held for own use in note 2(i).

Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
investments held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in notes 2(g)(ii)
and 2(k)(i).

Statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves were established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of respective companies of the Group. PRC
companies are required to transfer certain of their net profits
(after offsetting prior year losses), as determined under the
approval by the board of directors, to statutory general reserve.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good prior years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital by issuing new
shares to shareholders proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in notes 2(w).

36 EA K fkt ()
(¢) Tk ME K &

(i)

(i)

(i

()

()

BREGE

BRERELESINERTALAIE
BERAIFE ERERNRTEBHEZA
RE - ZEBEIRBIT )R A
B AT BT R M 2 2 Rt ER SR T A B

EEEM#E
EREMEA)NFIFEAZEEL
St R IEF IR 2 @t RRR LR T
FREBESRGHE -

THREERE B
AREERESEFEEDERNREE
AFBAUHLEREZ AN ERE
FEED &R E2(0)0) R2kK))
EHCRTIREE -

ZEERE

FESAERE N EREETERAR
FHEURAEBE QR ZARBEE
SEAEY - PEAFERENEE
AETHMN (EHRBBAFERRBR)
BRE-WMEATHE (KESSE
BETE) -

—REACHBEURARBHAEFES
B(nE) UAEREKRERER
BEEALRABERTHRZ H A ER
BEX  BITR 2 EHTER M
BAERZ225% °

EXZEBHE
EREBEERRERRINER M
BRRELZBELZSR

ZREBRBNF2WAME 2 G BR
JIBRERIE °
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36 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Other reserve
Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the book value of the share of net
assets acquired in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling
interests, and the difference between the consideration received
and the book value of the share of net assets disposed of in
respect of a change in the ownership interest in a subsidiary
without a loss of control.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure
the financing capabilities of the Company in running its operation on
a going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital structure, to
reduce capital cost and to maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and
the changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to maintain
an optimal capital structure of the Company. The Group monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company. The Group’s policy
is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. Net debt is interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, excluding borrowings from related
parties, less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

36 EARKfEM (%)

()

(d)

T E RS ()

(vi) Rt
ESuE et S e S atic)
ENREES EAREEEFERA
HEZEB NRERBHNBARHRA
BREDEH CRAXEEHE) B
ERREEMEEEEFEREEL

£

EAG B
AREEAEERR B ERERART]
ZRERNNEARFELLEELEE
B YEHESELZEARE BLE
ARARERREERAL -

ARERBEESEELHERRBHLE
BEEBEMNEHEE W HAERREE
TEERAR - BRARKEDK - R
TERERBAIBITNB  AEEER
BARB 2 BARBHEFHBILKFE - K
SEEREARER (AFEFHULL
AEAARGED) EREER - AEHE
ZBRIEEARBREREREKF -
FERRFERITREMRER (TEHEH
BhEe) RASRREEBMUARIR
HRE RBEPRZERRERMT

2017 2016

et —E—REF

$000 $000

3 ST

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HERTREMESE 22,903,246 19,757,245

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEE (11,167,070) | (9,859,526)

Restricted cash XRGIRE (1,817,022) (2,204,157)

Net debt FER 9,919,154 | 7,693,562
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of A Rz PR JELS

the Company s 41,468,241 | 32,810,813

Gearing ratio BREER 24% 23%
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37 Financial risk management
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities and
movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensed banks
which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The Group
trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties for the
sales of properties and goods. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to buyers with appropriate financial
strength and appropriate percentage of down payments. The
Group would not release the property ownership certificates to the
buyers before the buyers fully settle the payment. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure
spreading over a number of counterparties and customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements.

37

O 7 B A
AEEEGEEEBBERELEZEE R
o FIEREERER - AEERERELE M
ERREREES VREBRERKE S ERR
EBREBEMR -

ARERR ZERARREBRREZHRAR
AEBEEZFRARMARABHFRLOT -

(a) fEBmbE
AEEZSREE (BERERES
A B MR SR I L At R MR IR) 2
ERRERZUFHRAT  ZAEER
BESHIEETAZREE -

5
=
a

3

BERRR  TEBXEZREHETEARE
BT BEAESEEER I SRME -
AEEEENEREGEZE=HENTY
(¥NERR S  ARBEEEBETHRRERRA
BAEHEMBENRINEEE AL EH
NRZEFRELHE - EERZEEEN
A AEETERMERTEEESR - £%
BN EEEMERFRER - Mﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ
EEBREEBER - o AEETE
EHEGREAAZERESHES T%@i
B BRI E S EEH R ARE
}EETE cAEEVEANEREFREER
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37 Financial risk management (continued) 37 WAERRAEHE ()
(b) Liquidity risk (b) kB
Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current EAEEAGEEECI SR A ERD
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance EERDERR - AEBEETERERAR
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of HEEBIRTEN  G#RESHEMRER

short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a reasonable
proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group is able to meet
its ongoing financial needs.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date

WEL T BRBHAER BRER
BEABLE  AEETHRABAHRT
EE.

TRITAEEUNGNAUERRAERE
(BRERAHONER (MAFR) RRE
ERRZBTHEAREZAENFK) RE
RIEMABERBRERRGB T2 NHR
RAKEAZEBERNZ&REH

the Group can be required to pay:

2017 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
CE-LEANAMBES LR

Carrying

amount at

Within One to Two to Qver 31 December

On demand one year two years  three years  three years Total 2017

R-B-t%

== el

BEX —Fh -EfE MEZE BA=F a5 ZEEfE

$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000

i i fx fx i T i
Interest-bearing bank and other  FERITREMEE 3
borrowings (note 30) (Fz£30) 9,570 8,905,799 5,189,300 5,761,214 4,874,469 24,740,352 22,903,246
Trade payables (note 31) ERER (1) 1,622,921 - - - - 162 16291 |
Other payables (note 32) AthERFE (M) 9,118,998 - - - - 9118998 9,118,998 :
Loans from fellow subsidiaries AZHEAFER
(note 32) (Ws32) 14,608 1,105,941 - - - 1,120,549 1,074,446
Due to the immediate holding ERGEERATLE
company (note 42(0)) GEZ) 468,926 1,017,565 724,565 - - 2,211,056 2,141,290
Due to the ultimate holding company & AR 2 7708
(note 42(b) (Fiz42) 803,960 4,515,436 - - - 53193% 5107312 |
Loans from joint ventures (note 32) A4 AFE (HE32) 3589 2,659,506 - - - 2663095 2648740
Loans from associates (note 32) & RAIS3 (E3) 81,145 - - - - 81,145 81,145
Total ag 12,123,717 18,204,247 5,913,865 5,761,214 4874469 46,877,512 44,698,098
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37 Financial risk management (continued) 87 ARG (4)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b)  FEEEEE ()

2016 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
“ENERNRMERETLE

Carrying

amount at

Within One to Two to Over 31 December

On demand one year twoyears  three years  three years Total 2016
RZF-7E

=E=k

e D —£R —EmE ME=F ey alks e b F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000

i i fr i i i i

Interest-bearing bank and other

HRRTRABEES

borrowings (note 30) (F3£30) 8943 6040947 5410851 3568816 6622248 21651805 19,757,245
Trade payables (note 31) AR (MsEst) 1,116,432 - - - - 1116432 1116432
Other payables (note 32) AthERFE (M) 7,167,291 - - - - 7167291 7,167,291
Loans from fellow subsidiaries FAZHBRTER

(note 32) (F3£32) 13,652 - - - - 13,652 13,652
Due to the immediate holding ENEERRARZE

company (note 42(o)) (Fzt420)) 28167 1,319,590 23,745 720,87 - 2092373 2023117
Due to the ultimate holding company  JEff & IRRR A 2] 08

(note 42(t) (Bztaa ()) 274545 1,804,841 894,320 - - 2073706 2,850,880
Loans from associates (note 32) B2 R ASH (FfiE32) 301,147 - - - - 301,147 301,147
Total 2% 8910177 9165378 6328916 4289687 6622248 35316406 33,229,764
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37 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest rate
fluctuations of its bank and related parties borrowings. Interest on
these borrowings is computed based on market rates.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest
rate risk that may arise.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had $24,219,566,000 (2016:
$17,966,292,000) variable interest rate borrowings which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. If the interest rate of these
borrowings had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors
remained unchanged, the profit after tax for the year of the Group
would have decreased/increased by approximately $100,073,000
(2016: $84,741,000).

Currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and the Group’s assets held and all of the committed borrowings of
the Group are mainly denominated in RMB, except for certain US$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk
as it had minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 and the impact
of foreign currency risk on the Group’s operation is minimal. The US$-
denominated bank loans are currently not hedged as the directors
consider the risk of movements in exchange rates between the United
States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar (the Company’s functional
currency) to be insignificant.

Equity price risk

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes in
market prices of listed equity securities as categorised under “Equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss” (note 23(a)) and “Other
financial assets” (note 23(b)). The book values of these financial
assets held by the Group are recognised according to market quotes
as at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2017, if the price of listed equity securities held by
the Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other factors
remained unchanged and excluding tax items, the book values of the
listed equity securities of the Group would have increased/decreased
by $4,211,000 (2016: $5,936,000).

37

A 5 I ()

()

()

GES
AEBEZMERBEIBRARTRBES
EEZMERBHMEL - ZFHEZME
THREMEMEGE -

AEERHEFEMBENEARBRIARER
BRBYRAREL 2 AR M R ER -

R-ZZE—+E+-A=+—0 K&
524,219,566,0007C (= T — X F:
17,966,292,0007T) ¥ BB E - ®AKEE
BReREMERR - WEZSEEZTH
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4 84,741,0007T) °

R B
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Z TS RBHER -
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38 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments
Fair value measurement

(a)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

e  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The Group’s Finance Management Department headed by the
General Manager is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The Planning and Finance Department reports
directly to the Vice President and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the Planning and Finance Department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the Vice President.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

38 il THZARMRA RMEF R
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38 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 38 4@ THEZARMERARMBEERER ()
instruments (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement (continued) (a) ARMEFE ()
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value () BARLEHEZLHEERER
(continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARESHEE (B)
Assets: Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
EE: REB-tETZAZSt-AEANTHAZAAEHE RZ—ET-A=T-RRANTRALAAENE
Unadjusted Unadjusted
quoted quoted
prices Significant prices Significant
inactive  Observable unobservable inactive  Observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total markets inputs inputs Total
RERTS RERTS
AL EXRT AL Y|
HEHRE THRAAE BEGAE BE RERE UERGAE BEEAE ag
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(-8) (B=R) (=) (B-#) (=R (E=R)

§1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 $000 $1000 §000 $1000
i T tr T {7 T T T

Other financial assets (note 23()) ~ Et & BVEE (M3E23() 37591 7,698,699 70449 7,806,739 54,798 - - 54,798
Equity investments at fairvale ~ BABERNAEHEL |
through profit or loss (note 23f)  HEERE (FizEos) | 4517 = - 4517 4,566 - - 4,568

42,108 7,698,699 70449 7,811,256 59,364 - - 59,364
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38 Bl THZARMEEARMEFHR (5)

38 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement (continued) (a) ARMEFE ()
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value () BARLEFTEzEtHEERERE
(continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DRESHEE (B)
Liabilities: Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using

Bf: RZB-tEtZA=t-BRANTRAZAAEE REEAETZA=T-BREANTEAZ LA BHE
Unadjusted Unadjusted
quoted quoted
prices Significant prices Significant
inactive  Observable unobservable inactive  Observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total markets inputs inputs Total
WERTEZ EXTTHE WEBMEL VG
AEHERE TREGAE BAE B8 ROIZBE UHEREAR HAE EE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B-8) (5=8)  (#=§) &R (&= (=8
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T n T n T S T R
Due to the immediate holding ~~ ERERERAATE |
company - - - 383514 - 383514

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2016: Nil).

The fair values of equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss and other financial assets in level 1 are determined
based on quoted market prices.

ER - E-REE_LIEBERR
EFfENBERREBEERERA
EREBALXBLE =R (ZFT—X
FE)o

ERBERANBHEORARER
F-REBEBEENRAENRE

MEREET -



<02

223

Shenzhen Investment Limited I BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 A% M

<=5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (%5 5# 8751 » BB =881 LUETTIIR)

38 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of other financial assets in Level 2 is determined
using the transaction price in an active market for an identical
asset, adjusted for a significant observable input, which is the
movement of share price between the transaction date and
the measurement date of a comparable listed company that is
highly positively correlated to the changes in valuation of that
financial assets.

The fair values of amount due to the immediate holding
company in level 2 have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The fair value of other financial assets in level 3 is determined
based on the estimated amount that the Group would receive
if the Proposed Reorganisation is not completed by 31 January
2020, taking into account the expected successful rate of
the Proposed Reorganisation. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the expected successful rate of
the Proposed Reorganisation. As at 31 December 2017, it
is estimated that with all other variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in expected successful rate of the Proposed
Reorganisation by 1% would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by $70,449,000 (31
December 2016: nil).

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

38 B THZARMEARMEFHRE (5)

(a)

ARG (8)

(0

(i)

BALETEZEHEERRE
(&)

DABESRRE (8)
FoMECEREENAABLE
AR%SEE (REXTERHAEN
B)NERMB 2 XHEET - BT
ZEeMEEZHEZYRELERRL
AR EMARRR S ARG E
AEZREZS -

FRAENERZRADRSOFIES
MAENEBAERESR  FER
B LRSI ARSI HERTA
MR R BE 3R TEHI R R &R &8 SR st

g
B o
Ean

F-HNEMEREE ARBEDE
WEEZEEAN B -EF A=+
—BENEE TR A S B i i R
B EHET  ETFEREZEAN
BHRINE - AR EFEEEREA
R II R 8RE - nZF— 5
+ZA=+—H MABEmEEH
B (hETEBEAMNERR X
TR,/ EIN% EEBREBH
BREBEF KRB AN R
70,449,000 (ZE—AF+ A=
+—8:8)-

BAREUN TR IR EBEER
BEEWARLE
REBIRR AT EER AT RN 8
TANEREEAR-Z—RFR=
Z—+F+-A=Z+—RBZAARET
BEAES -
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39 Operating lease arrangements

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) and property,
plant and equipment under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to eighteen years. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

39

Rz
(a) AEZHMA

RELERNZYE  AEERLETRE
wx (WE17) kY% - BERRE - BE
BERMEETN\EAE - BOKK R
FEKEPABNRES RATRTER
MEREMERERERE -

RZB—+F+ZA=+—H X&ER
HBEHER 2 PR EEANERRZ
REEWHESARNT

2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RF
$'000 $000
Fr SV
Within one year —FR 771,289 656,036
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEENF (BREERF) 1,439,870 | 1,142,005
After five years hE% 211,866 | 180,077
2,423,025 | 1,978,118

As lessee (b) fEBAMA

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

RZB—+F+A=+—H xEER
ATHREER TARUBRERNERR
ZREENESRBNT :

2017 2016

—E—tF T—RE

$°000 $'000

T ST

Within one year —FR 14,717 13,959
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF (PIEEEMF) 10,504 23,435
25,221 | 37,394
Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect of a BRZEHEON  REENARBRLERAY

number of properties and items of property, plant and equipment held
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 to 6 years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every year to
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

RAEZZENEURNE - BERRER
BZEEA - ZEHNBRENSEH
—ERF UUREEN BEREHAH
FIEGRR  HEBEEF LK ARRMD
BHE - HEROBREARESE -
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40 Capital commitments 40 BEAKSE
In addition to the capital commitments disclosed in note 42(e)(ii), the Group BRI FE42(e) () B2 2 EARESD - RIEHR
had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: NEE 7 BREENT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
$°000 $'000
T =S
Commitments in respect of acquisition of FRUEBE L RIEFTR
land and buildings, and development costs BRMERR
attributable to properties under development: BN 7 R ; 3
Contracted, but not provided for EHELERR L 8,717,238 5,997,713
41 Contingent liabilities 41 HARAME
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has given guarantees to a maximum RZE—+tF+ZA=1+—0 F5ERRTH
extent of approximately $6,556,126,000 (2016: $7,869,258,000) to banks TASENEER FEERMBTRERSE
for housing loans extended by the banks to the purchasers of the Group’s #76,556,126,0007T (= & — 7 F : 7,869,258,000
properties. JO) 2R e
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage BREERET  WZEEREXZBHE K&
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the EEEMENAN ZZBEFURERFEER
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty RIBITZEMER A E REK - AEERERA
owed by the defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to BEWEBMEREMER - REB 2 EREH
take over the legal title of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee RUEARBEEREARREBEEASENEER
period commences from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loan SRR EREEERER
and ends after the buyer of the Group’s properties obtained the individual
property ownership certificate.
The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable EERE WERFIE  BENEIERFE
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding RINENHAREERBEFERTMEFIE
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty and REH - MAZEERIELEE -

therefore no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.
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42 Related party transactions 42 BB 5
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) BEEHEAHMSE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEIZEEBRABZHE (BEEFEAR
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 10 and NAIEE (RINFHI0AEE) RETREE
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11, is as BE (RHF1AKE) 228) 0T
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
$000 $000
T ST
Short-term employee benefits RHEE R 14,312 12,104
Post-employment benefits RINEF § 2,110 1,756
Equity settled share option expense AR AR N 2 B = 6,463 3,457
22,885 17,317
(b) Financing arrangements (b) FEZH
(i) Outstanding balances i) KETEE

Amounts owed to the Group by  Amounts owed by the Group to
related parties related parties

BHRERREBZHE AEBE BB 2FE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Wt=A=+-8 W+=BA=+-8
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RE “E-tf —E-RF
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T T S
Due to the immediate holding B BEZZRA A 3
company (iiy/(vii I8 i)/ il B - 2141200 1 2,023,117
Due to the ultimate holding JE B ARIE R A T
company (iil)/(vii) I8l vi - - 5107,312 . 2,850,880
Loans from fellow BEAIEUNG
subsidiaries (i)/(vi) B0/ - - 1,074,446 | 13,652
Loans from associates (i B NTER() — - 81,145 | 301,147
Loans from joint ventures (v) BECEERWY - - 2,648,740 -
Loans to joint ventures (iv) BIABLEER(W) 242198 1212741 - -
2422198 1212741 11052933 | 5188796
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42 Related party transactions (continued) 42 BIBHR S ()
(b) Financing arrangements (continued) (b) HhEZH (H)
(i) Transactions during the year (i) FAXZ

Proceeds from borrowings from Repayment of borrowings from

related parties related parties Interest expense
B L EERENE EBEEELEE FERX
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+-ALEE BET-A=t-HLKE BET-A=t+-HLFE
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-t& T F ZB-tF T RF ZZ-tf _TR%
§000 $1000 $/000 $1000 $000 $/000
Tr S T T T S
Immediate holding company ~ EEERAR | - 1640062 1 (17,631) | - (54862 (26,861)
Utimate holding company ~~ SERAT | 5,075,840 | -0 (3744966) | (2661103) | (144,666) |  (202,325)
Fellow subsidiaries RZNBRE | 1,020,9% | - (1823 (766160 (2895) -
Associates BEAT - | -0 (221,985) | - | - | -

Joint ventures Aupg | 2,541,381 | - | = - (16,836) | -

8,638,157§ 1,640,062§ (3,985,375)§ (2,737,719)§ (219,259)§ (229,186)

Notes: BisE -

() The outstanding balances with these related parties are unsecured, (i Eﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁZ%1§1ﬁ%ﬁ§%%ﬁ%}&ﬁ BB
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. REEEEED -

(i) The amounts due to the immediate holding company include i) ) EEEERZRARDTADE) HBAER
loan principals and interests amounting to $781,549,000 (2016: ﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%OUOE (:%ﬁ_/_\f;
$752,362,000) classified as non-current liabilities, which are 152,362,00075) ﬁZE\\fWFﬁ&ﬂ 8 %E
unsecured, bear interest at HIBOR/LIBOR rate plus 2.65% and RARER  REEROTARKL MY
repayable on 8 November 2019; ii) loan principals and interests ﬁEfT@iﬁféﬁﬂ2-65%§ﬁ§&ﬁ@13*jl%
amounting to $890,815,000 (2016: $1,242,588,000) classified as +—AN Eiéﬁ ; II)%iﬁﬁ/ﬁ@E%\Q@ﬁ
current liabilities, which are unsecured, bear interest at HIBOR/LIBOR @0315709075 (Z%— 7\*?;1.‘242,588,000
plus 2.65% and repayable within one year; iii) the remaining balances L) ZEHAERFE - ZERBEEA
of $468,926,000 (2016: $28,167,000) classified as current liabilities REBROTALRFS/ 1@;&@&«7@%?&5
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. fn2.65%st B RN —FAEE i) BRR

E) B (54 % 5468,926,0007C (ZF— R F
28,167,0007) < Efpith R EAER
B REREETEEL-
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42 Related party transactions (continued)

Financing arrangements (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(i)

()

(vi)

(vii

The amounts due to the ultimate holding company include i) loan
principals and interests amounting to $4,303,352,000 (2016:
$1,665,905,000), which are unsecured, bear interest at rates ranging
from one year benchmark lending rate to 4.35% per annum and
repayable within one year; ii) loan principals and interests amounting
to nil (2016: $910,430,000), which are unsecured, bear interest at
one to three year benchmark lending rate per annum and repayable
within two years; iii) the remaining balances of $803,960,000 (2016:
$274,545,000) are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment.

The balance comprises i) $299,075,000 (2016: $167,685,000)
included in interests in joint ventures, which is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment; ii) $1,095,174,000
included in other long term assets (2016: $976,555,000), which is
unsecured, bears interest at 8% (2016: 12%) per annum and has no
fixed terms of repayment; iii) $26,114,000 included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (2016: $56,965,000), which is
unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 9% per annum; iv) $12,069,000
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (2016:
$11,536,000), which is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment; v) $989,766,000 included in interest in joint
ventures (2016: nil), which is unsecured, bears interest at a rate of
5% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group advanced
$2,111,054,000 (2016: $1,033,520,000) to joint ventures and
earned interest income from joint ventures of $73,117,000 (2016:
$95,658,000).

The balance of $2,645,151,000 is unsecured, bears interest at 90%
of the one year benchmark lending rate and repayable on 28 February
2018, which is included in other payables and accruals, the remaining
balance of $3,589,000 is unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Loans from fellow subsidiaries include i) loan principals and interests
amounting to $1,059,838,000 (2016:nil) classified as current
liabilities, which are unsecured, bear interest at one-year benchmark
lending rate and repayable on 28 December 2018; ii) the remaining
balances of $14,608,000 (2016: $13,652,000) classified as current
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

These transactions constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they
are financial assistance received by the Group which are conducted
on normal commercial terms or better, and are not secured by the
assets of the Group.

42 BB 5 (
(b) mﬁﬁ%

(il

()

0]

(v

(vii

i
(1

)
E
(&

HJJE»

ERRKERARFERE )28
7%430335200%(: T — N
1,665,905 000T) ZEX A% K Fl

B RENABEER BNT—F
HAEEEANX tﬁmmZﬂ
ZAEMR—EREZ NEEA
%itffuimwmmt
ZERAERFE  ZERBEK
B Eﬁ?*%i %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FMEFERAMEANER |||E§?

# $£803,960,0007T (= f - NF:
274,545,0007z> SRR 20 RE

BHBOERARGE DA ZER
7 2299,075,0007C (= T — /X ¢
167,685,0007T) * ZFEAEER - &
EREETEER: u)uﬂ\ﬁ’rmﬁﬁﬂ
B 21,0951740007C (ZE— R4
976,555,0007T) * AR EEA - 17
FEN (ZE—NF 12%) ;TER
BETEEH FABRERIE &
& REMERE 15261140007z(,7
— N 1 56,965,0007T) ¢ B AE
}ﬁﬁﬂ CREFE%TE iv)?r)ﬁéiﬁ?ﬂ
« T8 R E A FEUFRIE12,069,0007T
(77 NE 1153600075) umlﬁ
BEER A REETEE uf
AR & X F)#5989,766,0007T (

NE B ES Alﬁﬁﬂﬁi?ﬁ&ﬁti
5%zt 8 °

BE2-T—tf+-A=1+—~H
HEE AEERALELERN
2,111,054,000C (= T — X &F:
1,033,520,00070) © BA S ERTF
B U AT73,117,00000 (Z T — SN F

95,658,0007T) °

5 422,645,151,00070 BEE R« F—
FHEEEEFIROWTERAZE
—“N\F-A-t+/\BEE  ZFES
AEMENFERESER T4
£3,589,000 AEEHF - REREE

H?W%Q\T%M&%I)A*ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
& &4 8 £1,059,838,0007T (=

NEE) ZEFAE RS véﬁx
Iﬁﬁﬂfm E iﬂ;ﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘éﬂ

HERRZZ-N\F+=A=+N\H
B HIIT % #:14,608,0007C (- &
— N 0 13,652,000T) A AER

W REREEEEEAZRDE

& o

ARZER S AREEERZ A
B B R AIE AR N AT
REZBEBHRS Vﬁﬁeﬁkﬁ
w;ﬁm@mmmzmm
ERHE— Fﬁ%@%?ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬂ
7 aﬂzc/,»m&lz,éfgmw
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42 Related party transactions (continued) 42 BIBHR S ()
The Group had the following material transactions with related parties () FR AEEEATHBEHFETUTEK
during the year: RG
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—R
Notes $°000 $'000
BisE e ST
(1) Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding (1) FEIERA A
company: REEE i
— Management fee income - EREBRA (i)/(iv) 1,863 ! 2,990
— Rental income — el (ii)/(iv) 12,655 | 8,141
(2)  Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate ~ (2) BEZERAT
holding company: wE (£E) - | |
— Rental expenses - &M% (i/Giv) 10,628 : 8,369
(3)  Joint venture: @ BBl |
— Sales of products —HEER (ifi) 71,823 | 62,606
(4)  Fellow subsidiaries: (4 REMBAF : ; ;
— Rental expenses - s (i/Giv) 481 | 484

Notes {of

()  Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into between Nongke and () BEENEZREEFER-_ZT— F+ZA=
Shum Yip Group on 30 December 2016, Shum Yip Group appointed Nongke TR ZEBRE  AEEBEZEERR
to provide management services on its behalf in respect of (a) certain HtQETERHRIEHEEE  ROMEER
agricultural lands and related assets, and (b) the implementation plan BEZERAARTERRS - AFE - A
of a property development project. Management fee income in respect B EE RS2 EE BN A1,863,0007T
of the management services as abovementioned of $1,863,000 (2016: (ZZ—7NF 12,990,00070) B FREEE
$2,990,000)), was charged to Shum Yip Group for the year. Nk -

(i) The rentals were recognised at prices based on mutual agreement between (i) HEVEREHREHEEBRER -
the parties.

(i) The sales to the joint venture was made according to the published prices (i) MAEERAZHENRERETAEELM
and conditions offered to other major customers of the Group. TERP 2B HIBERRIGHEDL -

(ivy  These transactions constitute continuing connected transactions as defined (iv) $E@EZ%?%%1&5@‘%14A.76(1)ﬂ§%ﬁ7k$
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the disclosure REZR5 - RULEK LT RAEIAZER
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are below the de FIREZHERH RS  HERRET LT
minimis threshold Rule 14A.76(1). HRAEUAERZ BERT

() In the opinion of the directors, the above related party transactions were v EERR LHEBRARSNEAEERE

conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business. The directors of the Company confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

EBPE—RBERTETZ RS - AAT
SERARR AL E R FIAT
BEST -
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42 Related party transactions (continued)
(d) Other transactions with related parties

)

(i

(i)

(i)

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank loans amounting to
$2,990,750,000 (2016: $3,771,012,000) were guaranteed by
Shum Yip Group (note 30).

On 15 March 2016, the Group completed the acquisition
of 95% equity interest in Fairwind Power Limited from its
immediate holding company, Shum Yip Holdings, at the
purchase consideration of $2,264,233,000. The fair value of
the Group’s share of net identifiable assets acquired at the date
of acquisition was $2,790,482,000. As a result, a gain on a
bargain purchase of $526,249,000 was recognised in profit or
loss.

On 20 December 2016, the Group signed an agreement
with Shenzhen International Holdings Limited (“Shenzhen
International”) and made a capital contribution to SIQ Real
Estate, which effectively acquired 50% equity interest of SIQ
Real Estate. The Group and Shenzhen International are both
entities under the control of Shenzhen Municipal People’s
Government State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission, and therefore are related parties.

On 7 March 2016, Nongke, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Shenzhen International to sell
an office building at a cash consideration of RMB1,162,438,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,359,123,000), which has
been fully settled in 2016.

(e) Commitments with related parties:

U)

The Group has entered into certain operating lease
arrangements with Shum Yip Holdings. The amount of lease
expenses for the year is included in note 39(b) to the financial
statements. The Group expects total lease expenses in 2018
and 2019 to be approximately $10,790,000 and $3,605,000,
respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 14 July 2017, the
Group agreed a maximum capital contribution to Shum King
Limited of $3,000,000,000 for its development of a piece
of land in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
had an outstanding capital commitment to Shum King of
$2,032,500,000.

42

BB 2 o ()
(d) ﬁ%%ﬁ2£@§%

U

(i

i)

)

R-E—+F+=-F= + SRR
] I2990 750,000 (= &
3,771,012,0007t) 2T ER
ERERR (:E30) -

—NE:
ThE R

RZE—RF= )EH”jiH $E.Q
HEEERRAARE (£8) TR

B&Fairwind Power Limited .z 95%% #&
Uy B 18 52,264,233,0007T ° A EE
RiEE BREERETZREE
FEZ AR ER?,790,482,0007C © A
It - BR{E UL 7115526,249,0007C /B 7
TE Wﬁﬁwu °

RZZE-—R"F+A=+H F4%E
SR BB ERAR QR (RIIE
%Dﬁ%*ﬁ%m&ﬂ@@%%#
HEE - BEWEREE % 250%H
1 o REBERBERSHRYITA
RENEEEELEEERE R e
MEE  FitA@ES -

m:z ANEZAER - ARRZH
NEER BRI BEBRETYL —E R
%*uﬁﬁﬁﬁAE%J&mmm
‘Wm#ﬁmmwﬂwm%ﬁ%&
BER-_ZT— A F2YEE-

(e) SRR Z&HE :

U

(i

AEERRE (FE) JUETEE
BEZH FANEERYEBERY
BRERMEO0FEE - AEETE
B RZE-N\ER_T-NFzH
B 855 R4 410,790,0007T K
3,605,0007T ©

MANRB#HA-ZT—+FELA+
WHZRAEHMBEE  AEERER
A R 2 A& %)% £3,000,000,000
TUREBREEBZ -t B

—+E+ZA=+—0 K&
BHRYzERTEZEAAER
2,032,500,0007T, °
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43 Company-level statement of financial position 43 AT R EARDE
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the BERARRRINBERR T BAR AR ZE R
end of the reporting period is as follows: Dk

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
= ks —E—REF
r=EEwE  FEEETr—E
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Non-current assets EREBEE :
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERE 184 195
Investments in subsidiaries MERRERE 34,205,395 | 32,916,439
Investments in associates BENARE 50,436 : 119,532
Total non-current assets FRBEEARE 34,256,015 33,036,166
Current assets RBEE !
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRTIEA - i1 REMBKEIR 31,191 | 40,195
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BB ERE AR BT E 2 RERE 4,517 | 4,566
Cash and cash equivalents BehBLEED 806,996 | 1,165,725
Total current assets REEEARE 842,704 1,210,486
Current liabilities REAE i
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HERBEITREMEE 4,694,729 | 2,592,176
Other payables and accruals Bt Foa R EE A 379,386 | 334,603
Due to the ultimate holding company JE R BARIEIR R R FIR 37,867 | 29,812
Due to the immediate holding company EREEERARRIE 1,330,584 | 1,277,209
Total current liabilities REBRELE 6,442,566 4,233,800
Net current liabilities RBEERE (5,599,862) (3,023,314)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEBEE 28,656,153 30,012,852
Non-current liabilities FREEE |
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HRBEITREMES 7,911,491 10,350,424
Total non-current liabilities E =Rt 7,911,491 10,350,424
Net assets EEZRE 20,744,662 19,662,428
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43 Company-level statement of financial position 43 ZARJERHMERIE (H)

(continued)
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-R
2B rREEEr—E
Notes $°000 $'000
My zE 5t o S
Equity EE ; ;
Share capital &N 36(b) i 19,712,476 | 18,281,191
Reserves e 1,032,186 1,381,237
Total equity e 20,744,662 | 19,662,428
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March REFER_T—\F=- A+ AIERKRE
2018. Filg
Huang Wei Liu Chong
EE 2=
Director Director

EF EF
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and 44 BE-F—tE+-H=+—HIMEECH

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year R EL I A A R B RT ~ T Y B B R A )
ended 31 December 2017 e

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued BEZEUBRERTIBER  BECHAAEE
a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not BHATER M EARRE  REE-T—
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not TFETZAZT—BEFERRER - TRAAR
been adopted in Group’s financial statements. These include the following SEBMBEHRERTEN - AR BEEREE
which may be relevant to the Group. BOATAR °

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTF) A2 1 Fits

2 B BRI
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BERNBRELEEI  £HTA —T-\$—-H—-H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BRRBREENNEST - HELHIEATKUA —T-\fF—-H—-H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement of share-based 1 January 2018
payment transactions —ET-NF-H—H
BERMBRELNEIR B URGBERZ T - UIRGBERZ IFXZ2 R E
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
BERG RN BR]  KEYE - BRRENZE —T-\fF—-H—-H
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
&% (ERMBREREEAT) RREDR AELERAFAA - \F-A—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
ERRBMELNE165  HE —Z-NE—-HA—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019

BE (BRUBRERBREE) RBERN  AEH TEE LS “F-NF—-A-H
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment completed to date
is based on the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
The Group may also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that financial
report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial
instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, including the measurement of
impairment for financial assets. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the exemption
from restating comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

44

REZZ-LET A=+ HIEFECH
AL R A R RT ~ ST e ) e s R vy
e ()

ARBLREFZEFER] - L LR RRRY
BERERBEOTEREELIE - HERAA
I AEEEBR AT RS SR MBRRELEX
FENFRENETHE - RRFENE—F
ABETXR - BEFKEFEEEMBRS
ERFORLEBH B MELF155E AT
B ARSI R ARG ERBEEND
RiE - BRARAZSEAR CERTET LR
REHE - MAE AR F R B REREAE
BEZ-_Z-\FRA=THINERZ 88t
BRENEAEGTE - ZFENERERDZ
MBRERN  AEETARSERESHIRE
B BRBREER -

BB WSO > &M TR

ERMBREENEIRBERRBEGHE]
FIR B TE: BARFEB]ETAHESR
TREHBRENRESRE - BEYBMEERS
IRHEMEENDBRGERNFORT B
RAESREBERNE - BAMHREERFN
RERTANERIRE I BRAREBABRNNE
M EHERGTEREFNREMALEE

ERMBREENEMN T /\F-A—H
2 kAR FERREREN - REEFER
R#RBILEER YRR - N\F—A—
Az S BERER T RERE -
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial
assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI):

—  The classification for debt instruments is determined based on
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. If a
debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then interest revenue,
impairment and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

—  For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless of
the entity’s business model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the entity irrevocably elects
to designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

44 BEZZF-LHEFTZH=1—HILEEDH

AEL D AR AR R T~ AT ) B R A T
e ()

BB WA EE M > SR TR (8)
FRTHARBEHBERROBAZEDT -

@ ZPERiTE
BENBREENEIRSEESHEEN=
BEZEDER : ()RHERA - QBB
BRBEALEFERTPLEQEBEMS
BB AZ AR EEFTOC)H S REE ¢

- BERIAMIBREREECREE
MRERARZBENRNRSRE
RHUEEE - WEB LA ERERE
HEARARLABHENERE
B AR B WA - RER L E R
7/ FEREREENER -

- BERARLZME  EOBEATERE
BELREANEBRR AR ENE
MEREE - B—PINERBAES
WIHFHEEE - AIRERTAHDM
REERZESFEEREBEMEE
WABRRAEFENEREE ° ik

EFETREBEMEERARD
REFENEREE - AERZES
MR EMARENBENER © L&
me e - BEMAERERAENK
A A 2 EIRARRER -

AEECDFEEBARBHERARERR
HmBRAAERENEREESSNRAE
BRBREENEIRRBECARESE
D BRETE -
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)
(a) Classification and measurement (continued)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified as
“available-for-sale”, these are investments in equity securities for
which the Group has the option to irrevocably designate as FVTOCI
(without recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9. The Group does not
intend to elect this designation option for any of the investments
held on 1 January 2018 and will instead recognise any fair value
changes in respect of these investments in profit or loss as they
arise. This will give rise to a change in accounting policy as currently
the Group recognises the fair value changes of available-for-sale
equity investments in other comprehensive income until disposal
or impairment, when gains or losses are recycled to profit or loss
in accordance with the Group’s policies set out in notes 2(g)(ii) and
2(k). This change in policy will have no impact on the group’s net
assets and total comprehensive income, but will increase volatility
in profit or loss. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, fair value gain
of $865,997,000 related to the available-for-sale investments is
expected to be transferred from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to retained profits at 1 January 2018.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except
that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of that financial
liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income
(without reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does not
have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this
new requirement will not have any impact on the Group on adoption
of HKFRS 9.

4 BEZFZ-LHE+TAZT—HIEEEDH
A EL I A A R AB BT ~ T e B B R A )
BB ()

WM R REN > &M T H ()
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model. Under the
expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss
event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead,
an entity is required to recognise and measure either a 12-month
expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on the asset and the facts and circumstances. Based on preliminary
assessment, the Group expects that the application of the expected
credit loss model will not have significant impact to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue
standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified the
following areas which are expected to be affected:

(@)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
2(v). Currently, revenue arising from construction contracts and the
provision of services is recognised over time, whereas revenue from
the sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and rewards
of ownership have passed to the customers.

44 BE_F-EETHA=Zt—HILEEDH
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44 BEZF-LHETZH=Z+—HIMEEDH
A AEL G R A B BT ~ B AT 8 B B R R T

ended 31 December 2017 (continued) BB ()

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) WM B RS 55 HEFRAHRA
(%)

(a)  Timing of revenue recognition (continued) @) WAREZRIEE ()

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) ~ When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity
performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example work in progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely
to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue from sales of
properties. Currently the Group’s property development activities are
principally carried out in the PRC. Taking into account the contract
terms, the Group’s business practice and the legal and regulatory
environment of the PRC, the Group has assessed that its property
sales contracts are unlikely to meet the criteria for recognising
revenue over time and therefore is likely that revenue from property
sales will continue to be recognised at a point in time.
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and 44 BE-F—tE+-H=+—HIMEECH

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year A AEL G A A BT ~ B T 2 ) e e R )

ended 31 December 2017 (continued) BB ()

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) WM B RS 55 HEFRAHRA
(%)

(b)  Significant financing component b) EABEHAL

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for the
time value of money when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments from customers are
received significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when payments
are significantly deferred, which is currently not common in the
Group’s arrangements with its customers. Currently, the Group does
not apply such a policy when payments are received in advance.

Advance payments are common when residential properties are
marketed by the Group while the property is still under construction.
In this situation, the Group may offer customers a discount compared
to the sales price payable, provided the customers agree to pay the
balance of the purchase price early.

In assessing whether such advance payments schemes include
a significant financing component, the Group has considered the
difference between the discounted price offered to those customers
and the cash selling price, and the length of time between the
payment date and the completion date of legal assignment (i.e. the
date when the customers obtain control of the properties) based on
the typical arrangements entered into with the customers.
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)  Significant financing component (continued)

Where such advance payment schemes include a significant
financing component, the transaction price will need to be adjusted to
separately account for this component. Such adjustment will result in
interest expense being recognised to reflect the effect of the financing
benefit obtained from the customers during the period between the
payment date and the completion date of legal assignment, with a
corresponding increase to revenue on sale of properties recognised
when control of the completed property is transferred to the customer.
However, the actual extent of impact of this new accounting policy
will also depend on whether and by how much such interest expense
can be capitalised as part of the cost of the properties under HKAS
23, Borrowing costs. If the interest expense is to be capitalised until
the construction work is completed, then this new accounting policy
will not have a material impact on the Group’s net profits during the
construction period and gross profit from the sales of properties. The
Group is in the process of assessing the implication of the significant
financing component identified from the property sales on its
capitalisation policy.

(c) Sales with a right of return
Currently when the customers are allowed to return the Group’s
products, the Group estimates the level of expected returns and
makes an adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

(d) Cost of contract
Currently, the Group expensed off the costs associated with obtaining
the property sales contracts with customers. Under the requirement
of HKFRS 15, incremental costs of obtaining a contract is eligible for
capitalisation as deferred contract costs if they meet certain criteria.
Based on the assessment of the Directors, the amount of deferred
contract costs at 1 January 2018 was insignificant to the Group.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect transition method
for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1 January
2018. Based on preliminary assessment, the Group expects that the
transition adjustment to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 15
will not be material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies
as described above could have a material impact on the Group’s financial
results from 2018 onwards.
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(j), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS
16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the
lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases
(i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. As disclosed in note 39(b), at 31 December 2017 the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to $25,221,000 for properties, the majority of which is
payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting period. Some of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. However, the
directors consider the adoption of HKFRS 16 is unlikely to have a material
effect on the Group’s financial statements. A more detailed analysis will be
performed to determine the actual impact.
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Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
F-E-FARBERETRESAERECYERR

Expected
Interest to Land Area Planned GFA Completion
Project/Property Name Address Type the Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Year
AT HHER ANREEE
BE /WELR it AEE Frit s (F73K) (FEXK) HRARIFH
Property Interest held for future development
BREARRZDERER
Garden Hills (Land Plot 1) Zhongkai Development Zone, Huizhou Residential 100% 81,811 166,985 No Plans
FILES (1570R) BMm SRR Fx AEstE
Garden Hills Phase 3.2 Zhongkai Development Zone, Huizhou Residential 100% 48,702 214,529 2021
FIL%783.28 BMTHER#E F=
Wanlin Huafu Huichjng, Huizhou R\esidential 100% 72,922 297,505 2022
BIHER BN TEAE =
Rui Cheng Phase 3.2 Changsha County, Changsha Residential 80% 12,453 66,627 2020
EVRR ESTRDE E=
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 2 Qingjiang North Road, Qingbaijiang, Chengdu Residential 52.54% 4,146 16,584 No Plans
e BRI 2H REHFHIRBTIHE F=E KB E
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 3 Qingjiang North Road, Qingbaijiang, Chengdu Residential 52.54% 4,287 21,437 No Plans
TRBERsE3H RETHFELIRIBLIHR = AE:tE
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 4 Qingjiang North Road, Qingbaijiang, Chengdu R\esidential 52.54% 14,446 86,676 No Plans
TR EGRIEAE PRETE BT EE T FE REFE
Wuhan Bio Valley Project North of Gaoxin Avenue, East Lake High-tech Residential 75.05% 348,249 830,000 No Plans
REEMAEE Development Zone, Wuhan fEx=2 FCHE
RETRNGSIESTAELH
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden North Bantang Economic Development Zone, Chaohu R\esidemial 100% 127,269 38,733 No P‘Ians
ERORHELR AT SRR fE R ]
Chaohu Squth Residential Bantang Economic Development Zone, Chaohu R\esidential 100% 145,868 41,406 No Plans
HmEEE HRm+ SR ERER FE REFE
Chengdu Splendid Industrial Park Caotggg East Road, Qingyang, Chengdu Commercial 87.91% 6,836 11,263 2019
(Land Plot South) KBTS FREZRRE [EE3
AR TR (RaiR)
Taifu Square Phase 2 Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.68% 8,964 95,537 2021
FEESH AT RAE ma
Taifu Square Phase 3 Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.68% 8,807 132,992 2022
REESH AR Fa
Shum Yip Xihui Changsha County, Changsha Residential 80% 27,732 102,821 2018
REEE ROTRDE FE
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.2 Yushan, Ma’anshan Residential 99.77% 125,798 467,048 2022
BRIREFEN AR FgLTHLE F=
Kashi\Residential (Land Plot 1) Duolaitebage Road, Kashi R\esidential 100% 17,129 59,952 No Plans
BAEE (H3R1) BT ZESEEE FE AEE
Tuen Mun (Land Plot 520) Tuen Mun Area, Shenjing & Qingshan Road, Residential 50% 12,205 43,938 No Plans
P9 (5204158) Tuen Mun, Hongkong . ) ‘
EREMARAREIIREEMES FE AE:E
Foshan Nanhai Lishui Land Site Lishui Town, Nanhai district, Foshan city Residential 100% 19,883 76,912 2021
BILEEEKIR IR BKE F=
Nanjing Jiangning Tianyou Road Shangfang Town of Jiangning District, Nanjing City Residential 100% 34,623 102,790 2021
(Land Site G72) N )
ARIERKRARE (GT25R) BARMIER H#E F=
Nanjing Jiangning Qinglong Subway  Qinglong Subway Town of Jiangning District, Residential 100% 31,304 98,974 No Plans
Town (Land Parcel G78) Nanjing City
ARIERFEME A (G78i038) MM IZERSEBE/MA F=E KB E
Splendid City Phase 3 TaiZhou, Jiangsu Residential 100% 46,677 177,934 2020

BRI TEHETIMNT e
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Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
F-E-FARBERETRESAERECYERR

Interest Stage of Expected
to the Land Area Planned GFA Development Completion
Project/Property Name Address Type Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (Note) Year
AFH ERER RBREER BREE st
BHE NELR b1 FAEE it (FF3K) (F5K) (B=E) TIEH
Property interest held under development
BERBRP2NERR
Nanhu Rose Bay Building Wuhan, Hubei Residential 75.05% 38,035 132,570 1 2020
10 — 174# (Zone 1&2 of Phase 4) WLERET jEx=2
AHEURE0-17# (4H51821R)
Yihu Rose Garden Phase 1.2 — Longxi  Qingjiang North Road, Residential 52.54% 16,900 67,221 3 2018
MRS 280 — B Qingbaijiang, Chengdu F=E
REBTELLIRIETIHE
Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 4 Luohu, Shenzhen Warehouse/ 97.68% 5,700 46,852 1 2020
BB R EEER4S RIS E Commercial
B/ EE
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.1 Yushan, Ma’anshan Residential 99.77% 64,129 158,090 3 2019
BRILRREMEH AR BRLTHLE F=E
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Intersection of Hongli West Road and Complex 100% 36,193 338,873 3 2019
(Land Plot 05-01) Nongyuan Road, Futian, Shenzhen
REFR (05-013088) AT EERAZ AR ERER R ER e
Taifu Square Phase 1 (South) Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.68% 18,600 206,971 3 2019
ZEESH (BR) AT e
Taifu Square Phase 1 (North) Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.68% 8,158 100,804 3 2019
ZEES1H (L) AT Fa
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 3.2 Yushan, Ma’anshan Residential 99.77% 62,669 191,656 3 2018
BRINREEMNGER SRLUTHLE F=
Gaobangshan No.1 Garden Phase 1 Huicheng, Huizhou Residential 100% 38,994 135,893 3 2018
(Land Plot 4) BNMEAE F=E
BELSREETE (455h)
Rui Cheng Phase 3.1 Changsha County, Changsha Residential 80% 45,117 73,433 3 2018
EH3IH RATMRD G F=
Wanlin Lake Phase 9 Jinbang Road, Huicheng, Huizhou Residential 100% 27,698 74,427 2 2019
S BMTERESER TE
Terra Licheng (Chegongmiao Tairan 4th Road, Futian, Shenzhen Complex 75.05% 7,944 129,050 3 2020
Redeveloped Project Phase 1) AR EERANLE e
TR (EDBHMERIEE —H)
Chaohu South Phase 1 Bantang Economic Development Zone, Residential 100% 32,104 5,415 3 2018

EEETS Chaohu
EMmEREERRRE FE
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Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
F-E-RRARERRTREGHARREZYERS

Interest Stage of Expected
to the Land Area Planned GFA Development Completion
Project/Property Name Address Type Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (Note) Year
AFH ERER RBREER BREE st
BE /MELR ik S Frit e (E5K) (F5K) (H=E) TIEH
Property interest held under development
RERREDZMXER
Chaohu North Phase 4.2 Bantang Economic Development Zone, Residential 100% 18,115 6,406 3 2019
Hiftla.28 Chaohu F=E
ERmEsEEREE
Shum Yip Dongling (Land Plot 04-01)  Intersection of Shennan East Road and Commercial 95% 6,751 76,733 2 2020
RERSE (04-013258) Yanhe North Road, Luohu, Shenzhen HES
R R R R BT R E R
Shum Yip Dongling (Land Plot 03-01)  Intersection of Shennan East Road and Complex 95% 48,434 457,359 4 2018
Yanhe North Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
RERE (03-01341) AMITENERERBDTIEZER £6
UpperHills South Besides Office T2 Intersection of Huanggang Road and Complex 100% 72,609 768,009 4 2019
Sungang Road, Futian, Shenzhen
RELHAERT2 RYITEEE S MR A HERER e
Qianhai 19-06-06 Project Free Trading Area, Qianhai, Shenzhen Residential 50% 12,491 52,900 2 2020
A/819-06-0678 B AMImaEEER FE
Tanglang City West South of Liuxian Avenue, Nanshan, Complex 50% 30,101 277,557 4 2018
R R Shenzhen o)
AT L B L K& F R
Notes: Hiqz -
1 Site formation 1, HETE
2. Foundation work 2. HWETR
3. Superstructure in progress 3, FETRRESD
4 Interior finishing 4. REEE
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Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for sales
FoE - KRAREEEHEZNERES

BRI LYo

ERARIT BEREE

Interest to
Property Address Use the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
&8 AREER
L/ES o4t ik it (F5K) ERESR
Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 137,911.79 2012-2017
IBERE REA I TIEERE mEREE
Noble Times Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 135.33 2012
RERR BRE AT HEREE
Royal Garden Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 88.29 2012
HE RRE R fre
Zhongxin Science & Technology Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 100% 11,050.91 2001
REUBAE BRARYIT WAE
Rui Cheng Phase | Changsha City, Hunan Res. 80% 5,139.66 2013
B AR fi
Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 33,021.76 2008-2017
S BREEMT BEREE
Garden Hills Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 245,752.77 2012-2017
Sk BRABMT HEREE
Saina Bay Heyuan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 14,148.75 2012
E30) BRETRT EEREE
Euro-view Garden Phase 1 Dongguan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 4,947.93 2012
BRBIL—H BRARET BEREE
Splendid City Phase 1 & 2 Taizhou, Jiangsu Com. & Res. 100% 21,744.86 2012-2016
R AR HE 2k THETRMT HEREE
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 99.77% 90,681.65 2013-2017
BRILRRER REEHBLT FE
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Changzhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 23,333.74 2014-2017
BMREER TEEFMT r=
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station and ~ Shenyang, Liaoning Com. & Res. 84.83% 40,060.88 2011
Meibo Trading Centre
BEIEREREUREEESRL BEREET BELEE
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 1-3 Wuhan, Hubei Com. & Res. 52.54% 11,062.00 2012
ARBE—Z=H Ml B RED AEREE
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 45.03% 3,049.71 2013
[EiEse 2 o)l & EEREE
UpperHills Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 13,418.52 2014, 2016
RE L BREFIIT t=
Jiangyue Bay Guangzhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 3,226.15 2014, 2015
IS BREBEMT =
Royal Spring North Villa Chaohu, Anhui Res. 100% 2,531.42 2015-2017
R E RS REEEMT FE
Bofeng Building Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 97.68% 15,970.12 2016
HERE BREARYITRAR WAE
Ruicheng Phase 2 Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 3,097.80 2016-2017
e MEERDT =
Guanlan Rose Pavilion and Rose Garden Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. & Res. 38.28% 25,14517 2016



<0

246

Shenzhen Investment Limited ¥ BARR/AR Annual Report 2017 ZE—+F &

Schedule of Major Properties

EXL/E ¥4

=5

Group Il - Property interest held by the Company for investment
EZE - ARABEEREZERESR

Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
| AREER

L/ES .3 i3 Frit g (B 3K) ERESR
Shun Hing Square Junction of Shennan Zhong Road, Com., Off., Res. and Carpark 100% 17,817.12 1996

Jiefang Road and Baoan Road,

Luohu, Shenzhen
ERES R TR M) B AR A RS B BLE GERRES

RERERR
Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Com. and Off. 100% 10,335.30 1997

Shenzhen
RERD R R RE B BERPRE
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res., Com. and Carpark 50% 5,853.19 1993
ERAE AYTERE ARBR B/ BERRES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res. 100% 1,376.98 1993
ZRAHE BB AR AR m/
Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen  Off. 100% 3,931.39 1991
REAE Gl et HAE
Noble Times Longgang, Shenzhen Com. 100% 26,966.27 2012
BEBR RITEER [EE3
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off., Com./Res., 75% 131,164.19 1994-2012

Ind. and Res.
BRBIXE Ay HE HECBAE B
I¥RE=E

No.10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 64.44 1990
EEMEI0% ATEER TFE
Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75% 15,341.58 1994
REREE RYITE BB 1%
Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50.49 1993
BEENTRAR AYTERE [GES
Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Futian, Shenzhen ~ Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 1,593.20 1993
BERE R R = HE  NOEREES
Tian’an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off., Ind. and Res. 37.53% 58,436.06 1992-2005
ERELHTLE R EAE BAE - TEREE
Tian’an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase Il Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 37.53% 24,728.48 2008-2015
ALEEHIBIH 8 BREHE I¥
Tian’an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind. and Res. 37.53% 46,303.25 2010
ALHBHIEIN BEREES T¥REE
Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Ind. 37.53% 27,904.89 2010-2014
REZEHYIIHN BERARIT [EESEES
Tian’an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 37.53% 15,430.52 2012-2015

RRREHHEHA ERERET I%
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Interest to
Property Address Use the Company TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
A7 BEEER
LIES ik it} FritfEs (FFK) ERESR
Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. and Res. 37.53% 27,691.53 2012-2017
RELR YIS TEFEIRT IXREE
Tian’an Changzhou New Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. 37.53% 35,788.28 2012
AR M BEH THREEMT I
Tian’an Qingdao New Cyber-City Qingdao, Shandong Off. 37.53% 4,818.05 2015-2017
AR HEIEHM LEaEEM WAE
Tian’an Tianjin New Cyber-City Xiging, Tianjin Ind. 37.53% 20,130.65 2016
ERRRUBIA ERHEEE T%
Tian’an Chongging New Cyber-City Da Du Kou, Chongging Ind. 37.53% 2,600.84 2015
AR EEUBIH EETARD I%
Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002
RETEE AR [EES
Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 97.68% 84,884.21 1990-2002
FHEERE ATENEERILR I¥
Composite Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Com./Res. 97.68% 4,812.73 1991
Rz AR R RN EE 2 ]
Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen Com./Res. 97.68% 4,835.28 1988
HRKESRE AT ENEE LR [
Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997
SFI AT FE5
Boxing Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 97.68% 12,861.05 2014
BRAE AT E AT I¥
Bolong Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 97.68% 39,284.24 2014
KR R REE A I%
Bofeng Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 97.68% 10,070.39 2017
BEXE AT EREE KT T¥
S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Investment Junction of Zhenxing Road Off. 75% 1,316.54 1990
Corp. Building and Shangbu Zhong Road,
Futian, Shenzhen
RIERETRELDANE RITEERREER ESHEIA  BAE
Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com. and Ind. 84.83% 27,852.63 1994-1996
BHRERER BEREGT HERIE
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com. and Carpark 84.83% 47,442.46 2011
and Meibo Trading Centre
BEAEREREUREEESRL BEREET HEREES
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com., Res. and Off. 100% 56,606.73 2009

T BRI

TEHEHFMT

BE EERBAZE
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EZE - ARABEEREZERESR

Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop
BAEHETS

UpperHills South
A% LAmE

Pengji Properties
BEmE

Xiangli Oasis Club
BHBNGFT

Times Technology Building
BRRHERAE

Longxi Garden
BERTEE

Nongke Oasis Office Tower
RRHEM I g

Nongke Business Office Tower
EREBERE

Xiangli Garden

EHiILE

Tanglang City
SRR

Chengdu, Sichuan
m)ll & &

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERIT

Shenzhen, Guangdong and
Nanjing, Jiangsu

ERERMRIHEER

Futian, Shenzhen
Y| TEEE
Futian, Shenzhen
Ay EE
Futian, Shenzhen
AR
Futian, Shenzhen
RTEER
Futian, Shenzhen
AR
Futian, Shenzhen
AY|TEHE

Nanshan, Shenzhen
AT

Com. and Carpark

BEREFES

Com., Hotel & Off.
B BERBAE

Com., Res., Ind. and Carpark

HE AT IERFES

Com.

[BES

Com. and Off.

Com. and Carpark

BEREES

Interest to
the Company
NE

Frib R
87.91%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

TGFA (sq.m.)
BEEER
(FFK)
30,803.45

284,739.00

266,084.65

2,212.09

52,742.86

6,5615.27

5,343.91

859.16

2,560.00

67,590.10

2017

1983-2005

2003

2009

1984-1996

2012

2012

2003

2015-2019
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